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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
(the “Company’”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules’”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no any
other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Yang Weihong (Chairman)
Ma Xin (General Manager)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Li Jian, Meng Jun, Sun Jing
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Cheng Xinsheng, He Yongjun, Japhet Sebastian Law, Peng Zuowen

SUPERVISORS

Wang Guanghua, Yan Jun, Han Wanijin,
Huang Fei, Lan Lingyan, Wang Linlinlin

SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Yang Weihong (Secretary of the Party General Branch),
Ma Xin (General Manager), Zhao Chunyan, Zheng Yuying

COMPANY SECRETARY
Lo Tai On

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee
Cheng Xinsheng (Chairman), He Yongjun, Japhet Sebastian Law
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Japhet Sebastian Law (Chairman), Cheng Xinsheng, Peng Zuowen

Nomination Committee

Yang Weihong (Chairman), Japhet Sebastian Law, Peng Zuowen
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Yang Weihong, Lo Tai On
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AUDITOR

CL Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Unit 3203A-05, 32/F,
Tower 2, Lippo Centre,

89 Queensway, Admiralty,
Hong Kong

H SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

REGISTERED ADDRESS

Third Floor Office Building, No. 39, Bohai Road, Technological and
Economic Development Area, Tianjin, the People’s Republic of China

OFFICE AND CORRESPONDENCE ADDRESS

No. 39, Bohai Road, Technological and Economic Development Area,
Tianjin, the People’s Republic of China
Postal Code: 300457

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG
25/F, Neich Tower, 128 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
08348

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.tbtl.cn

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Tianjin Cui Heng Plaza Branch of the Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China
Tianjin Branch of the Dalian Bank
Dongli Centre branch of Tianjin Rural Commercial Bank
Beichen Branch of Tianjin Agricultural Development Bank of China
Binhai New Area Branch of CITIC Bank
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GROUP STRUCTURE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEME

RESULTS E

A summary of the consolidated results of the Company and its AAREKEWNBAR(AER)E=
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the five accounting years ended 31 2024412 A31 B It A€ FE 24
December 2024 has been prepared in accordance with International & 3457 2 R B RS E R FER N
Financial Reporting Standards as follows: ™

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
2024 F 20234 2022 4 20214 2020 4
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETIT ARBTIT ARETIT ARETT

(Restated)
(&&E5)
Operating income EEIRA 3,710,357 3,649,930 3,301,143 3,069,814 2,880,818
(Loss)/profit before BRATE AT (E18),
income tax St ) 5,655 40,979 80,795 112,660 (54,671)
Income tax expense FrS RS2 406 (4,633) (21,115) (33,352) (27,444)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (E8E), %7 6,061 36,346 59,680 79,308 (82,115)
(Loss)/profit TH&H EE (E1E),
attributable to gl
Non-controlling interests FE#EA% fE 25 163 6,568 30,057 45,626 47,271
Owners of the Company &R &#EA A 5,898 29,778 29,623 33,682  (129,386)
Basic (loss)/earnings per S EZ (EE),”
share (RMB) AR (ARTT) 0.02 0.08 0.08 0.1 (0.37)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

Bt

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES R&f

A summary of the Group’s assets and liabilities as at the end of the B#E2024F 1233 1B IERAEE
five accounting years ended 31 December 2024 has been prepared sTHEEHIRZ EE A BME JHIZRE 075

/

SR

%FFF e

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as ~ FREERIHERNT -
follows:
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
2024 & 20234 2022 £ 2021 4 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT ARETIT ARBTIT ARETIT
(Restated)
(& &E5)
Non-current assets ERBEE 899,063 995,825 1,051,588 1,066,195 860,953
Current assets RBEE 893,878 824,963 1,184,549 1,009,988 1,373,243
Total Assets BEBETE 1,792,941 1,820,788 2,236,137 2,076,183 2,234,196
Non-current liabilities ERHEE 59,682 109,307 93,436 113,890 143,756
Current liabilities mEaE 750,818 720,205 1,142,696 978,253 1,122,750
Non-controlling interests  JE#2 f A 25 97,343 103,997 125,732 137,196 134,146
Liabilities and B & M IEE R E RS
non-controlling
interests 907,843 933,509 1,361,864 1,229,339 1,400,652
Total equity TS HEER 982,441 991,276 1,000,005 984,040 967,690
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company, |
am pleased to present the audited consolidated financial results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 to all shareholders.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Year”), the Group’s
operating income was approximately RMB3,710,357,000 (2023:
RMB3,649,930,000), representing an increase of approximately 1.66%
as compared with the corresponding period of the previous year.
Profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB5,898,000 (2023: RMB29,778,000).
Total comprehensive income attributable to the equity holders of
the Company amounted to approximately RMB4,905,000 (2023:
RMB23,794,000). Earnings per share were approximately RMBO0.02
(2023: RMBO0.08).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s total assets and current assets
were approximately RMB1,792,941,000 (2023: RMB1,820,788,000)
and approximately RMB893,878,000 (2023: RMB824,963,000)
respectively, representing a decrease of RMB27,847,000 and an
increase of RMB68,915,000 respectively as compared with 31
December 2023. Net assets attributable to the parent company and
net assets per share at the end of the period were approximately
RMB885,098,000 (2023: RMB887,279,000) and approximately
RMB2.50 (2023: RMB2.50) respectively. Net assets attributable to the
parent company and net assets per share were generally on a par as
compared with the corresponding period of the previous year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERESE

REVIEW FOR THE YEAR

Reflecting on 2024, despite mounting external pressures and
escalating internal challenges, China’s economy maintained overall
stability and continued to progress steadily. New quality productive
forces steadily developed, bolstering the pursuit of high-quality
development. The logistics industry was impacted by complex
domestic and international landscape, coupled with geopolitical
factors, resulting in structural overcapacity in both transportation and
warehousing facilities that intensified competition. Logistics enterprises
endeavored to enhance cost efficiency amid declining demand and
service prices while maintaining stable operations. Affected by the
above factors, the Group’s performance in the automotive logistics
and electronic component logistics sectors experienced a significant
downturn, resulting in a marked decline in overall annual performance
as compared to the previous year. Determined to drive high-quality
development through high-quality Party-building, the Group leveraged
its resource strengths and implemented a range of strategic measures
to navigate market challenges, focusing on reform for growth.

Maintaining stability in core business with firm resolve

During the year, the warehousing and multimodal transport segment
capitalised on its strengths, sustaining robust operational volumes
in railway commodity vehicles business and achieving a notable
enhancement in operating performance. The supply chain and
logistics services for finished automobiles and components segment
faced severe challenges, including declining customer output,
business loss caused by cost reduction and service fee reduction in
pillar main engine factory. In response, the segment strengthened
cost control to retain existing business while actively expanding new
opportunities. The material procurement services segment deepened
cooperation with high-quality customers, optimised business models,
and effectively enhanced profitability. To address the supply chain
migration of previous key customers, the supply chain and logistics
services for electronic components segment operated through the
joint venture intensified efforts to acquire new customers, successfully
launching in-vehicle component warehousing and transportation
projects, ensuring overall business stability.

P ORA

B 82024 & - M SNEREE D INA ~ AED
REIEZ WEMBIRILE - BB RES
BITHRBYR RTAEE MELENR
PR SEHERRILEHEE - WRTE
EEMNBEABRBRTEE L EBUaRE -
TRENMRERREEEEBT  BFE
—Z B - MREREFTRKEMRBER
ERPERIEY  BHRFIREE - X
PRAREE  AEEAEVYRAETE
BERIRRRERE TR - ERFEE
BRERLFERE ME - AREZORN
UeEEEEs|ERE8RR  LRES
BRER - JRRT —RIEEEE 5k
B BRENERER -

BEEXX REED

AEERN BEIZABERRTD HE
BHES RESKDMEXBRIEES
BT EEXEBEWNE NHEHR
K B ER I SR ) R AR A AR SR 8 S AE
WREFPEE TR - BEEAATERNES
MR~ RIS EFREFERILE - ISR
BERNTEREXK  RREGRORE
B MERBRGRANREEERTSR
EafE  BEEBER  BREAENZ
A BEREARELNETTMIHHRE
BYRRBRRASEHREMN T HIERE
BY  MAFERRANE  KINWFHEEH
BHERRERER  BERARKEERER

E °

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A



Streamlining, strengthening, and revitalizing existing assets

In recent years, the frozen warehousing market in the Tianjin region
has continuously exhibited a severe oversupply, with intense market
competition and constantly shrinking profit margins. Against this
background, in 2024, the Group, after careful deliberation, successfully
completed the disposal of equity interest in its joint venture, Tedahang
Cold Chain Logistics Co., Ltd. Although the Group has consequently
withdrawn from the Tianjin regional frozen warehousing market, the
Group will continue to monitor opportunities in the development of
the cold chain logistics industry. In addition, progress has also been
achieved in divestments of its associates, Tianjin Ferroalloy Exchange
Co., Ltd. (REEHE X FFER A A]) and Tianjin Port Gangwan
International Automobile Logistics Co., Ltd. These actions are of great
significance for optimising our Group’s resource allocation, focusing
on its core business, and enhancing overall competitiveness.

Deeply tapping resources to plan for growth

To counteract the competitive pressure on traditional major businesses
and support the Company’s future high-quality development,
the Company has engaged external professional teams to drive
transformation and development initiatives while identifying new
business growth opportunities. In consideration of various factors, the
Company has actively explored adjustments to the construction plan
for the Teda Industrial Park of Green and Intelligent Logistics Supply
Chain (FREHEE 2V RHEEHEZEE]) project to promptly adapt to
evolving market conditions.

Optimising governance and controlling risks

The Group has optimised its organizational structure by establishing
a warehousing and multimodal transportation center, gathering talent
and resources to enhance business expansion efforts. Management
expenses have been continuously reduced, with a firm commitment
to achieving annual cost reduction targets through strict budget
planning and process management. Additionally, the Company has
actively fulfilled its primary responsibilities for safety, fire prevention,
and emergency response, ensuring that no major production safety
incidents or unexpected events occurred throughout the year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERESE

PROSPECT AND VISION

Looking ahead to 2025, the international economic landscape is
becoming increasingly complex and challenging, while the domestic
economic development faces numerous uncertainties and shocks.
However, the fundamental trend of long-term economic growth
remains unchanged. The Group will remain confident, fully leverage
its internal and external resources, seize opportunities, proactively
respond to challenges, continuously enhance its independent
operational capabilities and core competitiveness, and strive to
achieve stable and sound overall operations.

Enhancing the quality and efficiency of traditional major
businesses

The Group will focus on the core logistics business to improve the
profitability of existing business. The warehouse and multimodal
transport services segment will strengthen the marketing of core
assets to continuously enhance the profitability of self-owned logistics
assets. Aligning with the national “Belt and Road” initiative, the Group
will proactively integrate into regional “Port-Industry-City” development
strategies and enhance business operations and customer service
levels. The supply chain and logistics services for finished automobiles
and components segment will continue to drive operational
improvements by closely tracking the transformation trends of main
engine plants customers, streamlining operations, reducing costs,
and maximising internal potential while expanding logistics services for
other automotive brands. The materials procurement services segment
will continue to strictly control risks, optimise customer structure
and enhance profitability. The supply chain and logistics services for
electronic components segment operated through the joint venture
will continue to optimise management efforts and enhance investment
returns.

Establishing new growth drivers

The Group will closely follow national policies to develop new-quality
productive forces in logistics. By fully leveraging the resources
of shareholders, industry associations, and external professional
institutions, it will focus on the core business and upstream and
downstream segments of the industry to identify new growth
opportunities and drive the Company’s transformation.
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Continuously enhancing internal management

The Group will optimise talent reserves by combining internal training
with external recruitment to continuously enhance the logistics
operations team. Performance assessment will be enhanced by linking
compensation with performance, effectively motivating employees’
enthusiasm for innovation and execution. The Group will strengthen
the effectiveness of audit supervision, improve the construction of
internal control system to enhance governance capacity. The Group
will also uphold the bottom line of safe production, firmly establishing
the principle of “safety first, prevention focused, and comprehensive
management”, ensuring a balanced approach to development and
safety.

In 2025, the Group will forge ahead with determination, focusing on its
core business operations, continuously strengthening its market core
competitiveness, and advancing high-quality development!

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude and great respect to friends from all walks of life who have

cared about and supported the development of the Group throughout
a long period of time, as well as all of our staff!

Yang Weihong

Tianjin, the PRC, 21 March 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED N

BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

During the Year, the principal businesses of the Group include
supply chain and logistics services for finished automobiles and
components (provision of storage, transportation and import agency
services for finished automobiles and components to customers),
accounting for 30.4% of the operating income; material procurement
services (purchases of raw materials from manufacturing enterprises
and sales to customers), accounting for 68.2% of the operating
income; warehousing and multimodal transport business (provision
of warehouse, storage, supervision, agency and transportation and
related services to customers), accounting for 1.1% of the operating
income; and other services (provision of lease, management and other
related services) accounting for 0.3% of the operating revenue.

In addition, the Group operates supply chain and logistics services
for electronic components through the joint venture and derives
investment income therefrom.

Supply Chain and Logistics Services for Finished Automobiles
and Components

During the reporting period, the operating income of supply chain
and logistics services for finished automobiles and components
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB1,126,897,000,
representing a decrease of RMB95,161,000 or 7.79% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year, while the operating results
amounted to approximately RMB618,000, representing a decrease
of RMB17,812,000 or 96.65% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year. The decrease in operating results was because
under the intensified market competition, the operating income and
operating results of Fengtian Logistics have decreased as its business
has declined due to a reduction in the production by customers and
a decrease in the service price for imported vehicles, coupled with
the payment of economic compensation for optimization of personnel
structure throughout the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Materials Procurement Services

During the reporting period, the operating income from the materials
procurement services of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB2,529,052,000, representing an increase of RMB179,173,000
or 7.62% as compared with the corresponding period of last year,
while the operating results amounted to approximately RMB377,000,
representing a decrease of RMB3,148,000 or 89.30% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year. The decrease in operating
results was mainly due to an increase in sales expenses as the
Company sought to expand its customer base.

Warehouse and Multimodal Transport Business Services

During the reporting period, the Group’s warehouse and multimodal
transport business services recorded an operating income of
approximately RMB41,718,000, representing a decrease of
RMB21,267,000 or 33.77% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year, while the operating results amounted to
approximately RMB1,553,000, representing an increase of
RMB875,000 or 129.06% as compared with the corresponding period
of last year. The decrease in operating income was mainly attributable
to the Company’s downsizing of its low profit margin business as a
result of intensified market competition. The increase in operating
results was mainly due to an increase in the operational volumes and
proportion of the railway commercial vehicle business with higher profit
margins.

Other Services

During the reporting period, other businesses of the Group recorded
an operating income of approximately RMB12,690,000, representing
a decrease of RMB2,318,000 or 15.45% as compared with the
corresponding period of last year, while the operating results were
approximately RMB-7,003,000, representing losses increased by
approximately RMB6,351,000 or 974.08% as compared with the
corresponding period of last year. The decrease in operating income
and operating results of other services is mainly attributable to the
decline in income from the Group’s operating rental properties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEAWRD T

Supply Chain and Logistics Services for Electronic
Components (Operated Through Joint Ventures)

During the reporting period, the supply chain and logistics services for
electronic components business of the Group’s joint ventures recorded
a net operating profit of approximately RMB28,266,000. The Group
recorded an investment income of approximately RMB13,850,000,
representing a decrease of RMB9,483,000 or 40.64% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year, mainly due to the loss of
business caused by the supply chain migration of key customers of
the joint venture.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Operating income

For the year ended 31 December 2024, operating income of the Group
was RMB3,710 million, representing an increase of RMB60 million or
1.66% as compared to RMB3,650 million for the corresponding period
of last year. The main reason for the increase in operating income was
that the Group strengthened cooperation with high-quality customers
and expanded the scale of material procurement business.

Cost of sales and gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the cost of sales of the Group
was RMB3,682 million, representing an increase of RMB93 million or
2.59% as compared to RMB3,589 million in the corresponding period
of last year. For the year ended 31 December 2024, overall gross profit
margin of the Group was 0.77% which was 0.90 percentage points
lower than the corresponding period of last year. The decrease was
mainly due to the lower gross profit from the Company’s logistics and
supply chain services for finished automobiles and components.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for 2024 amounted to
RMB43,973,000, representing a decrease of RMB8,463,000 or
16.14% as compared to RMB52,436,000 in the corresponding period
of last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs during 2024 amounted to RMB19,610,000,
representing a decrease of RMB1,729,000 or 8.10% as compared to
RMB21,339,000 in the corresponding period of last year.

Income tax expenses

The taxation expenses of the Group for 2024 were RMB-406,000,
representing a decrease of RMB5,039,000 or 108.76% as compared
to RMB4,633,000 in the corresponding period of last year. The main
reason was the decrease in income tax as a result of the decline in the
Group’s operating results.

Net change in fair value of equity investments through
comprehensive income

The net change in fair value of equity investment of the Group for 2024
was RMB-993,000. The reason for the change was the decrease
in the net financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income of the Group.

Share of results of joint ventures and associates

The share of results of joint ventures and associates of the
Group for 2024 was RMB5,557,000, representing a decrease of
RMB21,035,000 or 79.29% as compared to RMB26,592,000 in the
corresponding period of last year, which was mainly due to the decline
in the operating results of the Group’s joint ventures involved in the
supply chain and logistics services for electronic components business
and the cold chain logistics service business.

Gain from disposal of joint venture

During the reporting period, the Company disposed of 60% equity
interest in its joint venture, Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics Co., Ltd.
(“Tedahang”) and obtained a gain of RMB24,124,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEAWRD T

Profit for the year and profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to the equity holders of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2024, total profit for the
period amounted to RMB5,068,000, representing a decrease of
RMB25,294,000 or 83.31% as compared to RMB30,362,000 in the
corresponding period of last year. Profit for the year attributable to
the equity holders of the Company amounted to RMB5,898,000,
representing a decrease of RMB23,901,000 or 80.19% as compared
to RMB29,778,000 in the corresponding period of last year. Total
comprehensive income attributable to the equity holders of the
Company was RMB4,905,000, decreased by RMB18,889,000 or
79.39% as compared to RMB23,794,000 in the corresponding period
of last year.

DIVIDEND

The Board proposes the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.03 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2024 (corresponding period
of 2023: RMBO0.02 per share). The total distribution of dividend is
estimated to be RMB10,629,360, which will be paid out of the profits
for the year and retained earnings.

The proposal shall be subject to the approval at the Company’s annual
general meeting of 2024. Information about the date of the annual
general meeting and arrangements on closure of register of members
will be announced in due course.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Capital structure

For the year ended 31 December 2024, there was no change in the
capital structure of the Group. The share capital of the Company
comprised only ordinary shares.

Loans and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2024, the balance of borrowings of the Group was
RMB260,119,000 (31 December 2023: RMB351,909,000 ).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2024, the ratio of total liabilities to total assets of
the Group was 45.21% (31 December 2023: 45.56%). The gearing
ratio (ratio of loans (including borrowings and lease liabilities) to total
equity) of the Group was 32% (31 December 2023: 39%).

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s investment properties of
RMB298,400,000 and bank deposits of RMB84,673,000 were
pledged to secure borrowings and bills payables granted to the Group.

Exchange loss or gain

All operating revenues and expenses of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi.

The Group has no significant investments outside of Mainland China.
The Group, however, may be exposed to certain extent of foreign
currency exchange loss or gain mainly because Fengtian Logistics
of the Group, has business denominated in United States Dollar and
Japanese Yen. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group had
an exchange gain of RMB520,000 after offsetting the exchange gains
with exchange losses.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND FUTURE PLANS
FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

During the Year, the Group had no significant investments and did not
devise future plans for material investments or capital assets.

EEREWED T

EXRBEGMELER

M2024F 128318 AEERLEFR
BEE LR B45.21% (2023F 12 A
318 :4556%) r A&EB 2 EARHEHEE
HEEFBREERNBESF) B2
HEB L R) A32% (202344 12 A 31
H :39%) °

EEEN

MR2024F12A31H AEB 2 AR
#298,400,000 T2 EME R AR
84,673,000 T2 RITHEREHEH - BAE
SEEGSHNERRENEERERER -

FE S4B S o 2
AEEFE S EMARE AR S

=
= °

ANEB R B AREAINEG B ETEARNE
B AMAEBEFE—ENEKEREX
g TEREARAEBZEHDR
T3 - BILINE RS - B E 20244
12A31BILFE  AEEFEEMER
Weas I B 5 B HEIR 12 B IE H ek AR
520,000 7T °

HRRE

MR2024F 12 A31H REBIX AFE
AERBIE -

iR EAREREAREGNENRNE

E 2 RR5t Sl

AEER  AEELEFSAEENRE - TF
BEHEARBEREAEEZRKAE -

2024 ANNUAL REPORT #3217 !



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEAWRD T

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

On 5 November 2024, the Company disposed of all of its 60% equity
interest in its joint venture company, Tedahang to Beijing Boshun
Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (Qt RIEIBERFEESIEAR AR (as
purchaser) at a final consideration of RMB93,123,240 by way of public
tender. The Company has obtained the Shareholders’ approval on the
disposal at the extraordinary general meeting held on 6 September
2024. Details of the disposal are set out in the announcements
published by the Company on 31 July 2024, 1 August 2024 and 5
November 2024.

During the Year, save as disclosed above, there was no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by
the Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 971 employees (31
December 2023: 1,079 employees).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remunerations of the employees of the Group shall be determined
with reference to the market rate, and the performance, qualification
and experience of the relevant employees. Also, a discretionary
bonus based on individual performance during the year would be
distributed as a reward for the contributions made by the employees
to the Company. Other employee benefits include pension insurance,
unemployment insurance, labour injury insurance, medical insurance
and housing fund.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, market competitiveness, individual
performance and experience, to the Board for determination.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRI #HERERRS

ABOUT THIS ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, “the Group” or “we”
and “us”) are principally engaged in the provision of comprehensive
logistics services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), mainly
including supply chain and logistics service for finished automobiles
and components, materials procurement services, warehousing and
multimodal transport business and other services. As an enterprise
that strives to operate its business with the purpose of creating long-
term value for all, the Group always acts from environmental, social,
and economic perspectives in strategy planning and policy execution,
constantly pursues technology progress, environmental-friendly
measures and responsible practices to respond to the challenges that
abound in business landscapes.

The Group is pleased to present this environmental, social and
governance report (the “Report”), which demonstrates the Group’s
approach and performance in terms of environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) and sustainable development for the year ended
31 December 2024 (“2024”). For the corporate governance section,
please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report” in the Group’s
annual report 2024.

As for now, multiple nations pledged for a series of environmental
protection commitments, including but not limited to the carbon
neutrality targets. In line with the policies of the government of the
PRC, the Group swiftly responded and implemented effective policies
to integrate the concepts of ESG into its day-to-day operations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Reporting Boundary

Adopting the operational control approach and adhering to the
Materiality Principle, the Group includes in the Report its major
business contributing to the majority of its annual revenue or
businesses of which the Group held more than 50% shareholding and
operated throughout the year. Since the equity interest in Tedahang
Cold Chain Logistics Co., Ltd., which mainly engages in cold chain
logistics services, has been disposed of through public tender and has
not been operated by the Group throughout the year, the cold chain
logistics services business is not included in the Report. Believing
that the following major operations will cause relatively material social
and environmental impacts that concern its stakeholders, the Group
decided to disclose the following operating businesses in the Report:

e  Supply chain and logistics service for finished automobiles and
components (provision of storage, transportation and import
agency services for finished automobiles and components to
customers).

e  Materials procurement services (purchases of raw materials from
manufacturing enterprises and sales to customers).

e Warehousing and multimodal transport business (provision of
warehouse, storage, supervision, agency and transportation and
related services to customers).

e  (Other services (provision of lease, management and other related
services).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BE - £ ERERES

Reporting Principles

In strict compliance with the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” set out in Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Group has ensured that the
Report is in alignment with the following reporting principles:

Materiality:

By gathering the feedback from various stakeholder groups about
their concerns, interests and expectations in terms of the Group’s
sustainable development, material ESG issues of the Group are
identified and endorsed by it for future strategy development. For
details of the materiality assessment, please refer to the section named
“Stakeholder Engagement”.

Quantitative:

The reporting principle of quantitative was applied and demonstrated
through the disclosure of measurable key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) under the following sections. To ensure that readers can grasp
a better understanding of the Group’s sustainability performance,
detailed disclosure in measurable format can be found in several
performance tables. The standards, methods, assumptions, tools,
and conversion factors used for measuring the KPIs in the Report are
explained in the corresponding context, where applicable.

Balance:

Upholding the good practice of transparent disclosure, the Group
conforms to the principle of balance when preparing the Report
SO as to describe and indicate to the readers both the outstanding
achievements and room for improvement in terms of the Group’s
sustainability performance in 2024, with an aim to avoid selections,
omissions, or presentation formats that may inappropriately influence
the decision or judgment of the readers of the Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Consistency:

To facilitate meaningful self and lateral comparison, the Group has
adopted consistent methodologies for data collection and reporting
framework over the years. If there is any change in the reporting
scope and calculation method, which may affect the comparison with
previous reports, the Group will explain the corresponding data. The
reporting scope of 2024 no longer includes the cold chain logistics
services business, as compared to the reporting scope for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (“2023”), details of which please refer to
the section named “Reporting Boundary” above.

BOARD INCLUSIVENESS
Governance Structure

The Group has set up an independent robust governance structure
to guarantee that the ESG governance is consistent with its business
strategy and integrated ESG management into its business operation
and decision-making. Bearing ultimate responsibility for all ESG-
related issues, policies and the reporting of the Group, the board of
directors (the “Board”) of the Company takes the lead and oversees
the execution of the Group’s sustainability strategy in a top-to-bottom
manner. The Board selects qualified members with appropriate
skills, experience, knowledge and perspectives required in light of
the relevant ESG issues. In order to better manage the Group’s ESG
performance, related issues and potential risks, the Board shall hold
meeting at least once a year to review and identify the materiality,
risks and opportunities of the Group’s ESG issues, and review their
performance and progress against ESG-related targets. In addition
to regular inspection and evaluation of the implementation of the
Group’s environmental and social responsibility system, the Board is
also responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems, as well as approving disclosures in the
Report.
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The Group has established an ESG Working Group (the “Working
Group”) responsible for implementing specific ESG issues. All
members, in the Working Group have a clear labor division and are
responsible for the execution, monitoring and control of the ESG-
related work of each of the business unit. The Working Group
cooperates with an independent third party to collect and analyze ESG
data, monitor and evaluate each business unit’'s ESG performance,
keep track of and review the progress made against each business
unit’s ESG-related targets, ensure compliance with ESG-related laws
and regulations, and assist in conducting materiality assessment and
preparing the Report. The Working Group is required to hold a meeting
at least once a year to assess the effectiveness of existing policies and
procedures and develop appropriate solutions to improve the overall
performance of ESG policies. It is also required to report its results,
decisions and recommendations to the Board at least once a year.

Management Approach and Strategy

Risk management is an essential part in ESG issues, especially for
those risks related to climate change and environmental regulations
established by the government. Committed to integrating its ESG
management approach into enterprise risk management system,
the Group has carefully studied and implemented the measures and
emergency plans built by local governments, aiming to better identify
and address any potential, unknown or actual risks.

To identify and better understand the Group’s ESG-related risks, as
well as the latest update on ESG laws and regulations that may have
significant impact on the Group’s business, the Board maintains
stable connection with the authorities, engages external experts
and holds regular communication with internal advisory groups
to ensure that important data is shared and passed around the
organization. Meanwhile, when setting up and deciding the long-
term development strategy for its business, the Group is particularly
concerned and prioritized considerations including the government
support, requirements and restrictions on the logistics industry, market
environment for its main business segments, and most importantly,
the environmental impacts caused during the logistics operations.
In addition, the Group also integrates the concerns and interests
of stakeholders reflected in the result of its materiality assessment,
when creating, reviewing and modifying its strategy to ensure a
comprehensive and balanced business plan that is inclusive of
opinions from different perspectives.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X #& /&2 Z Y&

REBEKIIRE -t REBITEND
BAITHENMDBERTERERE &
eREREHE - TENESEKESIH
" AESEERETNRE  HERE
SBTIEMATT « BB RIS o T/ \AEE
BUE=FEE BREBENDTRE -
HEREARAEE BEAMTESEBET
WIRE - e RERRR  BRERKRHEE
EBBELIRE (g REREHEERM#E
- BRETRE e RERAREE
EH - BERREZETE - URBER
BARHKE - TENMNAFSFELLH—
% FMARTBEERNEFOERE - I
HIEEENEARTR  URERERE g

RERBERHBBER - TENMNMATES
FEL-—RAEEFSERLTIERR - &
E N o

EEG R RE

FRERSIRE  HEREREEMNEER
—IR - THHBBEBUNHIERIEZ
RRFZEROER - REERNREER
R oHekEREEimALERRE
BRER  REMRILZED T ERAHER
M ESTER - DAKE AT b 38k 51| K 8
EBE - RAKERERRBE ©

AEBWE SR MBEAEERE g
MERHEBERR - ANAREE REBER
EABRFEMNIRE L2 REREERE
BROSHBE  EFHBUTHBRIFE
TEHE - BEIINIERREANEHER/NE
EHBBAN  WERERZREAEANL=E
&fii}LE;z%(T)ﬁ o Al - AREBETRTE R

FERAFEBERBBE - FREEL
BAZERBNONZRE MRENERKR
fl - HEEFZEBHENTHERER - L&
SEMARYIREEBRIEPEHIRFENX
B E o ItoN - AEBEESIE - FEERE
WEEEEE - TaeEEZNTHAERT
R BT S AEREE AR R A& - DARE
REELEBIELZHERNEGE FEEBT

El

BB ARAT



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Goals and Targets

To steadily advance various tasks and stay in line with the overall
planning of the regional and national units, the Group formulates
long-term plans attentively in undertaking its corporate social
responsibilities. Recognizing that energy consumption, including but
not limited to the fossil fuels consumed for vehicle transportation
and electricity consumed for warehouse storage, is one of the most
significant environmental impacts of the logistics industry, the Group
is dedicated to control its energy consumption per thousand square
meter, while reducing the dependence of business operation on
resources consumption.

The Group sets internal ESG KPIs to reduce its negative environmental
impacts to the greatest extent. In particular, KPIs include the electricity
consumption per thousand square meter and the fuel consumption
per thousand square meter etc. These KPIs are reviewed and
monitored by the Board through the supervision and the regular report
of the Management, while they are also disclosed in the annual ESG
report of the Group to let its stakeholders scrutinize the performance
and progress of the Group.

Message from the Board

Dear valued stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Report to
demonstrate the Group’s improving sustainable development
performance to date. The Board has taken up an overall responsibility
for all relevant ESG issues of the Group and has also delegated a
working team to be responsible for implementing the ESG-related
issues and works.

Building smart industries

The Group maintains its stable communication with suppliers by
signing memorandums, using digital tools and other means. We
will also endeavor to overcome all operational difficulties in order to
cater and maintain our service reliability. In addition to the exploration
of alternative logistics solutions including the sea-rail combined
transportation, we have also been enhancing our support to the
subsidiaries in developing new businesses and building new facilities
and upgrading to intelligent transformation.
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Offering green services

We have closely linked our development targets in seeking
sustainability with the ambitious national “30-60 Dual Carbon
Target”. We are improving energy efficiency in the field of logistics
by increasing the proportion of new energy operational vehicles. We
keep exploring the opportunities to adopt renewable fuels in order to
continuously improve the energy consumption rate and reduce the
carbon emissions so as to minimize environmental impacts. For more
efficient assessment of environmental performance and review of
the effectiveness of policies, we have set quantitative environmental
targets and regularly evaluate their progress to specify phased
improvement measures.

Creating sustainable future

With the introduction of national policies aimed at reducing logistics
costs and improving logistics efficiency, the transformation and
upgrading of logistics services have accelerated, putting forward
higher requirements for logistics development. The Group will
prioritize high-quality development as its primary goal, with a focus
on operational excellence. It will strengthen its core businesses, while
driving cost reduction and efficiency improvement. The Group will
guide the logistics services segment toward refined management
and leverage its existing business experience to establish a strong
presence in the Binhai New Area, serving the manufacturing industry
and the industrial chain. Furthermore, we will actively cultivate smart
warehousing logistics, park management, and smart supply chain
management services. The Group will continue to move forward with
confidence, strategically position itself, and advance high-quality and
sustainable development.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to express
sincere gratitude to all staff members, business partners and other
stakeholders for their dedication and ongoing support to the Group in
its ongoing transition towards sustainable development.

Yang Weihong
Chairman

Tianjin, the PRC, 21 March 2025

FEHRARERT

BMEHEMNATFEEREZHEHBRER
30-60EME RN A EREERBERL —
i o RMEY R BEFEBUIR SR ER
B EINFTRERIEEEEWIG L - BHER
REABEMBNKE BETERS
BERME AR SRR HE A B R H 3R 15
M- AT BT HRERRLBK
BRERHBRE - BRMZRLTE(IRFE
12 WEBTAHER - AREEER R

2= 4 e
=traht °

BIE A FFAE HY KK

FEE BRI ERAA - T IRAEE
BERH G - VIR BRIG A B8 AL T AR pn R
# B RBEREL TERNER - A&
EHEESEEERNEEES - BN
RERTOMER - REIEE - BEAIER -
S| BY)REBIRIBEIFIFACERE - KT
BEXRBER  LRASHE  REEE
¥ BRBEXR BEREEEERFVR
kERERE  BEHEREERGERS
AEBEREEREREL  BRGR - 25
HERLENRBENER -

Ri& - ANERBUEBERMEET - £
BHREMNDERERTHE - BEHE
IR B REBA 2K FHAEENZE
B R SOHF

BEAL
EFER

REXE - 20253 A21H

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group believes that promoting stakeholder engagement and
being responsive to their concerns is important for long-term success
of the Group. As such, regular, open and constructive dialogues with
its key stakeholders through communication channels listed below are
conducted to understand their expectations, aiming to advance the
sustainable development of the Group.

Stakeholders Expectations and Communication Channels

BRI HERERES

il i B & 2

AEERS - R SRAARE 2 B i
EZRINFERRIELER - HAKER
BRENDEBREE - Atk - AKREEB
TRAIRAABERETEREEE 2
FERAE 1T AR N BRI A0 3 35 3 B AR
BEHHE  NESAEENAIRHEER -

NBEEEENERBBERE

Stakeholders
FESEEE

Expectations and Concerns
HE R EEE

Communication Channels

BERE

Government and ° Compliance with laws

regulatory authorities and regulations

° Fulfilment of tax obligations

BRREEER o  EERFEEM
o  BITHMER
Shareholders o Return on investments
° Business ethics
o Information disclosure
B3R o KEMH
s MEXEBRE
. AREE
Employees ° Compensation and benefits
o Occupational health and safety
L Training and development
opportunities
3= o FHBMKAEF

e RIXERAEZRE
o FIlRBREE

o Supervision on the compliance
with local laws and regulations

° Fulfilment of statutory reporting
requirements

o  EEBETHMIERERNG

s BITEEBRWMIRTE

° Regular reports and
announcements

° General meetings

o Corporate website

s THHREEASEH

e BRE®

e NARIMEUA

° Performance appraisals

° Regular meetings and trainings
° Emails and notice boards

° Team building activities

o BRI

e  TEHEgENEI

o  ETHRETIR

B EREH

2024 ANNUAL REPORT & E %




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE  #HERERES

Stakeholders Expectations and Concerns Communication Channels
Flz5 AE BA & HMEREEE BERE
Customers Production and service quality Customers’ satisfaction surveys

BF

Suppliers

General public

assurance
Protection of customers’ privacy
and rights

HENMRBEERE
IRAER P LS RIER

Fair and open procurement
Mutual beneficial cooperation
Long-term business relationship

NFRAFERE
HERIEE
REEHRR

Involvement in communities
Business ethics
Environmental protection
awareness

S [R)EE)

[HESEE

RIBRET B
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Customer service hotline

and emails

Face-to-face meetings and site
visits

EEmBEHRAE

F P IRIS BRI BES
HHEERLEMED

Open tender for key suppliers
Contracts and agreements
Suppliers’ satisfaction
assessment

Telephone discussions
Face-to-face meetings and
onsite visits

NGRS

CESYES
HEEmEER L
BEEHK

EHEEENRELER

Public welfare activities
Corporate website

SR>



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Materiality Assessment

The Group conducts regular materiality assessment, to identify its
stakeholders’ main concerns and material interests for response
and reporting. The Group believes that the goal and direction of
sustainable development should be long-term and continuous, while
the implementation of relevant policies should be sustained over time
to ensure their effectiveness. As such, the Board decided to continue
its efforts on addressing the risks and opportunities under the material
topics that were reflected in its materiality assessment, so as to lead
the Group to move towards sustainable development in a consistently
effective manner.

To ensure the accuracy and objectivity of evaluation, the Group
engaged an independent third party in conducting an online materiality
assessment survey. Taking a stepwise approach, a list of ESG issues
were first identified through taking reference of domestic and foreign
reporting guidelines as well as the market concerns of sustainable
development. Relevant internal and external key stakeholders were
then invited to provide inputs for evaluation and formulation of the
materiality matrix as below, which was submitted to the Board for
subsequent review.

Materiality Matrix

High
= BEMEMEE

Bl

SIGNIFICANCE TO THE STAKEHOLDERS
HANSBRENERN

®

SIGNIFICANCE TO THE ECONOMY, ENVIRONMENT AND SOCIETY
HLE  RERMENERN
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Employment and

Environmental protection labour practices Operation management Social responsibility

RERE ERERE TES EEERE HEER
1. Air and greenhouse gas 5. Employee remuneration 10. Procurement 17, Community
(“GHG”) emissions and benefits practices investment
1. RRSEMMEERE 5 (EEFHERER 10. HREBHEE 17. #ERE
(DRERE D EHEMN
2. Waste treatment 6.  Diversity of 11.  Supplier risk
employees management
2. EBEDRRE 6. BIZ%nik 1. #HEFRERER
3. Resources consumption 7. Occupational health 12.  Service quality
and safety
3. ERHEA 7. BEREREZZ2 12. RBEE
4.  Climate-related risks 8. Employee 13. Safety of goods
management development
and training
4. RiIrREBER 8. EBEERKE 13. BEW%®

9.  Preventing child and 14. Protection of
forced labour
9. MIEEREIL®RHE 14

T

customers’ privacy

BRILERRE

15.  Anti-corruption policies
and whistle-blowing
procedure

15, REPBBREEHRRE

16. Critical incident risk
responsiveness
16. EEERELE

REZER  AEERETIEAREENR
5 HehEREH  KEEURIEFS

According to the outcome, the Group identified four ESG issues of the
most significance, shown as follows according to the importance:

RHIEAT
13. Safety of goods 13. BEY%a
7. Occupational health and safety 7. BEEEREEZE
5. Employee remuneration and benefits 5 [EEHFMEEF
3. Resources consumption 3. BRHERE
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The review outcomes continue to inform the evolution of the Group’s
ESG commitments, strategies and targets, as well as the prioritization
of its assets allocation so as to align with stakeholders’ expectations.

Sustainable Development Goals

Supporting the United Nations SDGs, the Group believes that
businesses play an important role in contributing to this global agenda
for sustainable development. To this end, the Group conducts an
evaluation on its stakeholders’ opinions on sustainability and aligns its
business and sustainability priorities with the SDGs, so as to identify
SDGs which are of greatest relevance to the Group where it can best
contribute to. According to the results, among the 17 SDGs released
by the United Nations, the Group identifies SDGs 3, 9 and 13 as
relevant to its overall sustainability agenda and areas where it can
positively contribute to.

Goal 3: Good Health and Well-Being

To promote the well-being of employees, the Group attaches great
importance in the daily safeguarding of occupational health and safety
during operations. By formulating and implementing the relevant
occupational health and safety policies, the Group aims to achieve
zero workplace accidents and ensure the smooth running of the
business.

BRI HERERES
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BIRRF AR - AEH BEF 2 1E
ENHERT B -

AFEZRRER

AEBEXFHBABEAFEZRAR - IR
REFEEHAHEERBZEZMEERT
RREEZEREM - Bl AEEHERNE
EREREN A ERRAEE R AT
b WHEXBRAIRFEEREM AR
BRRABRRE B AEETEAEER
RENAFERRER  TRLME&E
Bl BRER  EBESEHMH17(E
ARERRART  ARBERETELRE
AREERARERAEENIFHEERE
23913 LARE AR IEH E B
ZEE -

B3 : ReFEZFE
REEZEETHEIL  AEEFEERN
FEEGKLEAETRERERRRR
o BBHELEERBREERELY S
HE - ANEEEEEDT THEERMER
KIFIEFIHETT -

2024 ANNUAL REPORT & E % 31 I



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BE - £ ERERES

Goal 9: Industry, Innovation, and Infrastructure

The Group is committed to reducing energy consumption and
reducing GHG emissions by optimizing transportation plans, changing
transportation methods, and improving transportation technology.
Moreover, in order to create new value, the Group has upgraded its
old assets one after another to enhance the hardware level of the
industrial park and promote high quality development.

Goal 13: Climate Action

The Group closely follows the PRC’s “30-60 dual carbon goal”, and
comprehensively examines physical and transformation risks brought
by climate change. Through the formulation of the “Emergency
Management Measures” ( {[EEEE#)%) ), the Group has
strengthened the training of management and drivers to improve their
ability to deal with relevant risks and ensure the safety of the Group’s
personnel and property.

Stakeholders Feedback

As the Group strives for excellence, we welcome stakeholders’
feedback, especially on topics listed as the highest importance in
the materiality assessment and its ESG approach and performance.
Readers are also welcomed to share their views with the Group at
investor@tbtl.com.cn.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group believes that green operation is essential for the
corporate and crucial for creating long-term value for the
community in which it operates. This section mainly discloses the
Group'’s policies, practices and quantitative data on emissions,
use of resources, environment and natural resources, and climate
change in 2024. The Group has formulated the “Environmental
Policy” ( (IRIRIREE) ) to achieve its goals in reducing emissions
and conserving resources.

Environmental Targets

In order to ensure that we can effectively implement a sustainable
business model, the Group has set a number of environmental
targets based on its development direction and strategic
guidelines, and closely monitors and regularly reviews progress
of the targets. In order to manage environmental targets more
efficiently and review their progress regularly, with 2022 as
the base year, the Group set new targets in 2022 which to be
achieved by the year ending 31 December 2027 (“2027"), details
are as follows:

BRI HERERES

RIS E 1

AEEHEE HedBHCEEH
BE NRAMELREIERHE
ENERE - AHEERBELAEEE
2024 F BB - BRFER
BRERKAERALRRFEECAK
RBHRSLCEHE AXEBEEH
F(REBER) WBEBRHEERDHE
AL ERAERBEIZ -

REER

BIERKEMENE B HEITIHE
MHEERN  NEECREBER
B m 8RS 5 &1 5] 3 Z EIR 5 B
B ZYEEREHESEENE
EBER - BEEREEREEER
EHIEEEER - AEER2022F
RIA T LA2022F REEF - RNE
202712 A31 HIEFE([2027
FHEHRMBRZR  FBHOT -

Aspects 2022 Baseline Targets Progress
(Intensity)
EE 2022 FEEHE BE ER
(BEHE)
Air emissions SO, 0.03 kg/‘000m? The emissions of air pollutants per thousand In progress

square meter will be maintained or reduced.

BE @RI mEy
NO, 23.0 kg/‘000m?
aaft? 28.0F%=/FFIXK
PM 1.7 kg/'000m?2
BhLY) 1.7 F5%,/ FEHK

0.03F5 /FTFHAK KEFIEEGTFHRERTRADHKRE - TR

GHG emissions 14.3 1CO,e/'000m?
143 A tiRE S/ TFHK

84.5 m®/‘000m?

The total GHG emissions per thousand square | progress
meter will be maintained or reduced.

BERBEIN TSR SRR T KR EREAHINE - T

Non-hazardous Since the wastewater discharge is estimated

In progress

wastewater based on water consumption, the performance
at this level will be followed up according to
the water consumption target.
mEREK 84.5 31 J5K /FFITK HREKEENFKEMERL - #UEEEK  EITH

BARRELEmRE -

Non-hazardous 0.5 tonnes/‘000mM? The total non-hazardous waste discharge per In progress
waste thousand square meter will be maintained or

reduced.
BEERY 0.5M3, FF 75K MRS TR BEERAENE - ETF
Energy consumption 36.6 MWh/‘000m? The total energy consumption per thousand In progress
square meter will be maintained or reduced.
BETRURE 36.6 JKELEYTFI7K AR BT FIOKEREERE - HEITH
Water 87.1 m*/‘000m? The total water consumption per thousand In progress
square meter will be maintained or reduced.
UN 87.1 373K /T Ik R R EES T F T ARKRE - HEITH
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Emissions

In 2024, the Group was in compliance with all applicable legal
and regulatory requirements regarding environmental protection,
and there was no violation of any laws and regulations that
are significant to the Group and related to air emissions, GHG
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste, including but not limited
to “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China”( {F#E AR KEAMEIRIFRZEZL) ), “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution”( (A R KRB K R)520768%) ), “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution”( (R ZE AR LB KT AL ), “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes”( & A HME &
BEREVD S AIRIBFHIAYA) ) and “Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Conserving Energy”( (R #E AR EMBIEIAIEETRE) ).
The Group’s emissions are set out as below:

BER

R2024F - AEBEETHAERK
RRZAEMEEER BUEER
ERTMERREN  RAEREH
B AR EHBER R EER EM
BEEREVABNEYAEEMNS
BERKERER  BRETRR
(PEARAMBERFEREE)  (H
EARAMBEARRISREERE)
(R EE AR FARMBIKT R RE)
(R EE AR FMED [E] 88 B2 D)5 R IR R
B8R E ) RS AR H A B &6 49 8k
TOE) e AEBNHREHINNAT ¢

2024 2023
20245 20235

Amount Intensity'  Amount  Intensity’

Category of 58 BE! e E
emissions HHER Unit Bfy (Unit/000 m) (Unit/000 mg)
(Bfi/FE5K) (BiL/FEAX)
Air emissions? BRHFR S0, Ralh kg T 17 0.02 204 0.02
NO, & kg Fr 11,6893 172 17,179.1 20.9
PM B kg T 849.4 1.3 1,237.2 15

GHG emissions’ ~ BERBHH®  Scope ! SEN (ERHN) 1C0e “EftiEE
(Direct emissions) 1,924.8 28 3397 4.1

Scope 2 (Energy SE2(RMENN)  1COg iF it
indirect emissions) 1,912.0 28 51284 6.3

Scope 3 (Other SES(RHEHN) 100 B-ElixEE
indirect emissions) 97.9 0.1 1039 0.1
Total (Scope 1,2 &3) B (&E1219) tC0.e KEE 39347 58 86260 105

Non-hazardous BERA Wastewater Bk m? IR
wastewater* 15,870.8 234 285104 348

Non-hazardous BERENS General household waste  —MRAETESIR tonnes I
waste® 455.1 0.7 648.5 08
Hazardous waste ~ BEBEY Solid waste EREED tonnes i 12 1.8x10° 51 62x10°
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Notes:

In 2024, the total floor area of the Group in operation was
approximately 678,156.7 m? (2023: approximately 820,347.9 m?).
This data is used to calculate intensity data.

The calculation method of air emissions refers to “How to
Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” ( {ZH{AEHIRE « (L2 REATRS — M8k
= IRIRRARAANURIZEIRIES]) ) issued by the Stock Exchange.

GHG emission data are presented in CO,e, with reference
to (including but not limited to) the “GHG Protocol Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard” ( CREREREETE &
EotHIRHAEITE) ) issued by the World Resources Institute and
World Business Council for Sustainable Development, the “How
to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” ( {Zi{eEFEIRIE « L2 NEAME — Mk
= RIBRRAEBUEIZMEIRIE S| ) ) issued by the Stock Exchange,
the global warming potential value stated in the “Sixth Assessment
Report” ( {B7NRFHEHRE) ) and the “2006 Intergovernmental
Panel on Climate Change Guidelines for National Greenhouse
Gas Inventories” ( {2006 F B/FERIEZ (L EFIZESHRA
EREEEEIER ) ) issued by the Intergovernmental Panel on
Climate Change, the “2023 National Power Carbon Footprint
Factor” jointly issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment
of the PRC, the National Bureau of Statistics and the National
Energy Administration and the carbon emission calculator of the
International Civil Aviation Organization.

Most of the wastewater generated by the Group is discharged
into the municipal sewage system. Wastewater discharges from
each segment are assumed to be equal to consumption, except
for segments which are able to obtain complete wastewater
discharges records.

General household waste refers to municipal solid waste, which
were centrally processed by designated institutions. The Group
also only recycled approximately O tonnes of waste paper in 2024
(the total amount of waste recycled in 2023 was approximately 0.1
tonnes).
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Air and GHG Emissions

The exhaust gas generated by the Group included SO,, NO,
and PM, mainly from the fuel consumption of vehicles used for
transportation purposes and the fuel consumption of forklifts in
workplaces. In 2024, the Group’s total air emissions decreased
compared to 2023.

The Group’s GHG emissions mainly came from the diesel and
gasoline consumption of automobiles and forklifts, natural
gas consumption for heating (Scope 1), purchased electricity
and steam consumption (Scope 2), waste paper landfills and
business air travel (Scope 3). The total GHG emissions of the
Group decreased by about 54% as compared with 2023. In
response to the national “30-60 Dual Carbon Target” and in order
to achieve internal environmental targets, the Group is dedicated
to monitoring and controlling its direct emissions from vehicle
use for transportation through relevant approaches, including
but not limited to avoid unnecessary transportation by utilizing
appropriate logistical planning, arranging transportation time
schedule, maximizing loading rates and transportation efficiency;
adopt more environmentally smart transportation modes and
develop new transportation combinations in support of the
reformation of emission reduction standards and fuel efficiency
standards; and improve and develop innovative technologies for
transportation such as more efficient alternative energy sources
and upgraded modern fleet.

Further, drivers are encouraged and required to maintain good
driving habits, including turning off idling engines when stopping
and not rushing to brake and accelerate, so as to reduce fuel
loss, thereby lowering air emissions. Drivers are also required
to ensure all vehicles are in good conditions in order to improve
energy efficiency and reduce fuel consumption. Other measures
to save electricity and heat energy will be further explained in the
section headed “Use of Resources”. In order to reduce GHG
emissions from business travel, the Group advised its employees
to reduce unnecessary business air travel and work together
through online communication software as much as possible.
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Wastewater and Solid Waste

The wastewater discharged by the Group mainly included
household sewage generated from daily operations, and no large
amount of hazardous wastewater was discharged. In 2024, the
wastewater discharge of the Group decreased by approximately
44% compared with 2023.

To better manage its wastewater and prevent the contamination
of natural water bodies from its potential leakage, the Group
installs professional containers for grease separation and storage.
Meanwhile, a professional agency that is approved by the local
environmental protection bureau is appointed for examining
and supporting sewage treatment on an annual basis, thus
minimizing the Group’s environmental impact. The Group has
also taken effective measures to reduce water consumption in
daily operations, the details are further explained in the section
headed “Use of Resources”.

The solid waste generated by the Group was mainly general
household waste and a small amount of hazardous solid waste
generated from daily operations. In 2024, the discharge of both
non-hazardous and hazardous waste of the Group decreased
as compared to 2023. The non-hazardous waste generated by
the Group was collected and disposed of by a professional third
party after classification. Meanwhile, the hazardous waste arose
from operation was properly handled according to the Group’s
internal procedure, and qualified third parties were assigned
for collection and disposal. In realizing its targets, the Group
embraces the concept of “3R Principle — Reduce, Reuse and
Recycle” and actively instils the recycling principle into its daily
operations.
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Noise

In 2024, the noise of the business activities of the Group were
mainly from the operations of machinery in the warehouse
operating zone, vehicle transportation and loading and unloading
practices, as well as other engineering construction sources.
Geared toward lowering its noise impacts, the Group establishes
internal policies and assigns dedicated personnel to carry out
daily inspections of the equipment, in order to spot and repair
any irregularities timely. Meanwhile, the Group also installs noise
barriers and explosion-proof doors as well as windows between
the refrigerating station and the control room in accordance with
the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Pollution from Environmental Noise” ( {#ZE A BN
BlIRIBIRE S 2B 47%) ) and other relevant national regulations.

Use of Resources

To effectively manage resource consumption, the Group
has established and monitored reasonable KPIs to regulate
procurement behavior and resource consumption, so as to
continuously improve the efficiency of resource use.

In 2024, the primary resources consumed by the Group were
diesel, gasoline, natural gas, electricity, steam, water, packaging
materials and paper. The Group’s total use of resources by
category is set out as follows:

BRE
R2024F - REBEXRBEEBNRE
TZRAREFEENBMZME
BEWERMEIERAREMTE
LR REERERXE  A&E
B E R EB B R A 4R R A B R
THERE  UHEEREY REE
TTHAE » RIS - AEBITIRE(TE
ARKAMBIRERBISRIE) R
B 5 L At AR B R AR A % U LA )
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5 T BB 2 TR 9 BB S AR
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20245 - REBFMERENEESR
RALSH M BN ER K
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REASHFINWNT

2024 2023
20245 20235F

Amount Intensity Amount Intensity
#E BE g= BE
Use of Resources ERER Unit By (Unit/'000 m?) (Unit/000 m?)
(Bf/FFHK) (Bh/FTEHK)
Direct energy consumption®  Diesel HERRERS  h MWh KEE 7,307.7 10.8 12,822.6 15.6
Gasoline hab: MWh KEH 450.2 0.7 736.4 09
Natural gas RAR MWh KELE - - 1776 0.2
Indirect energy consumption  Electricity ~ FigaREE B MWh KEE 2,550.6 38 8,242.2 10.0
Steam’ A MWh KEE 953.0 1.4 1,238.0 1.5
Total energy consumption HREEAE MWh KEE 11,2615 16.6 23,216.8 283
Water X m’ VAR 19,776.0 29.2 44,409.0 54.1
Packaging materials By plastic ~ @### 28 tonnes i - - 0.03 3.7x10%
By paper il tonnes W - - 0.08 3.7X10°
Paper #k kg TR 8,980.0 13.2 11,480.0 14.0
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Notes:

6. Direct energy consumption data has been converted into MWh
based on the “Energy Statistics Manual” ( (R&B&TF M) )
issued by the International Energy Agency. In 2024, the diesel
consumption was approximately 682,754.9 L (2023: approximately
1,198,010.9 L), the gasoline consumption was approximately
46,456.4 L (20283: approximately 75,981.2 L), and the natural gas
consumption was 0 me® (2023: approximately 16,980.0 mq).

7. The data of steam consumption has been converted into MWh in
accordance with the “General Guideline of the Greenhouse Gas
Emissions Accounting and Reporting for Enterprises — Power
Generating Equipment” ( (B3R EREBHEHIZE H A8 TREE
m— 2 ERHE) ) and the “Energy Statistics Manual” ( {BEIRATET
F11) ) published by the International Energy Agency. In 2024,
the steam consumption was approximately 1,214 tonnes (2023:
approximately 1,577 tonnes).

Direct energy

The Group mainly uses gasoline and diesel for vehicle
transportation and loading and unloading practices, while natural
gas is used for heating in daily operations. Due to the decrease
in operating sites and transportation services, the diesel, gasoline
and natural gas consumption decreased in 2024 as compared
to 20283. To better monitor and control its energy consumption
performance, the Group will put more focus on the sustainable
solutions by upgrading its vehicle fleet in terms of energy
efficiency improvement and grasping any opportunities for the
use of renewable energy sources and the wide application of
electric vehicles.
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Electricity

The Group’s consumption of electricity mainly comes from
the daily operation of warehouses. In 2024, the electricity
consumption of the Group decreased as compared to 2023,
which was mainly due to the fact that the Company had
disposed of Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics Co., Ltd., which
consumed more electricity, and conducted refined management.
Geared toward lowering the electricity consumption and bettering
the performance in decarbonization, the Group improved the
rules and regulations and formulated specific measures for
energy saving and consumption reduction for equipment in office
zone, including but not limited to fully utilize the natural light
whenever applicable; switch off all idling electricity appliances
including lights and air conditioners; maintain and replace the
equipment regularly to improve the performance of equipment;
replace power-intensive lightings by energy efficient LED lights;
encourage employees to adopt natural ventilation or ventilation
fans for areas instead of air-conditioning when applicable; and
actively introduce new technology for energy saving, explore
the feasibility on the use of renewable energy in operations. The
Group requires all of its subsidiaries to stringently comply with the
energy saving policy.
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Steam

The steam consumption of the Group is mainly used for indoor
heating in winter. In 2024, the steam consumption of the Group
has decreased as compared to 2023, which was due to less
demand for heating. The Group has implemented relevant
measures to reduce steam consumption, including but not limited
to clean heating radiator to increase its heat efficiency and repair
heating pipes to save energy and reduce consumption.

Water

The Group’s main sources of water consumption are the daily
operation and living. Based on the geographical location of the
Group’s operation scope, the Group’s water is sourced from
municipal water supply, and did not experience any difficulty in
obtaining suitable water source in 2024. The consumption of
water in 2024 decreased as compared to 2023. Following its
internal policies, the Group provides water awareness training
to its employees and accesses the conservation performance
among employees regularly. The Group also posted signs
in prominent places to disseminate water saving concept
throughout the organization.

Packaging materials

In 2024, no packaging materials were used by the Group due to
the disposal of equity interest in Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics
Co., Ltd.. Although the Group did not consume packaging
materials in 2024, it is possible to use packaging materials in the
future, so the Group still has the responsibility to be conscious
about the use of packaging materials. As such, the Group will
continue to research and apply alternative packaging materials
made of recyclable content, striving to minimize its environmental
footprint to the largest extent.
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Paper

Paper was mostly used in the Group for its administrative work.
In 2024, the amount of paper consumed by the Group decreased
as compared to 2023. To keep up its effort in driving down the
consumption of paper and other paper-made products, the
Group rents more energy-efficient printing equipment, promotes
a paperless office and continues to implement a series of
effective internal measures to regulate its employees’ practices
and business operations, including but not limited to set double-
side printing as the default mode of the printers, collect single-
sided paper for reuse and recycling, and improve the utilization
rate of platforms such as corporate mailboxes, and collaborative
workspace applications, enhance employees’ awareness of
conservation and environmental protection.

The Environment and Natural Resources

As a leading logistics group that moves goods across countries
and provides a wide range of logistics solutions and services,
the Group deeply understands its impact on the environment.
Throughout the organization, employees are encouraged to
follow the Group’s sustainability strategies and reminded to
achieve its environmental targets. The Group believes that
behavioural change starts with knowledge, and thus it equips
its employees who play a key role in daily business actions with
internal programmes to advance their environmental awareness
and encourage them to make continuous changes. The Group is
accredited with ISO 14001 Environmental Management System
certification.

According to the analysis of its business practices, the relatively
significant environmental impacts of the Group were mainly the
air and GHG emissions arose from the consumption of fossil
fuels and electricity during operations in 2024. In light of these,
the Group is determined to control its procurement process of
vehicles to ensure that the priority can be given to the products
with better environmental performance. Meanwhile, the Group
has also been active in exploring the possibility of tapping into the
application of renewable energy and acquiring vehicles fuelled by
cleaner new energy instead of fossil fuels.
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The Group resolutely puts an end to extravagance and waste,
makes full use of the official website and other publicity media
to disseminate public service advertisements, and vigorously
advocates the concept of cherishing food. The Group has also
established an implementation mechanism for anti-food waste
and food conservation, using scientific and technological means
to strengthen supervision and inspection, and makes prompt
reminders when problems are found.

Climate Change

As the impact of climate change gradually emerges, it has
become an urgent need and common expectation of all countries
to reduce carbon emissions. In support of the national carbon
goal and in response to the gradually increasing demand from
investors and the wider society, the Group has formulated the
“Climate Change Policy” ( {RIE&{tE%) ), and also integrated
climate change into its internal controls and enterprise risk
management procedure. The Group made a view of different
climate scenarios and transition pathways, and identified
several physical and transition risks related to its business that
may cause significant impact according to the international
recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures.
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Physical risks

The increase in frequency of extreme weather events such
as typhoons, rainstorms and floods caused by heavy rainfall,
may significantly affect the land transportation and other traffic
conditions, and subsequently the Group’s supply chain and
operation safety. In response to the above risks, the Group has
formulated the “Emergency Management Measures” ( { fEZE
EiA) ), organized the formulation of emergency response
plans, and provided its management and drivers comprehensive
training regularly on how to cope with emergencies and protect
its personal and property safety and also pay close attention to
the early warning notices issued by government meteorological
departments and emergency management departments for
extreme weather events and make corresponding business
adjustments in coordination with them. The Group has also
purchased insurance for its staff and assets to minimize or avoid
property damage in the event of extreme weather affecting
the Group’s premises. Meanwhile, the Group maintains close
communications with customers to ensure flexible and resilient
transport solutions when Group’s supply chain is affected.

Transition risks

Regulations and laws on environmental protection are also
becoming more stringent. The PRC government has made a
commitment to achieve carbon emission peak by 2030 and
carbon neutral by 2060. The Group may be subject to the
mandatory disclosure of its full scope of carbon emissions. In
addition, the enactment of carbon pricing or carbon tax may
also lead to the rise in price of raw materials or the replacement
of more expensive alternatives. As these transition risks are
potentially going to cause increasing operating cost and lower
revenue, the Group is aware of the significance and urgency to
pay particular attention decarbonizing its operations and to grasp
the opportunity to master some new low-carbon technologies
which can greatly enhance its competitive advantage and
industry leading position. The Group has set energy saving and
emission reduction targets in accordance with relevant national
programs and implemented corresponding measures to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions, integrating the transformation targets
into its ESG strategies.

II 44 Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A

BefE ~ 52 FYASR MRS S| R HHIKE
1R 3 X SRS 1 3 A SRR B 38 0 AT B
BAFEEEEBANN - EMF
ERAEENHERBEZELRE -/
FESIA E R - A& EE Gl ECRE &
EENE)  ABFARESARRR
I EHMREEEERAI#IEHR
2EIE I - R B AR A0 (A R B
=ER REAGMERZE L&
BETRAF AR R ESE R
FIst i im KRR EHNRERA
VEEEEMBBRGRAE - A&H
NEREBTREERERRE A
Eifim KR E ERNRBE S5
AR ERK - R - A&
EEZSREZVBR  ABRAE
HEES I ZERIEHEREED
BRIARTTER o

BrE

HIRIBREMN BB BIAE th M2k
A% o P BT B 4G L 2030 FF
i iE 1§ - 2060 FHR A A o ANEEEA]
BB BEE S @E RN
BIFRTE o Eoh  BREBRIRFITE
IRl RE B R M RHER A AR
SEMNERRARE -BRELER
[ B2 ] BE 28 B 8 AR AN 4 A0 AN YA
TR ANEBEH DK G & E WM
FHeEE - EHAERRRTHE
EHREENE B AKRRAER
FELMITEBLEMMN - AEEIR
BEIRAEEAOTEISIE T &R B
BiZ WEEMAEREHEULIDAE
REEKRE  BEAFZRAHR
B e kEHREF -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group is committed to building a strong relationship with
various stakeholders, and incorporating sustainable practices
into our value chain. This section primarily discloses the Group’s
policy, practices and quantitative data regarding employment
and labour practices, operating practices as well as community
investment in 2024.

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group is committed to the empowerment and care for
all, especially its employees. The Group believes that it has
the responsibility to support and enhance the well-being of its
employees and bring about positive shared value to them. To
this end, the Group has been endeavouring to create a sound
working environment, in which the occupational health and safety
of employees, diversity and inclusion in the workplace, as well
as the overall well-being of all its workers are respected and
promoted.

Employment

The Group views talents as its most valuable assets and the
key driving factor in ensuring the success and sustainable
development of the Group. In 2024, the Group has 971
employees within the reporting scope (2023:1,208 on-the-job
employees). More details can be found in Table 1 in “APPENDIX
— PERFORMANCE TABLE”.
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The Group’s human resources department is responsible for
reviewing and updating relevant policies regularly in accordance
with the latest laws and regulations. In 2024, the Group has
abided by the applicable laws and regulations in the PRC that
were material to the Group’s business, including but not limited
to “Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China” ( (I AR
HANE L EDL) ), “Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China” ((FEARENMHLE AR L) ), “Employment
Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of China” ( (% A R 3t
MEIFLER L) ) and “Insurance Law of the People’s Republic
of China” ( (P E A RHFBIH SIRIIE) ).

Recruitment and promotion

The Group has stated the labour and personnel system in its
Employee Handbook ( & TF#) ), which specifies the detailed
recruitment procedures and promotion requirements of the
Group. To attract talents who are in sync with the core culture
of the Group, the Group selects applicants through a rigorous
selection process.

Besides, the Group has plans and budgets to conduct
performance appraisals. Recognizing the employees who have
demonstrated consistently strong performance and became the
role models, the Group takes proactive initiatives to offer them
management positions. Concerning the career growth of junior
employees, the Group provides a clear career development path,
offering promotion and pay raise for the outstanding employees
who have served the Group for over three years.
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Compensation and dismissal

According to the Group’s “salary management system”, the
salary composition includes basic salary and performance
bonus. “Annual salary system” is implemented for the senior
management, in which salary standards are approved by
the Board. To motivate, reward, and recognize the existing
employees who have made significant contributions to the Group,
compensation reviews and salary adjustments are conducted
regularly with reference to the overall market levels, inflation rate,
profitability of the Group and employee’s past performance.

Meanwhile, any termination of employment contract is strictly
based on reasonable and lawful grounds according to the
“labour and personnel system” of the Group, and relevant laws
and regulations. The Group prohibits any kinds of unlawful or
unreasonable dismissals. In 2024, the Group has a loss of 76
employees in total within the reporting scope, the employee
turnover rate is approximately 7.83% (2023: a loss of 102
employees in total, the employee turnover rate is approximately
8.44%). More details about the employee turnover rate can be
found in Table 2 in “APPENDIX — PERFORMANCE TABLE”.

Working hours and rest periods

Reasonable working hours and rest periods are arranged for the
employees of the Group in accordance with the “Regulations
of the State Council on the Hours of Work of Employees” ( &
LB T TEREIRARE) ). The Group details policies
in relation to business trips, leave, compensation leave and
overtime working through “Attendance Management Measures
(Revised)"( (EEERPE (185]) ) ). Overtime working is
not encouraged by the Group, yet if employees need to work
overtime to finish their tasks, corresponding compensation such
as overtime pay or extra leave will be made. According to the
“Detailed Implementation Rules of Leave” ( (IRERE 4HA) ),
in addition to basic paid annual leave and statutory holidays
stipulated by the local governments, employees are also entitled
to additional leave benefits such as sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave and compassionate leave.
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Equal-opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group is dedicated
to developing a diverse and inclusive workforce of engaged
employees. The “guidance on professional conducts” in the
Group’s “Employee Handbook” ( { & TFfft) ) promotes anti-
discrimination, diversity and equal opportunity in all human
resources and employment decisions. Equal opportunity
policies are formulated in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations. The human resources department is responsible
for managing the relevant internal policies and monitoring the
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, as well as
addressing any incidences that arise.

In 2024, the Group newly developed the “Policy on Human
Rights and Working Conditions”( { A#EE TEIRHFIRER) ). The
Group upholds the concept of people-oriented development and
commits to treating employees with dignity, fairness and respect.
The Group has zero tolerance for any form of discrimination
which can hinder the Group’s development by damaging its
diverse teams and inclusive cultures. Training and promotion
opportunities, dismissals and retirement policies are determined
irrespective of employees’ gender, race, age, disability, family
status, marital status, sexual orientation, religion beliefs,
nationality or any other non-job-related factors in all business
units. Employees are encouraged to voice out and report any
discrimination or harassment during work.

Benefits and welfare

The Group provides its employees with mandatory social
insurance to support their quality of life in accordance with the
relevant national laws and regulations. To enable its people to
thrive in the workplace, the Group also strives to strengthen
the sense of belonging of its employees by providing them
with pension insurance, unemployment insurance, labour injury
insurance, medical insurance, housing fund and annual physical
examination.

In 2024, the Group distributed festive gifts to employees at
important festivals such as the Spring Festival and the Mid-
autumn Festival, and organized activities such as archery
competition, writing Fu characters, billiards, table tennis and
sending Spring couplets and offering free movie tickets to enrich
the spare time of its employees.
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Health and Safety

As a logistics business enterprise, keeping its employees safe
is the highest priority and an ethical responsibility for the Group.
In 2024, the Group was in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations in relation to providing a safe working environment
and protecting the employees from occupational hazards
that have a significant impact on the Group, including but not
limited to “Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China” ( (FEARKEMALZ2AEE) ), “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases” ( {ZE AR MBI ZERPI5)%) ), “Regulations
of Tianjin Municipality on Work Safety” ( ( K:ZT L &4 E
&) ), “Interim Provisions on the Investigation and Control
of Safety Accidents (SAWS Order No. 16)" ( (X2 E£EEW
BEHEREBETRE) (#BB/1695<)), “Guideline of China
Occupational Safety and Health Management System” ( {{&
X2 HEEZENLEAEEH) ) and “Regulation on Work-
Related Injury Insurance” ( { T&{RE{%51) ). The Group also
achieved outstanding results in the 2024 safety production
assessment conducted by its shareholder, securing second
place and earning the title of Advanced Enterprise in Safety
Production. In the TEDA Holding Safety Skills Competition, the
Group demonstrated its professional expertise and achieved
an impressive fifth-place ranking. The Group has scientifically
formulated a three-year action plan for fundamental safety
improvement. By organizing targeted improvement initiatives and
specialized training on major hazard identification across various
business units in headquarters, the Group has comprehensively
strengthened employees’ safety awareness. To standardize
safety management, the Company has compiled and distributed
a safety knowledge handbook. Additionally, the Group has
conducted in-depth safety hazard inspections and organized two
large-scale evacuation drills for incidents such as fire to enhance
employees’ emergency response capabilities.
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Through the establishment of a “production safety responsibility
system”, the development of safety management methods,
carrying out a “level-specific management and control system”
and potential risks identification to strengthen the on-site
standardization management and the standard, scientific,
systematic and legal safety production of the Company. We set
up and maintain the “safety production management system”
to comprehensively control the safety production in all aspects
of operational activities, and continuously improve the safety
management level to further highlight our excellent performance
in safety production.

The Group formulates a comprehensive mechanism and stringent
safety and labour practice standards, namely “occupational
health management system” in “Employee Handbook” ( { &
TFfft) ), to minimize the risk of accidents at workplace and
enhance employees’ health and safety awareness. We review
relevant policies and the necessity of health and safety practices
regularly to ensure continuous improvements of our health
and safety standards. A 24-hour emergency hotline and the
“Emergency Response Plan” ( (2R EHEZTEZE) ), which
covers a wide range of incidents and calamities, are also set up
to ensure the coordination among all functional departments in
case of any emergencies.

Focusing on embedding a zero harm culture through proactive
leadership, the Group establishes safety management committee
to protect the occupational safety of employees. The safety
management committee is responsible for the prevention and
control of occupational diseases, managing work-related health
issues, organizing safety training courses and reporting to the
directors of the Group regularly on occupational safety related
issues. Meanwhile, the Group has obtained certification of ISO
45001 Occupational Health and Safety Management System,
which showcases the Group’s achievements in the aspects of
occupational health and management. Additionally, in 2024, the
Group introduced the “Health and Safety Policy”( {2 FEHL % % B
%) ), aimed at providing employees with a safe and healthy work
environment, preventing and reducing occupational diseases and
workplace injuries, and ensuring their physical well-being and
personal safety.
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To ensure the safety of workers during daily operations, the
Group has established “Rules for the Screening and Elimination
of Hidden Risks of Accidents”( ( FilfE BHEREINE) ),
clarifying the forms, cycles, contents and standards that need to
be in accordance with the screening of hidden risks. The Group
has also established a series of standard operating procedures
to provide guidance for safe operation in the business of logistics
and warehousing services. For instance, the Group has an annual
vehicle inspection plan, conducting monthly checks on key
components such as engines, power steering, fuel tanks, braking
systems, and tires. Additionally, the Group performs regular
inspections and maintenance on transport vehicles on a weekly,
monthly, and quarterly basis to identify potential hazards and
ensure the utmost safety of all vehicles. Through daily morning
assemblies, the Group assesses its employees’ physiological and
mental state. In the meantime, to ensure the safe use of working
trolleys and improve operation efficiency, clean paths are kept
at both ends of the goods racks to maintain smooth passage
between the working area and the storage area.

Aiming to achieve an accident-free workplace, the Group has
established “Safety Production System Management Measures”
((ZEEEHEEREIEL) ), and it is committed to continuing
to upskill the managers to integrate critical control measures in
business operations. The Group also conducts safety trainings for
employees at least once a year through “Management Measures
on Safety Education and Training” ( { Z2# A =3B EHE) ),
which are suitable for their positions, and organizes reviews on
accident cases to enhance the safety awareness of employees
and prevent accidents from happening. In the past three years,
including 2024, the Group recorded zero work-related fatalities,
so the percentage of work-related deaths was 0%. In 2024,
the Group recorded 3 work-related injury case with 3 employee
injured, causing 269 workdays lost (2023: 1 work-related injury
cases with 1 employee injured, causing 53 workdays lost).
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Development and Training

Facilitating its employees to thrive, the Group sees training as
a strategic investment which benefits the mutual growth of
employees as well as the Group itself. To this end, the Group
has established “Recruitment and Employment Management
Measures (Trial)”( <3Z3IIEE#HEE (B117) ) ), which details training
contents and forms, and provides guidance for each department
to conduct training activities effectively. The human resources
department is the originator of the training, other departments
are responsible for assisting the human resources department to
implement the training programme.

The Group’s training system is divided into pre-job training,
skill training, special training and external training. Normally, a
complete induction training (introducing the corporate culture,
organizational structure and knowledge related to occupational
health and safety) is provided to the new hires, while non-
scheduled profession-oriented courses are offered to the
experienced employees according to corporate and individual
needs. To further enhance the professional skills of its employees
and meet the Group’s development goal, employees are
highly motivated to attend external training courses and take
professional qualification examinations. The training results will
be included in the training file of each employee as important
evidence for employee performance assessment, formal
employment, promotion etc.

In 2024, a total of 616 employees of the Group received 31,782
hours of training (2023: 199 employees, 2,408.5 hours of
training), including but not limited to courses of induction training,
promotion training, quality control training, health and safety
training, training for fire control, systems management training
and training for several certificates. There was a significant
increase in the number of trained employees and training
hours in 2024 as compared to 2023. More details regarding
the employees receiving training can be found in Table 3 in
“APPENDIX — PERFORMANGCE TABLE”.
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Labour Standards

The Group has zero tolerance to the illegal employment of child
labour, underage workers and forced labour. In 2024, the Group
has been in compliance with applicable laws and regulations in
relation to the prevention of child and forced labour that have
a significant impact on the Group, including but not limited to
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China” ( (% A R
MBI EDZ) ) and “Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child
Labour” ( (ZEIEFFRAZETHETE) ).

According to its internal policies, the human resources
department is responsible for requiring all job applicants to
provide valid identity documents to ensure that they are lawfully
employable prior to confirmation of any employment. The
human resources department is also responsible for maintaining
and reviewing the employee records. To avoid any violation of
the labour standards and protect employees’ legal rights and
interests, the Group’s employees strictly regulate practices in
relation to working hours and rest periods. More details can be
found in the section headed “Employment — Working hours and
rest periods” above. Once the Group identifies any case which
violates the relevant labour laws, regulations or standards, the
relevant employment contract will be terminated at once and the
relevant employees responsible for the management of human
resources will be disciplined accordingly.

Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

The Group collaborates with a wide range of suppliers and
purchases products including vehicles and its parts, as well as
raw materials for steel production and frozen meat. The Group
recognizes that its procurement decisions can cause significant
environmental and social impacts, therefore the Group strives to
uphold its high standards of business conduct along its supply
chain. The Group mainly maintains stable, secure and effective
partnership with suppliers by strictly aligning them with the
Group’s “Supplier Conduct Code” ( {ftfEr1TAZ%ERl) ). This
code provides clear guidance about the Group’s commitments
and expectations on sustainability, including the respect for
human rights especially for their employees and the compliance
with local environmental protection laws and regulations.
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The Group has established “Procurement Management
Measures”( (EREE B IEHT/%) ), in which the designated personnel
take responsibility for procurement, and the principles, ways
and procedures are standardized to ensure the normal supply of
materials and services. The Group’s general office selects based
on the result of the Preliminary Investigation Report of each
candidate’s suppliers prepared by the Operation Department,
listing the potential partners’ basic business information,
licences, operational and financial performances, as well as the
involved non-compliance or legal cases. Besides, the Group
has a qualified supplier list that will be reviewed annually against
four main aspects, namely regulatory compliance, employee
rights, health and safety and environmental protection, to ensure
all suppliers’ performances meet the Group’s standards. In
promotion of green and sustainable procurement practices, the
Group prioritizes goods with origins that are conforming to the
international production safety standards during procurement,
while putting the collaboration with suppliers with green and eco-
friendly awareness in the first place during suppliers selection.

To manage the potential environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, the Group implements a differentiated
management strategy for its suppliers to identify their latent risks
and ensure they operate in accordance with the “Supplier Code
Conduct” ( (fEERETTAZERI) ). In particular, a detailed list of
risk and prevention and control measures are constructed in
managing the potential significant risks of the logistics business
from three perspectives: procurement, storage and sales. In the
meantime, audits and evaluations are conducted by the Group’s
legal department jointly with the finance department to ensure
no illegal activities are involved in the partnership. Information
of suppliers who provide products or services to the Group is
reviewed regularly to monitor the effectiveness of the “Supplier
Code Conduct”.

The Group maintained a stable business relationship with all its
suppliers. In 2024, the Group has a total of 117 suppliers, of
which 110 suppliers from the PRC and 7 suppliers from Hong
Kong (2023: 112 suppliers from the PRC and 7 suppliers from
Hong Kong), representing a decrease as compared to 2023, to
which the aforementioned suppliers’ management policies are
applied.
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To keep up the stable communication with its suppliers, the
Group signs the memorandum with its suppliers and actively
communicates with them through digital means such as phone
calls, emails, instant messages and video conference. Meanwhile,
regular on-site visits are also conducted by the operation
department for more efficient communication.

Product Responsibility

As a national 5A-level integrated service logistics company, the
Group has been invariably committed to providing its customers
with people-oriented, tailor-made and professional services.
The Group has formulated relevant policies, kept reviewing its
services and making corresponding improvements from the ESG
perspectives, which allows the Group to refine its operations on a
continuous basis and serve its customers politely and compliantly
in compliance with the strict regulations in various national
jurisdictions.

Adhering to the reporting principle of materiality, policies and
approaches regarding product recalls, advertising and labelling,
which are not material to the Group given its business nature,
are not disclosed in this section. In 2024, the Group was in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations regarding
health and safety, advertising, intellectual property, labelling
and privacy matters of its products and services that are
material to the Group, including but not limited to “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests” ((FEARZNBEEEEE=REE) ) and
“Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China” ( {FRZE AR
HBEESEE) ).
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Quality of Service

The Group upholds the concept of precautionary principle during
its daily operations, with the potential risks prejudged beforehand,
whole process supervision during projects and the active review
afterwards as its main responsibility concepts. The Group has
obtained the certification of ISO9001 Quality Management
System. The Group mainly provides services and does not
manufacture goods. In 2024, the Group did not have any recalls
due to safety and health related matters (2023: no recalls).

In order to maintain stable service quality, the Group actively
explores multiple logistics solutions such as railway, road and
searail combined transportation etc. to preserve the continuous
supply of goods. Meanwhile, the Group also expands the
diversity of its supplier-client network and explores a new supply
chain model with the adaptation of digital storage technologies in
response to the fast-changing market demand.

Transportation and Safety of Storage

To track the location of vehicles and goods in real time, the
Group has built the monitoring system and cargo tracking
system, which enables the Group to have timely access to the
status of cargo transportation. To ensure the safety of goods
during transportation, dash cams are set up to inspect and
record the condition of the transporting vehicles, while devices
are adopted to prevent accidents such as the dropout of head
and trailer as well as forgetting to close the flying wing.

To ensure the safety and strengthen the security of goods,
an all-day security inspection system is established within the
warehouse area. The operation area and storage area are clearly
identified, and regular inspections are carried out to ensure the
effective implementation of the division and improve the safety and
efficiency during operation. The Group added 18 new cameras
and auxiliary equipment in 2024, bringing the total to over 78,
ensuring that all areas in the general bonded warehouse of the
Group are under surveillance. To ensure the safety of goods in the
warehouse, written documents such as packing list and inspection
report of the goods are required and strictly regulated by the
Group. Unpacking inspections are performed as well to identify
and manage any incoming goods with hazardous substances.
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Complaints

Dedicating to its customer service optimization, the Group values
customer feedback and formulates a series of customer service
management systems and maintains continuous dialogues with
its customers. Once any substantiated complaint is received,
specific departments of the Group are responsible for dealing
with the case and responding to the customer with clear plans for
product return, exchange or compensation in a timely manner. In
2024, the Group did not receive any substantial complaints about
the service quality (2023: no complaints), and the customer
satisfaction remained at a high level according to the results of
customer surveys.

Privacy Matters

It is crucial for the Group to safeguard the security of its business
data and the privacy of its customers to prevent any potential
losses. Striving to protect all sensitive data, the Group abides
by the relevant laws and regulations such as the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests” ( (FEARKEMBEIEEEERIREE) ). The
information management department formulates and monitors
the implementation of the strict policies to safeguard clients’
privacy and the internal information of the Group. A network data
centre is established to ensure the cyber security of the Group,
while risk management and technical incident recovery plans
are developed to protect personal data and mitigate losses in
case of any accidents. Meanwhile, a confidentially agreement is
normally signed with relevant parties for business that ensures
no disclosure of any sensitive data to the third-party without
authorization.

Intellectual Property Rights

In order to prevent infringement, the Group has established the
“Software Legalization Responsibility System” ( {E{F IERRAL TAE
FEHIE) ). Employees shall sign the “Letter of Commitment to
Use the Legitimate Software” ( {fs F IEMREHFAFESE ) ) for using
the software, strictly abide by the relevant regulations regarding
the software legalization, and shall not install or uninstall the
software on the computer without permission. The corresponding
punishment shall be given according to the circumstances if an
employee is found to be using pirated software.
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Anti-corruption

The Group believes that the continued success of a business is
built on the stakeholders’ trust and confidence. To conduct its
business with the highest standards of ethics and integrity, the
Group strictly adheres to the local laws and regulations relating
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering which have a
material impact on the Group, including but not limited to “Anti-
Corruption Law of the People’s Republic of China” ( {FZEAR
HRE R EBE) ), “Anti-money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China” ( {fEARKMBELEEE) ), “Interim
Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery” ( B8R 1F 2
BEERTT AME TR E) ), “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
People’s Republic of China” ( (R ZE A RHEME R T IEEHFF
%) ), “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” (Cap. 201 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and “Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing (Financial Institutions) Ordinance” (Cap. 615 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

In 2024, the Group had no concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its employees
(2023: no cases).

The Group strictly regulates its business processes and employee
behaviour based on the code of conduct as clearly listed in its
“Employee Handbook” ( (& TF#) ). The Business Department
is responsible for conducting risk prevention measures including
monthly self-inspection, legal and financial control of all business
units involved in lawsuits and the use of funds to prevent any
suspicious deals or transactions. Meanwhile, the Group sets
up a “Whistleblowing System” ( {Z2 ¥ #|E ) ). Employees can
report directly to the senior management, the Board and the
Supervisory Committee. Where any crime is substantiated by the
Group, a report will be submitted promptly to relevant regulators
or law enforcement authorities when the management considers
it necessary. To monitor the effectiveness of the whistleblowing
policy, all complaints are reviewed regularly to identify any pattern
of alleged improprieties that need to be addressed.
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In 2024, the Group introduced the “Business Ethics Policy”
((REBEEBR) ), aimed at defining the Company’s ethical
standards and code of conduct in business activities, ensuring
that its operations comply with the principles of integrity,
fairness, transparency and responsibility. Moreover, to raise
their awareness on business ethics from time to time, the Group
organizes training activities at least once a year for its employees,
and arranges them to learn and refresh their memories on the
national anti-corruption policies and the Group’s internal code
of conduct. In 2024, 2 directors and 47 employees of the Group
received 4 hours of anti-corruption training, including but not
limited to learning about the discipline ordinance and watching
anti-corruption warnings and records on videos.

Community
Community Investment

As a good corporate citizen, the Group still focuses on its support
of the local communities as this is an important part of its social
license to operate. The Group has formulated the “Social Welfare
Management Policy” ( (&8 REEEEBIZHEEK) ) to focus on
philanthropic activities such as aiding communities in disaster
relief, fostering a harmonious ecological environment, supporting
vulnerable groups, and enhancing social welfare. Furthermore,
the Group’s support came in the form of creating local job
opportunities and prioritizing local suppliers in 2024. Meanwhile,
the Group attaches great importance to fostering a sense of
social responsibility among its employees and encouraging them
to better serve the community both in work and their personal
time. We actively seek opportunities to focus on supporting the
local community.

In 2024, the Group has been committed to fulfilling its social
responsibilities. Looking forward, the Group will keep its original
intention and mission in mind, and will be committed to carrying
out more charitable activities which align with its philosophy.
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APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE Bffd — AU ZE

Table 1. Number of Employees within the Reporting Scope by Age X 1. RAMESHE RNIZFRRAER -~ E5 -
Group, Gender, Position Type, Employment Type, Geographical B - EFEHEA - twEEHHEES AHS

Locations®
Number of employees Age group
EEAR FRaR
Aged Aged
Aged between between Aged
30 or below 31and 40 41 and 50 51 or above Total
0FEBMUT NEZ405 HEZ505 51mEN L By
Gender 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
37 2024%F  2023F  2024F  2023F  2024F  202F  2024F  2023F  204F 2023F
Male S 51 78 209 314 344 391 155 152 759 935
Female Tt 8 20 105 154 9% 97 5 2 212 273
Total By 59 98 314 468 438 488 160 154 971 1,208
Number of employees Position
EEAY Bfu
Director

General and senior

employee Management management Total

-R8I EEAR EEREAEEAS ag
Gender 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
3] 2024 % 0235 20245 2023% 2024 % 20236 2024 % 0235
Male B 599 765 139 147 21 23 759 935
Female it 146 203 61 64 5 6 212 273
Total g 745 968 200 211 26 29 14| 1,208
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Number of employees Employment type
EEAY ERER
Full time Part time/Dispatched Out-sourced Total
2R R/ TE M ay
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
20245 2023F 2024 20235 2024 % 2023F 2024 2023F
Total &Y 764 952 66 76 141 180 L2 1,208
Number of employees Geographical location
EEAY e
PRC Japan Total
e A& By
2024 2028 2024 2023 2024 2023
20A4%F 2023 2024 %F 2023 20245 2023
Total & 966 1,202 5 6 971 1,208
Note: =

8. The employment data in headcount was obtained from the Group’s 8.
human resources department based on the employment contracts
entered into between the Group and its employees. The data covered
employees engaged in a direct employment relationship with the
Group according to relevant local laws and workers whose work and/
or workplace was controlled by the Group. The methodology adopted
for reporting on employment data set out above was based on “How to
Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social

KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.
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Table 2. Employee Turnover Rate within the Reporting Scope by Age 2.

RS EEARRFRAR - 15X

Group, Gender and Geographical Locations® & 2D E S Rk R
Employee turnover data Age group
EERA8E FRan
Aged Aged Aged Aged
30 or between between 51or
below 31and 40 41 and 50 above Total
HEIAT NEZ405 HFEZ505 51mEN L By
Gender 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
3] 2024F  2023%F  204F 2023F  204F 2023F  2024F  2023F  20U%F 2023%
Numberof ~ Male £ 4 9 14 24 30 26 22 19 70 78
employees  Female it 1 2 2 12 8 9 - 1 6 24
A Total By 5 il 16 36 33 3 22 20 76 102
Employee ~ Male s 7.84 11.54 6.70 7.64 8.72 6.65 14.19 12.50 9.22 8.34
tumover rate  Female q:: 12,50 10.00 1.90 7.79 3.19 9.28 - 50.00 2.83 8.79
(%) Total By
TREE(%) 8.47 11.22 5.10 7.69 7.53 717 13.75 12.99 7.83 8.44

Employee turnover data Locations
EERAEE W&
PRC Others Total
3 Hitr Fot
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
2024 20235 2024 20234 2024 2023 F
Total number of employees BAZ 76 102 - - 76 102
Total employee turnover rate (%) 4235 & (%) 7.87 8.49 - - 7.83 8.44
Note: Miz: -

9. Employee turnover rate = number of employees in the category leaving 9.
employment during the year =- number of employees in the category
as at year-end X 100%. The methodology adopted for reporting on
turnover data set out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG
Report —Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the
Stock Exchange.
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Table 3. Training Hours Received by the Employees within the
Reporting Scope by Gender and Position Type'©

BRI HERERES

RINBELE NL MR MBS D &
BB iEIZIE

Training data Employment type
EHllgiE ERER
Director
General and senior
employee Management management Total
-RET EEAE ESRAREEAR &y
Gender 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
53] 2024 2023% 20245 2023 2024 5 2023%F 2024 2023%F

Employees Male £ 203 105 456 16 & 8 664 129

trained Female Tt 30 54 20 12 2 4 52 70

AR Total By 233 159 476 3 7 12 716 199

Breakdown Male £ 28.35 52.76 63.69 8.04 0.70 4,02 92.74 64.82

of employees Female it 4.19 27.14 2.19 6.03 0.28 2.01 7.26 35.18

trained (%)'" Total o

RilEERH%)" 3254 79.90 66.48 14,07 0.98 6.03 73.74 16.47
. Male il 2,615.00 1,400.00  26,992.50 238.50 176.00 70.00 = 29,783.50 1,708.50

Total training hours

. Female g 849.50 539.50 1,019.50 130.50 129.50 30.00 ~ 1,998.50 700

Total B 3,464.50 1,939.50  28,012.00 369.00 305.50 100.00  31,782.00  2,408.50

Average Male S 4.37 1.83 194.19 1.62 8.38 3.04 39.24 1.83

training hours” ~ Female ik 5.82 2.66 16.71 2.04 25.90 5.00 9.43 2.56

THEIEE?  Total | 4,65 2.00 140.06 175 11.75 345 3273 1.99

Notes: PsE -

10. The methodology adopted for reporting employee training data set out  10. _bili¥keE B THEIIIEERARN AT E
above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix B PTEM KA AR B IR R - (8 R
3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPls ( Al{i#R#ERE « H @ NEA EVRRE — 5= - SRR ERIEIZE
WE -k = A EEREIUSZMEIRIES]) )" issued by the Stock wig3l) -

Exchange.

11.  Breakdown of employees trained = number of employees trained in the 11. XIlEERRMH=2FZEINZIEEA
category during the year = total number of employees trained during H - 2FEZIIEEAZ X 100% (K
the year X 100% (where the total is the percentage of employees trained BB AZIEEBEL —2FRZIIE
= total number of employees trained ~+ total number of employees as at BAE - FREEBEAZ X 100%) ©
year-end X 100%).

12.  Average training hours = total number of training hours of employee in ~ 12. F¥iF3IRE = 2 FZH A E B 15718

the category during the year = number of employees as at year-end in
the category.

B+ FRZEREE AR -
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The Company believes that stringent corporate governance practices
can enhance credibility and transparency and are in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company. The Company has established a
complete set of code on corporate governance practices “Handbook
of Corporate Governance Practices” pursuant to the requirements
of the GEM Listing Rules. Save as disclosed below, the Company
has complied with all the requirements of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix C1 of the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the reporting year, save for the deviation of Code Provision
C.1.6.

SECURITIES TRANSACTION BY THE DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted a code of dealing in securities by the Directors
of the Group, which was formulated in accordance with Rules 5.48 to
5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of setting out its own
required standards for assessment of the conduct of the Directors
in dealings in the securities of the Group. Upon enquiries made to
each Director by the Company, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the code of dealing in securities by the Directors.

THE BOARD

The Board of the Company comprises 9 Directors which includes 2
executive Director, 3 non-executive Directors and 4 independent non-
executive Directors, among which, Yang Weihong and Ma Xin are the
executive Directors; Li Jian, Meng Jun and Sun Jing are non-executive
Directors; Cheng Xinsheng, He Yongjun, Japhet Sebastian Law and
Peng Zuowen are independent non-executive Directors, details of the
members of the Board are set out under the section headed “Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management”.
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The Board of the Company is responsible for general meetings, and
to exercise the functions granted by the general meetings and the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”). The major
responsibilities of the Board include formulating the business plans
and investment plans of the Company, convening general meetings
and signing resolutions proposed at the general meetings, formulating
and reviewing the corporate governance policies and practices of
the Company, reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management,
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable to employees
and Directors and “Handbook of Corporate Governance Practices
((EEREHRTFM) ), and reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the Code and disclosure in the “Corporate Governance Report
((DEEARE) ) of the Company. The interests of shareholders
and the Company are the primary concern for every member of the
Board. Directors should always comply with the relevant laws and
regulations in a dedicated manner. The management of the Company
is responsible to the Board, to exercise the board resolutions and
report to the chairman and the Board in respect of the operation of
the Company in a timely manner. The management timely provides
the updated information to the member of the Board every month by
delivery of monthly business report and statements, which set out,
among other things, the performance, financial position, prospects
and easily understandable assessment of the Company.

All the independent non-executive Directors appointed by the
Company have extensive experience in finance or enterprise
management and other professional areas. Acting in a careful and
detailed manner, independent Directors also need to safeguard
the interests of the Company and the shareholders by providing
independent advice relating to connected transactions and material
issues of the Company and providing professional recommendations
for the long-term and stable development of the Company’s business.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Directors are subject to a term of office of 3 years and shall be
eligible for re-election upon expiry of the term in accordance with the
Articles. The Board considers that the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors could maintain a reasonable
balance with the executive Directors of the Board, so as to safeguard
the interests of the Company and its shareholders. The non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors perform their
responsibilities of developing the Company’s policies by providing
constructive opinions.

During the reporting year, the Company complied with the
requirements of Rules 5.05(1) and (2) and 5.05A of the GEM Listing
Rules. As of the end of the reporting year, the Board of the Company
comprises 4 independent non-executive Directors, among which
Cheng Xinsheng has the competent professional qualification in
accordance with the requirements of Rule 5.05(2). The independent
non-executive Directors appointed by the Company represent at least
one-third of the Board members.

The Board considers that the following features or mechanisms are
effective in ensuring that the Board is provided with independent views
and opinions:

1. The Company has 2 executive Directors and the other 7 Directors
are all non-executive Directors who are independent of each
other and of senior management and have no relationship with
each other.

2. The independent non-executive Directors are required to review
their independence on an annual basis.

3. None of the Directors is beneficially interested in the share capital
of any member of the Group or has any right to subscribe or
nominate persons to subscribe for securities in any member of
the Group.

4. All Directors may seek advice from the Company’s Legal
Department and also from an independent adviser at the
Company’s expense.

The Company considered that each of the independent non-executive
Directors has complied with all independence guidelines set out in
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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There is no financial, business, family or material relationship among
the Board members.

A training was provided for each new Director of the Company after
his/her appointment, to ensure he/she would understand the operation
and business of the Group and be fully aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations as a Director. During the reporting year, the newly
appointed Director Ms. Ma Xin had obtained the legal advice referred
to in Rule 5.02D of the GEM Listing Rules on 25 January 2024, and
confirmed that she understood her obligations as a Director of the
Company. The Group provides briefings and seminars to all Directors,
S0 as to enhance his/her awareness of the relevant GEM Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements as well as the latest
developments in the business of the Group. During the reporting year,
the Directors complied with Code Provision C.1.4 in the following
ways:
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Reading Materials Seminar

Director = REEHR HaE
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Yang Weihong HETAL & V v
Ms. Ma Xin Bzt v v

(appointed on 25 January 2024)  (ER 2024 % 1 A 25 HEZT)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Li Jian TR v v
Ms. Meng Jun mERL v v
Ms. Sun Jing Rt v V
Mr. Zhang Yan SRA LA v v

(resigned on 25 January 2024)  (ER 2024 % 1 A 25 A& T)
Independent Non-executive BYFEHTESE

Directors
Prof. Cheng Xinsheng TR AR v v
Mr. He Yongjun A BE L4 v v
Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law 7B SEREFR v v
Mr. Peng Zuowen TAEX 4% \ v
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The Board held eleven Board meetings in 2024 to discuss and decide EZEEE&MN 2024 FERLRITT 11 RES
on material strategies, material operating issues, financial issues and & * A WAUAE RN Q AR EAREE - &
other matters as required in the Articles. The Company has kept the AR&LEEIE - MK RER A REREFHATE

@

detailed minutes of the relevant meetings. WEAMEIE - RAFIERIFIEESEFTE

TTEBHFHAEHRLE -

The attendance of the Board members during the year is set out as EFE@HKERAFE L EEZ ML E N

follows: ™
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee = Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ENZEE ¥FMZEE REZES
Directors E= Ezeen ez 2L ez BRRE

Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held during tenure (Attendance)
SRLRYA EHASEETHA (ERE)

Executive Director
Mr. Yang Weihong

Ms. Ma Xin

(@opointed on 25 January 2024)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Li Jian ot

Ms. Meng Jun "2

Ms. Sun Jing

Mr. Zhang Yan
(resigned on 25 January 2024)

HITES

BRI RS 11/11(100%) N/A N/A 1/1(100%) 3/3(100%)
NiEm NiEf

EMat(ER2024F  11/11(100%) N/A N/A N/A 3/3(100%)

1525 AEZ(T) NEH NEf NEf

FHUTES

Befg o e 10/11(91%) N/A N/A N/A 2/3(67%)
NEM NEH NEH

HEL LT 9/11(82%) N/A N/A N/A 3/3(100%)
NiEm TEA NEA

BEuL 11/11(100%) N/A N/A N/A 3/3(100%)
AiEH NiER NERA

RRKE(ER2024F 0/0(0%) N/A N/A N/A 0/0(0%)

1425 BEHT) TER TER TER
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Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee = Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
BERZEES ¥HZEEE® REZEE
Directors EE E=ged 23 E-f g3 BRE
Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held during tenure (Attendance)
SELRHA EHASEETHA (BREE)
Independent BYEHTES
Non-executive Director
Prof. Cheng Xinsheng R 11/11(100%) 4/4 (100%) 2/2 (100%) N/A 3/3(100%)
TER
Mr. He Yongjun MBEELE 11/11(100%) 4/4 (100%) N/A N/A 3/3(100%)
NEH NEA
Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law B EHE 11/11(100%) 4/4 (100%) 2/2 (100%) 1/1(100%) 3/3(100%)
Mr. Peng Zuowen "3 P S S 10/11(91%) N/A 2/2 (100%) 1/1(100%) 2/3(67%)
TER
Notes: BT -

1. Mr. Li Jian appointed Mr. Yang Weihong to attend one Board meeting
and one general meeting. These two attendances were not included in
Mr. Li Jian’s attendance. Mr. Li Jian did not attend the general meeting
in person due to personal reasons, which is not in compliance with Code
Provision C.1.6.

2. Ms. Meng Jun appointed Mr. Li Jian to attend two Board meetings.
These two attendances were not included in Ms. Meng Jun’s
attendance.

3. Mr. Peng Zuowen appointed Mr. Yang Weihong to attend one Board
meeting and one general meeting. These two attendances were not
included in Mr. Peng Zuowen’s attendance. Mr. Peng Zuowen did not
attend the general meeting in person due to personal reasons, which is
not in compliance with Code Provision C.1.6.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the reporting period, Mr. Yang Weihong is an executive director
and chairman of the Board of the Company, and Ms. Ma Xin is the
general manager (presiding work) of the Company, which position is
equivalent to that of chief executive.

1 FREABREGHALELF1IRES
SEmESIMIRBREE®E  Z2RR
REFERFTATREENHFEE - FREE
ERRNBEARERELFERRENILEFT
SUIRBESTRIGEICCA1.6°

2 HEXLTERAFTRAELHFE2RESRS
T R2RRBEERAARZEZ LW

S

R -

3. BEXEAZELEALEELFE1IRES
CERGRMIABRREEE K2R
BHFERFTAZEXEENLFEE - ZHE
X5 A d MELA R E R BE AR R & it

SHERIRRETAEXC16
ERETHRAR

RAREA - BEALSLERARABNIT
EEREREIR  BMRETA/ARAE

MR (ERTHE) - ERAHERTRER
B -
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TERM OF OFFICE AND RE-ELECTION

The terms of office of the Directors of the Company (including
independent non-executive Directors) are three years. All current
Directors will hold office until the expiry of the sixth session of the
Board. The Directors shall retire upon expiry of their terms of office and
shall be eligible for re-election.

THE COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company has specific terms of reference in place,
with the authorities and responsibilities of each committee clearly
defined which have been published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

(1) Audit committee

The Company has set up an audit committee pursuant to the
requirements under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules and the
“Guidelines for the Establishment of Audit Committees” prepared
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and its duties and responsibilities have been properly laid down
in writing under the requirements of Rule 5.29 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The audit committee currently comprises Prof.
Cheng Xinsheng (Chairman), Mr. He Yongjun and Prof. Japhet
Sebastian Law (all being independent non-executive Directors),
among which Prof. Cheng Xinsheng has the relevant professional
qualification and financial experience. The members of the audit
committee convene meetings regularly with the management
and external auditors and review the internal audit report and
the interim and annual results of the Group. The audit committee
reviewed the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 and recommended to the Board for approval.
In 2024, the audit committee held a total of four meetings to
review the financial information, the risk management, internal
control system of the Company and make recommendations to
the Board on the change of the Company’s auditors, etc. For the
year ended 31 December 2024, the Company complied with the
requirements of Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect of
the audit committee.

fEHARR EE

RNAREZ(BRBUIFNTES)EHY
RBF - ARRBRAENMBEZTZERE
ARRENEEFTEEME L - EFTH
JERERRE > WABRNAIRTEE -

EFTETNNEES
ARANEBEEBREZES  FHEZE MR
ZREg AU ERERE A
F PR E KRR REM AR - BET
PAERBecRINAEEL-

(1) BRZEEE®

NAREREGEM EHEAIF5.28
BZHERBEGTMAGHEEL
[ BEZEBE GRS IKIEZE
B€  BRGEM EMRAIFES5.201&
ZHEEEYAEBELEBE -8
RZEEEHBBIERNITESEN
EHR(EF) MBFEXEREX
EHEANK - HPEREHRAEE
BHENBEERMIEEER - Fix
ZEEgXNETEHEEEAEBE RINE
ZEMBTEE  UERHASER
HEZRE  FFERFEEE -
EZLZEeCEFHEE2024F 12
A3 BILFEMKEEZTB]RE
WEZREFTZRM - K2024F + ]|
REBeHBIT4INGE BHA
RAIZHMBER - BRI AR R RAR
EIE - NEEEZRSRGEERAA
REMERNEESFRLERZ - BZE
2024F 12 A1 HILFE » AR
—HEffA GEM LT RIZE 5.28 {478
REZEZEENHRTE °
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Remuneration committee

The Company has set up a remuneration committee in
accordance with the requirements of Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing
Rules and its duties and responsibilities have been properly laid
down in writing under the requirements of Rule 5.35 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The remuneration committee currently comprises
Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law (Chairman), Prof. Cheng Xinsheng
and Mr. Peng Zuowen (all being independent non-executive
Directors). The remuneration committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy, reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives, and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages (which include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment) of
individual executive Directors and senior management. In 2024,
the remuneration committee held two meetings to review and
make recommendations to the Board on the administrative
measures for the remunerations of managers, the total annual
remunerations of all managers and the adjustment of their terms
of office, the remunerations and welfare management measures
of the Company, and the assessment results and performance
distribution of the Company’s managers. For the year ended
31 December 2024, the Company has complied with the
requirements of Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect of
the remuneration committee.
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Nomination committee

The Company has also set up a nomination committee which
is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified as a director
or member and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and succession of Directors. The
nomination committee currently comprises three members, with
Mr. Yang Weihong (Chairman) being the chairman and Prof.
Japhet Sebastian Law and Mr. Peng Zuowen being the members.
Mr. Yang Weihong is the executive Director of the Company, and
the other members of the nomination committee are independent
non-executive Directors of the Company. In 2024, the nomination
committee held one meeting to make recommendations to the
Board in relation to the appointment of Ms. Ma Xin as Director
and to execute the provisions on the nomination of the Directors,
manager under the Articles and the policies, procedures and
criteria of the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director ( (SR IzH NB2EBEEZNZF) )"

(3)
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The Company appointed 1 new Director in 2024, namely Ms. Ma RABE2024FEZRET1EFES
Xin. The nomination committee’s involvement process and its Mt - LATREHAREEZES
considerations are as follow: M2 HEBIERERREE

1. Mr. Zhang Yan resigned as a non-executive Director on
25 January 2024. According to the recommendation
of a shareholder of the Company, Ms. Ma Xin was
recommended as candidate of executive Director. The
nomination committee has considered the extensive
experience and background of Ms. Ma Xin in the areas
of logistics, financial and corporation management. Since
joining the Company in July 2023, she has served as the
deputy general manager (presiding work) of the Company
and has overseen the Company’s business operations. The
nomination committee believes that Ms. Ma Xin's skills and
knowledge can bring new perspectives to the Company’s
business development and enhance the diversity of the
Board, and considers that she is qualified to serve as an
executive Director.

2. Further, the addition of Ms. Ma Xin will increase the
proportion of female members on the Board, increase the
number of Directors under the age of 50 and increase the
proportion of Directors with a term of 0-3 years, which are
in line with the board diversity policy of the Company.
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The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) on 26 March 2019, which sets out the selection criteria
and procedure when considering candidates to be appointed
or re-appointed as a Director. The nomination committee
shall consider the following criteria in evaluating and selecting
candidates for directorship:

1. Character and integrity;

2. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy;

3. Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
a member of the Board;

4. Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives
adopted for achieving diversity on the Board;

5.  Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules applicable to the
Company and whether the candidates would be considered
independent with reference to the independence guidelines
set out in the GEM Listing Rules; and

6. Other views that are appropriate to the Company’s business
or as suggested by the Board.
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The procedure of nomination by the nomination committee
summarised as follows:

1. The nomination committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board periodically and make recommendation on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

2. When it is necessary to fill a casual vacancy or appoint an
additional Director, the nomination committee identifies or
selects candidates as recommended to it, with or without
assistance from external agencies or the Company,
pursuant to the criteria set out above;

3. If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the nomination committee shall rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the Company and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable);

4.  The nomination committee makes recommendation
to the Board including the terms and conditions of the
appointment; and

5. The Board deliberates and decides on the appointment
based upon the recommendation of the nomination
committee.
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The procedure of re-appointment of Director at general meeting
is summarised as follows:

1. In accordance with the Articles, every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and shall be eligible for re-election at the shareholders’
general meeting;

2.  The nomination committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
Director. The nomination committee shall also review the
expertise and professional qualifications of the retiring
Director, who offered himself/herself for re-appointment at
the shareholders’ general meeting, to determine whether
such Director continues to meet the criteria as set out
above; and

3. Based on the review made by nomination committee, the
Board shall make recommendations to shareholders on
candidates standing for reappointment at the shareholders’
general meeting of the Company, and provide the
available biographical information of the retiring Director
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules to enable
shareholders to make the informed decision on the re-
appointment of such candidates at shareholders’ general
meeting of the Company.

According to the Articles, shareholders who individually or in
aggregate holding 5% or more of the total number of voting
shares issued by the Company may make a written proposal to
the shareholders’ general meeting to nominate the candidates for
the Board, but the number of the candidates shall comply with
the Articles and shall not exceed the number of candidates to be
selected.

The Board will from time to time review the Nomination
Policy and monitor its implementation to ensure its continued
effectiveness and compliance with regulatory requirements and
good corporate governance practice.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In order to enhance the efficiency of the Board and corporate
governance, the Company considers diversity at the Board level
as an important element to maintain a competitive advantage. In
accordance with the Corporate Governance Code, the Board adopted
a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 10 May
2019. The Company’s Board Diversity Policy will have significant
benefits in enhancing the performance of the Company. Under the
Board Diversity Policy, selection to the Board will be based on a
range of diversity areas, including but not limited to age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. All appointments to the Board will be made on the basis of
merit and the benefits of diversity on the Board will be objectively taken
into account when considering candidates. During the year ended 31
December 2024, there are three female members on the Board of the
Company. The following chart shows the the profile of diversity on the
Board as at 31 December 2024:
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For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s workforce
generally follows a diversity philosophy that includes gender diversity.
The gender composition of the Group’s workforce is set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report. As at the date of this
report, over 20% of the Group’s employees are female and two out of
four senior management of the Company are female. As the Company
already has a higher proportion of females in the same industry, the
Company plans to maintain the same level of female representation
over the next three years or increase female representation where
appropriate.

LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and senior management since June 2024,

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2024, the Supervisory Committee comprised six
members, of whom three are shareholder representative supervisors
and three are employee representative supervisors. The responsibility
of the Supervisory Committee is to monitor the Board and its
members and senior management so as to protect the interests of
the shareholders. In 2024, the Supervisory Committee had monitored
the financial position and the legal compliance of the operations of
the Company and has conducted due diligence review of the senior
management by convening meetings of Supervisory Committee and
attending Board meetings and general meetings. It has duly performed
its duties in a detailed and prudent manner.
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INTERNAL CONTROL A ER iz

Internal control and risk management NIEERERET

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment, maintenance ZZ&@2EBEEY « S5 iR A& E
and review of the Group’s internal control system to safeguard HAIREBEEITEE R - URER R AR E KA
shareholder investments and the assets of the Group. The internal S£E&EE - AEE A EZE RS ERE
control system of the Group aims to facilitate effective and efficient KAEBRESHELRE - BAEFERNEET
management which in turn minimizes the risks to which the Group is ~ $&9Efx o 5 7 K405 ] gEpt &8 sR PRt X
exposed. The system can only provide reasonable but not absolute  BRIBHE A IR i I FE4EE A (RFE ©
assurance against misstatement or loss.
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The Group recognises that good risk management is essential for
the long-term development of the Group’s business. Management
is responsible for the establishment, implementation, review and
assessment of the sound and effective internal control system
underpinning the risk management framework. After taking into full
account of the relevant requirements under the GEM Listing Rules
relating to risk management and internal control, the management
continued to improve its existing control and risk management
framework. All employees are committed to implementing the risk
management framework into the daily operation.

The Company has established a dedicated legal and internal audit
department and engaged an external professional legal agency
to assist the audit committee and the Board in determining the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
on an annual and ongoing basis. In 2024, the Company further
standardized the audit work process. In accordance with the annual
audit plan, the Company gradually promoted and completed the
annual audit plan, and carried out a special audit of the Company’s
procurement business, focusing on checking the effectiveness of
business management, capital control, and contract management.
Meanwhile, the Company carried out a special audit of the
accounting of its subsidiary, Fengtian Logistics, which improved the
standardization and accuracy of its financial data; launched the audits
of the financial income and expenditure and operational performance
of its joint ventures, Tianxin Inspection and Dalian TEDA Alps, focusing
on the implementation of the decisions of the invested enterprises,
their operations and management, and risk prevention and control, and
other supervisory inspections. Since the establishment of the internal
audit department, the Company has achieved the audit coverage of
the Group’s head office, wholly-owned subsidiaries, majority controlled
companies and joint ventures. In order to enhance the standard of
internal control and avoid risks, the Group has completed the internal
control assessment report during the reporting period and continued
to improve the Company’s internal control to assist the Company’s
high-quality development.
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In 2024, the Board highly emphasized on internal control and risk
management, the Company continuously improved and consolidated
the achievements of the risk system development based on the
development of the “risk management and control quality project”
system established in 2021. During the reporting period, it strives to
achieve the objective of monitoring risks, implementing standards, and
supervising processes so as to prevent potential risks in the business
of the Company and its subsidiaries in an all-round manner.

Objectives of risk management and internal control

The objectives of establishing the risk management and internal
control framework of the Group are to identify, assess and manage the
risk of the Group and achieve the Group’s strategic objectives within
the acceptable safety standards. The Group has further promoted
digitalisation of its internal control management while improving
its systems. The “smart operational management platform” for the
integration of business and finance developed by the Company will
automatically consolidate business information and match it with
financial data to avoid isolation of business and financial information;
deliver real-time monitoring of capital through funding plans and
cash management; enable coordination and verification, grading
and preparation, screening and conclusion, monitoring and early
warning through budget management; improve corporate capital
control through deeper integration of capital planning and budget
management. The establishment of the smart operational management
platform, with “uniform financial accounting, uniform capital control,
uniform business and financial integration, and uniform digital
resources”, will facilitate in-depth integration of business and finance,
enhance the timeliness and accuracy of business data acquisition,
and deliver smart reform in the management of the Company. The
smart operational management platform, together with the Company’s
OA system, will establish and reinforce the logical relationship of the
internal authorization system so as to control and mitigate risks.

Meanwhile, a three-line risk management approach has been adopted
to identify, analyze, assess, mitigate and handle risks.

The first line of defence is that our department staff/frontline employees

must understand that their roles and responsibilities to identify, assess
and monitor risks associated with transactions.
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The second line of defence is the Group’s management that provides
independent oversight of the risk management activities of the first line
of defence. It ensures that risks are within the Group’s risk capacity
and that the control of the first line of defence is effective.

As the final line of defence, the audit committee of the Company, with
the advices and opinions from the external professional party (such
as the external auditor) on one hand and annual review by the audit
department on the other hand, ensures that the first and second lines
of defence are effective internally and externally.

Procedures and internal control for handling and dissemination
of inside information

The Company has adopted the GEM Listing Rules and the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) to handle and disseminate inside information. The Company
ensured compliance in respect of the handling and dissemination of
inside information by adopting a series of measures including enhancing
identification and confidentiality awareness of inside information,
prohibiting unauthorized use of inside information and giving notice of
lock-up period and securities dealing restrictions to the Directors and
employees. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company
has made announcements on inside information in accordance with
the GEM Listing Rules and the applicable laws and regulations.

In light of the above, the Board is of the view that the existing risk
management and internal control systems are effective and adequate
for the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary shareholders
meeting:

The shareholder(s) (either independently or jointly) holding of the total
number 1% or more (including 1%) of the Company’s voting shares
shall be entitled to propose temporary proposal(s) 10 days before the
convening of the shareholders meeting and in writing to the Board,
and the temporary proposal(s) shall have a clear topic of discussion
and a specific matter to be resolved. The Board shall notify other
shareholders within 2 days upon receipt of such proposal(s), and
propose the temporary proposal(s) to the shareholders meeting.
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Shareholders requesting the convening of an extraordinary
shareholders meeting shall proceed in accordance with the procedures
set forth below:

(1) if a shareholder individually holding or shareholders collectively
holding 10% or more of the Company’s shares (excluding
treasury shares), requests the convening of an extraordinary
shareholders meeting, the Board or the board of supervisors
shall, within 10 days from the date of receiving the request,
decide whether to convene the extraordinary shareholders
meeting and provide a written response to the shareholder(s).

(2) if the Board fails to issue a notice of such a meeting within thirty
days after having received the above-mentioned written request,
the shareholders who made such request may themselves
convene the meeting within four months after the Board received
the request. The procedures according to which they convene
such meeting shall, to the extent possible, be identical to the
procedures according to which shareholders meetings are to be
convened by the Board.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the following person whose contact details
are as follows:

Name : Yang Xueyan

Address : Third Floor Office Building, No. 39, Bohai Road, Tianjin
Economic and Technological Development Zone

Tel : 022-59858128

Postal Code : 300457

E-mail : investor@tbtl.com.cn
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”). The Company endeavours to maintain sufficient operating
capital to develop and operate the Group’s business, and to provide
stable and sustainable returns to its shareholders.

In deciding whether to recommend dividends and determining the
amount of dividends, the Board will consider the performance, working
capital, cash position of the Group and other factors that the Directors
deem relevant at the time.

The declaration and payment of dividends of the Company are also
subject to restrictions of the “PRC Company Law ( {FEIRAENE) )
and the Articles and any other applicable laws and regulations. The
Board will also constantly review the Dividend Policy and reserves the
discretion to update, revise, modify and/or cancel the Dividend Policy
at any time. The Dividend Policy will not in any way constitute a legally
binding commitment of the Group in relation to its future dividends
and/or will not in any way render the Company obligated to declare
dividends at any time or from time to time.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to encouraging and maintaining an ongoing
dialogue with shareholders through the dynamic implementation of a
shareholder’s communication policy through various channels. The
Company’s annual general meeting provides a good opportunity
for the Directors to meet and communicate with shareholders. All
Directors make their best efforts to attend the Annual General Meeting
in order to answer questions from the Company’s shareholders. In
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Company makes timely, accurate and complete disclosure
of any discloseable and material matters in websites designated by
the relevant regulatory authorities to protect the shareholders’ right
to information and participation. The Company also has a dedicated
department responsible for investor relations, the contact details
of which are set out in the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights”
above. The Company attaches great importance to communication
with investors and has hosted individual shareholders at various
shareholders meetings and answered their telephone enquiries on
a number of occasions to enhance investors’ understanding of and
confidence in the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

X 2R

ExeCHEMKAREBER(ERER
B 1) o RRBH AR B HH)EEERIA
BRMEEAKENER  WRARQ R
REBHRE R AIHEE R o

ERERBEZBRERENEERE
B EFERREBEASENRE  2EF
T BeMRARESERRSABENEM
ESE

AR A E IR MR RS AET(RERQ
DR R r R B R AT E A AR M
ERMR G o BRI AR REER
KA REBWIBHEBERER - B5] - Bk
/IR BBUR © BB BURT & A ES
FABRAREBREARRBEENREE
HWRNAEGER S GAERAALER
AAEEERATETIREE

REBRERREIRRZER

EXeABREREHRATRIBER
R BNBE) ST BRCRFELE - K
RAIZBRRBERERHET BRI
KeNEEFTHRRREMMEE - IAE
EHPUNERAZEIHERRBFAS
ABEIZEARRBRR 2R - RARIRE
GEMEMRAMWERTE  £HEWEE
B REENHLER R EMNATREN NS
RERFHEETENENRE - ARE
BERIABENLZE - KRR NEEEH
F BEREREEBER BEIAHRN
IR RRAER) | — 86« RAR+DERE
REENER  ZREGEABRR2ME
PERREYMEEEHAR  MWRREE
HAR R RHBE AR M AS D o

2024 ANNUAL REPORT £E54% 83 I



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRE

The Board reviews the effectiveness of the above channels of
communication between the Company and its shareholders on an
annual basis. The Board is satisfied with the implementation and
effectiveness of the Company’s activities in communicating with
shareholders and investors during the reporting period.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
accounts for each financial period by the management, and issuing
appropriate announcements in accordance with the GEM Listing
Rules for disclosure of all information necessary for the shareholders to
assess the financial performance and other matters of the Company.

The Company has appointed CL Partners CPA Limited as the
international auditor of the Company for the year 2024. Fees for
audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by the above-
mentioned auditor for the year ended 31 December 2024 amounted to
RMB1,090,000 and RMBO (there was no non-audit service provided)
respectively.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparation
of the financial statements which can truthfully and fairly reflect
financial positions of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to
the International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the “Companies Ordinance ( {2 @1&HI) )” in Hong
Kong.

The statements made by the independent auditors of the Company
on their responsibilities for the financial statements are set out in the
independent auditors’ report in this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
secretarial service and has appointed Mr. Lo Tai On (“Mr. Lo”) as
company secretary. Mr. Lo is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo has confirmed that for the
reporting period, he has attended not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training, and will continue to perform and discharge the
duties of a company secretary under the GEM Listing Rules. Mr.
Lo is not an employee of the Group, and Ms. Zhao Chunyan, the
Vice General Manager of the Company, is the person whom Mr. Lo
contacts for the purpose of Code Provision C.6.1.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the reporting period, the Company proposed to amend
the Articles and such amendments were set out in the circular of
the Company dated 31 October 2024. Such amendments to the
Articles were approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 19 November 2024.

The new Articles is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

GENERAL MEETINGS

The general meeting of the Company has the highest authority. A total
of 3 general meetings were held in 2024. The Company convened an
annual general meeting on 19 June 2024 to consider and approve
the resolutions relating to Directors’ Report for 2023 and Report of
the Supervisory Committee for 2023. The Chairman of the Board and
the members of each committee attended the annual general meeting
held in 2024, so as to answer questions raised by shareholders.
In addition, chairman of the audit committee has attended the
annual general meeting held in 2024 to answer questions raised by
shareholders. The Company highly values the functions of the general
meeting as it is considered to be a direct and effective communication
channel between the Board and investors of the Company, and
thus encourages all shareholders to attend the general meetings.
The Articles have laid out provisions in respect of the rights of the
shareholders including the rights to attend, to receive notices of, and
to vote at general meetings.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of comprehensive
logistics services in China, mainly including supply chain and
logistics service for finished automobiles and components, materials
procurement services, warehousing and multimodal transport business,
and other services.

In addition, the Group operates the supply chain and logistics services
for electronic components operated through the joint venture and
derives investment income therefrom.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Company during the Year and a
discussion on the Company’s future business development are
provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” of this
annual report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties that
the Company may be facing can be found in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”. Also, the financial risk factors
and capital risk management of the Company can be found in Note 4
to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Company’s
performance during the Year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the section headed “Financial Review”
of this annual report. In addition, discussions on the Company’s
environmental policies and performance, key relationships with its
employees, customers, suppliers are contained in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.
The Company’s compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Company is contained in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

RESULTS

The financial highlights of the reporting period are set out on pages 5
to 6 of this annual report. Discussion and analysis of the results and
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financial position of the Group are set out on pages 7 to 19 of this HRARFHMETEE19E - 5 Ea K
annual report. The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other HAt 2 EWKmMEBENAFHRE 1225 F
comprehensive income is set out on pages 122 to 123 of this annual 123 & °

report.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of financial position of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024 prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) are set out on pages 124 to
125 of this annual report.

PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS AND DIVIDENDS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, profit and total comprehensive
income attributable to the equity holders of the Company was
approximately RMB5,898,000 and RMB4,905,000, respectively. The
Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.03 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2024 (corresponding period of
2023: RMBO0.02 per share).

RETAINED EARNINGS

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the reporting period and details of the distributable reserves of
the Company as at 31 December 2024 are set out in Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the
IFRSs.

STATUTORY RESERVE FUNDS

Details of the statutory reserve funds are set out in Note 21(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of movements in properties of the Group in the Company
during the reporting period are set out in Note 14 to Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the properties held for investment are set out on pages 251
to 254 of this report.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

There was no material contract between the Group and the controlling
shareholder or its subsidiaries during the Year.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary including the results and the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the past five financial years is set out in the section
headed “Financial Summary” of this report.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

On 5 November 2024, the Company disposed of all of its 60% equity
interest in its joint venture company, Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics
Co., Ltd. by way of public tender. Save as disclosed above, during
the Year, the Company did not make investment for establishment of
other new company, nor did it increase or withdraw any capital to or
from its invested subsidiaries and associates.

CAPITALISED INTERESTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company had no
capitalised interest (2023: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

During the reporting period, there was no change in the Company’s
share capital. Details are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Articles
which requires the Company to offer new shares in proportion to
existing shareholders.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and supervisors in office during the Year and up to the

date of this report are as follows:
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Date of
appointment

EZEWEH

Executive Director
Yang Weihong (Chairman)
Ma Xin (General Manager)

Non-executive Directors
Li Jian
Meng Jun
Sun Jing
Zhang Yan
(resigned on 25 January 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Cheng Xinsheng

He Yongjun

Japhet Sebastian Law

Peng Zuowen

Supervisors
Wang Guanghua
Yan Jun
Yang Zhengliang
(resigned on 19 June 2024)

Han Wanijin
Huang Fei

Lan Lingyan
Wang Linlin
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EsgRt

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has confirmed that all the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company are independent persons.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and supervisors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company.

None of the Directors and supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for contracts amongst companies of the Group, no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent company
was a party and in which a Director or a supervisor of the Company
or an entity connected with the Director or the supervisor has or had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the Year or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered into any contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company at any time during the Year.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR, SUPERVISOR
OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law, an independent non-executive Director
of the Company, ceased to be an independent non-executive director
of Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited (stock code: 08271) with
effect from 24 May 2024, and ceased to be an independent non-
executive director of Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited
(stock code: 00639) with effect from 30 May 2024. He has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Gome Finance
Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: 00628, renamed as Tong Tong Al
Social Group Limited) with effect from 10 April 2024.

i 570 18 1 1
ARBEHER -
HEBLAL -

ARRIFAEBIUIFNES

EERESNRIBOK
AARGHES  EELRAARTTT
BBAL -

ARBEEESENESYEITIBEAR
AE—FATAESTRECEIERER
SMEVER TR IEZ IRIEEH

EBREFNEBARHSHAMIE
i

BAKBERARET LA RERK
FRAEMSEREFERARRREMBAR
A AEMBARKEGARZEITL
AARRAEEHEFINZEETRESESA
FRENBEBNARNGEERIEERNEF
BREEARENHEMERRS  THHA
#) o

EEGH

RAFEZEAEFEE - ARRAEEF]ZIE
AR AA R 2R ERNERG D EHE
BRITHZAH

fiok

==

E5 - EFaRERTHRASER
&8

RABIBYIERITE EREEHT -
R2024%F5 A24 H N BETIRKEUS A
EERARAT (BRMHRE - 08271)
B IEMITESE - &H20245F5H30
BREETEMBLERERERA
A (A5 - 00639) B IEHITE
= o [ HR2024F4F10HEZ T
EEXL@mBERAR (RORK :
00628) (&EHABBAMREES
FRAR) BN IFRITES -

=

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A



As at the date of this report, save as disclosed above, the Company
is not aware of any change in the information of director, supervisor or
chief executive required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of
the GEM Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENT POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group abides by the local laws, regulations and guidelines
issued by the government authorities and puts great emphasis on
environmental protection during the course of operation. The Group
made efforts to improve logistics efficiency, optimized transportation
routes and transportation modes, promoted railway and waterway
transportation due to less discharge of pollutants, and strictly adhered
to the principle of recycle and resource conservation, especially the
recycling of packaging materials.

Our main stakeholders include customers, suppliers and employees.
We enhance communication with stakeholders through day-to-day
interactions, and thereby enabling us to understand and satisfy their
respective needs. We place great importance on the feedbacks of
customers, and improves the quality of our services and maintenance
work based on these advices. We also recognize the importance
of our relationship with the suppliers and the employees. We have
established a trust relationship with brand suppliers. We also provide
various trainings and benefits for employees to develop their potentials,
and moves quickly to solve any potential work issues for them. Further
details on the environmental policy and performance are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” which forms a part of
this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and senior management in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

As at the date of this report, no equity-linked agreements of the
Company were entered into during the Year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’, supervisors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and the five highest paid individuals are set out in Note 9
to the consolidated financial statements of this report.

The remuneration offered to the Directors, supervisors and senior
management shall be determined based on, among other things,
individual experience, responsibility and time devoted to the Company.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As of 31 December 2024, none of the Directors, supervisors or chief
executives of the Company had any interest and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were (a) required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which the Directors and supervisors are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO; or (c) otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

As of 31 December 2024, none of the Directors, supervisors or chief
executives held any beneficial interests in the equity interests of any
member of the Group, or had any right (whether legally enforceable
or not) to subscribe for or to nominate others to subscribe for any
securities in any member of the Group, or had any interest, directly or
indirectly, in any assets acquired or leased or proposed to be acquired
since 1 January 2024.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND PERSONS HOLDING
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors, supervisors and chief executives
of the Company, as at 31 December 2024, the following persons had
interests or short positions in the shares and the underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or had, directly or indirectly, been interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meeting of the Company; or which were
required to be recorded in the register specified in Section 336 of the
SFO pursuant to such Section:

Long position in shares of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding to

Number of the Company’s

H shares total issued

Name Capacity (Note 1) share capital

RAERAF

HERIRGEE ERITRAEH

£ 51 (FfzE1) RFREHSLNEIL

Tianjin TEDA Investment Holding Co., Ltd. Beneficial owner 150,420,051 (L) 42.45%
REFEREERER AT EmrB A 150,420,051 #% (L)

Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Beneficial owner 77,303,789 (L) 21.82%

Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

ERRERE L) BRAF BERFAEA 77,303,789 % (L)

Chia Tai Land Company Limited Beneficial owner 28,344,960 (L) 8%
EXREMBRAT BafAA 28,344,960 % (L)

Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 20,000,000 (L) 5.64%

REBEERERAR AR BESRAA

20,000,000 A% (L)
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On 7 June 2013, Tianjin TEDA Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. and
Tianjin Economic and Technological Development Area State Asset
Operation Company transferred their 28,344,960 and 77,303,789
domestic shares of the Company to Chia Tai Land Company Limited
and Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd. respectively,
and the share transfers were completed. So far as is known to the
Directors, chief executives and supervisors of the Company, as at 31
December 2024, the deemed interests of Chia Tai Land Company
Limited, Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and

their associates under Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

MR2013F6 A7H KEREXRELER
Eﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂii,ﬂ%mﬂﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ@ﬁiéf
ERERADAEHEEAARRNER
28,344,960 % K 77,303,789 % & ;% 45 1IE
Kﬁiﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬂaﬂ&fwﬁ”%ﬁ%ﬁ(ib?)ﬁ
PRARF] - RiDBPFETK - BAR
E-FTETBAEBREEAHMM - 7562024
F12H31H EXEMBRAA - EX
BELE QLR BRAFREBBALR
BHERHERGIEXVHBETHRIEER
W

Name

=L

Capacity

51

Approximate

percentage of

shareholding to

Number of the Company’s

H shares total issued
(Note 1) share capital

P N

HERRHEE ERITRAEY

(&) FRESVEIL

Chia Tai Land Company Limited
FREHERAT

Fortune (Shanghai) Limited

D

ER(B)ARA

Charoen Pokphand Group
(BVI) Holdings Limited
ERERE BV IERBRA

CPG Overseas Company Limited

NEEEEINER AR

Charoen Pokphand Group
Co., Ltd.
NEEEBRATF]

Beneficial owner
EnBEEA

Interest of corporation controlled
by a substantial shareholder
FERRNZ I EEER

Interest of corporation controlled
by a substantial shareholder
FERROZIEEE R

Interest of corporation controlled
by a substantial shareholder

TEBRNZIEEEES

Interest of corporation controlled
by a substantial shareholder
FERROZIEEEER

28,344,960 (L) 8%
28,344,960 A% (L)

28,344,960 (L) 8%

28,344,960 i (L)

28,344,960 (L) 8%

28,344,960 % (L)

28,344,960 (L) 8%

28,344,960 A% (L)

28,344,960 (L) 8%

28,344,960 A% (L)
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding to

Number of the Company’s

H shares total issued

Name Capacity (Note 1) share capital

P N

HERRHEE BRITRAEH

£ 514 (FfzE1) FREHMYESL

Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Beneficial owner 77,308,789 (L) 21.82%

Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

EARERE (LR ARAF EmlEBA 77,303,789 % (L)

Sino Biopharmaceutical Limited Interest of corporation controlled 77,303,789 (L) 21.82%

by a substantial shareholder

TEAMEERR AR TEBRRNZIEEE LS

77,303,789 R% (L)

Note:

1. The letter “L” denotes the shareholders’ long position in the share capital
of the Company.

Save as disclosed in this report, so far as is known to the Directors,
supervisors and chief executives of the Company, as at 31 December
2024, no other persons (other than the Directors or chief executives
or supervisors of the Company) had interests or short positions which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or had, directly or indirectly,
been interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of the Company and/or any subsidiary of the Company; or
which were required to be recorded in the register specified in Section
336 of the SFO pursuant to such Section.

SHARE APPRECIATION RIGHTS INCENTIVE SCHEME

As at the date of this report, the Company has no arrangement for
such scheme.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the reporting period, the percentages of income of the Group
from sales of goods and provision of services to major customers to
the turnover of the Group are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the operating income of
the Group attributable to the five largest customers accounts for
66.09% (for the year ended 31 December 2023: 69.16%) of the total
operating income of the Year, of which, operating income attributable
to the largest customer accounts for 20.85% (for the year ended 31
December 2023: 27.86%) of the total operating income of the Year,

For the year ended 31 December 2024, purchases from the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounts for 54.66% (for the year ended
31 December 2023: 48.92%) of the total operating costs of the Year,
of which, purchases from the largest supplier accounts for 19.45%
(for the year ended 31 December 2023: 14.83%) of the total operating
costs of the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, management shareholders or substantial
shareholders of the Company or their respective associates has
interest in business that competes or may compete with the
businesses of the Group or has any other conflicts of interests with the
Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into continuing connected transactions with
the following entities which are regarded as connected persons of the
Company under the GEM Listing Rules as of 31 December 2024.

Toyota Tsusho Corporation, which holds approximately 36.2% interest
in Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Fengtian Logistics”), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, is a substantial shareholder
of a subsidiary of the Company. Under the GEM Listing Rules, Toyota
Tsusho Corporation is a connected person of the Company.

Details in relation to the connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2024 are as
follows:

Continuing connected transactions

Fengtian Logistics and Toyota Tsusho Corporation renewed a
logistics service agreement (the “Logistics Service Agreement”) on
22 December 2022, pursuant to which Fengtian Logistics agreed to
provide logistics services and supply chain solutions for automobiles
and car components to Toyota Tsusho Corporation, for a term of
three years from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025. The Logistics
Service Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
were in compliance with the requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules, and were exempted from the circular, independent
financial advice and the shareholders’ approval requirements. For
details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 22
December 2022.
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ANNUAL CAP AND ACTUAL FIGURE OF NON-EXEMPTED

BRANRSEERHEAERZAN

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS OF THE FE FIRIXSBERF
COMPANY
Annual Actual
cap for Figure for
2024 2024
2024 F 2024 F
FELER EBERZF4LER
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
Description of transaction R 5 Hu (AR¥FRr) (AR%TFIT)
Logistics Service Agreement 7 PR 7 15 i 16,280 4,996

The independent non-executive Directors, Cheng Xinsheng, He
Yongjun, Japhet Sebastian Law and Peng Zuowen, have reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that they
have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no more favourable to
the connected person than those available to the independent
third parties or on terms no less favourable to the Company than
terms available from independent third parties (as appropriate);
and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements with terms which are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders as a
whole.

In addition, the Group has duly complied with the requirements under
Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group on pages 97 to 99 of the annual report in accordance with Rule
20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors consider that those material
related party transactions disclosed in Note 35 to the financial
statements did not fall under the definition of “connected transactions”
or “continuing connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules which are required to comply with any of
the reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that
the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements (if any)
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2024, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, or redeemed or sold or
cancelled any listed securities of the Company (including sale of any
treasury shares).

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has, up to the date of this
report, maintained the public float required by the GEM Listing Rules
and approved by the Stock Exchange.
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TRUST DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2024, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries placed any trust deposits with any financial institutions
within or outside the PRC.

AUDITORS

The annual general meeting of the Company held on 19 June 2024
has approved the change of the Company’s PRC auditor from CAC
CPA Limited Liability Partnership to Zhongxingcai Guanghua Certified
Public Accountants LLP.

The extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 19
November 2024 has approved the change of the Company’s
international auditor from HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited to CL
Partners CPA Limited.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change of the Company’s
auditors in the preceding 3 years.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by CL
Partners CPA Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

DISCLOSURE UNDER CHAPTER 17 OF THE GEM LISTING
RULES

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances that would give rise
to a disclosure requirement under Rules 17.15 to 17.21 and 17.43 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

By order of the Board
Yang Weihong

Chairman

Tianjin, the PRC, 21 March 2025
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Dear Shareholders:

Pursuant to the “Company Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
the articles of association of the Company and the relevant regulations
regarding Hong Kong listed companies, the supervisory committee of
the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”), under its fiduciary duty,
has taken up a responsible role to work reasonably and cautiously
with integrity and diligence to protect the interests of the Company, its
shareholders and staff.

During the Year, the Supervisory Committee duly reviewed the
operational and development plans of the Company, the supervisors
made their best endeavours to attend each Board meeting and
general meeting held in 2024 and provided reasonable opinions and
recommendations to the Board. It also constantly monitored the
Company’s financial status and administered the code of practices
of the Directors, the general manager and other senior management.
The Supervisory Committee has made stringent and effective
supervision on whether any material and concrete decision made by
the management of the Company is in compliance with the laws and
regulations of the PRC and the articles of association of the Company,
and whether it is in the interests of its shareholders.

Through its efforts made on supervision and inspections during 2024,
the Supervisory Committee considered that the members of the
Board, the president and other senior management of the Company,
during the course of business operation and management, all strictly
observed their fiduciary duties, to act diligently and to exercise their
authority faithfully under the premise of safeguarding the best interests
of the Company. They carried out duties in accordance with the
requirements set out in the articles of association of the Company.
During the reporting period, the Company carried out operations
according to the law with a standardised management style, and
its operating results were objective and true. The Company had
an integral, reasonable and effective internal control system, and
its operation decision-making process was legal. The continuing
connected transactions of the Company have been carried out on
fair and reasonable terms that are in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole, and no violation to the interests of the
shareholders and the Company has been found.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Exews

The Supervisory Committee has exercised supervision over the
execution of the resolutions of the general meeting and considers
that the Board is capable of executing the resolutions of the general
meeting diligently.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the performance and
the operating results achieved by the Company in 2024, and has full
confidence in the future development of the Company.

During the Year, the Supervisory Committee of the Company will
continue to perform its duties pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations by adhering to the fiduciary duties and strengthening its
supervisory work so as to safeguard and protect the interests of the
Company and the shareholders, fuffil its responsibility in an honest and
diligent manner and hence achieve good performance in every aspect.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Wang Guanghua
Chairman

Tianjin, the PRC, 21 March 2025
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ES  EENEREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yang Weihong ($#4L), aged 56, joined the Company on
20 March 2018 and as appointed as the general manager of the
Company (which is equivalent to the position of chief executive),
and was appointed as the executive Director and Chairman of the
Company on 11 May 2018. He graduated from the Department of
Computing Mathematics and Its Application Software of the Faculty of
Mathematics of Nankai University in July 1990 with a science bachelor
degree, and graduated with a master’s degree in public management
from Renmin University of China in 2005 and graduated from the
School of Law of Nankai University with a master’s degree in law (civil
law and business law) in 2008. He served as a staff at the planning
department of Tianjin Dynamic Factory (KZ8) H# st EIEE) from
July 1990 to October 1992, a clerk at Tianjin Talent Exchange and
Service Center (R3EM A A MAREEH L) from October 1992 to June
1995, and worked at the Labor Personnel Bureau of Tianjin Economic
and Technological Development Area from June 1995 to June 2002,
where he held various positions including a clerk at the Employment
Agency (B2 4R FT), deputy director of the General Office (presiding),
head of the Labor Protection Supervision Department (4 E){x - &5
22%}), head of the Special Equipment Inspection and Management
Station (FF7E =& 1% 81 & 32 1), head of the Social Security Division (tt
ZIRERY), etc. From 2002 to March 2018, he worked for Tianjin TEDA
Investment Holdings Co., Ltd., and held various positions including
deputy manager of the Human Resources Department (presiding),
the manager, director of the General Office and the head of the Party
Committee office, etc. During the period, he also served as the director
and a member of the appraisal and remuneration committee of the
board of directors of Tianjin TEDA Investment Holdings Co., Ltd., and
served as the director of Tianjin Teda Football Club Co., Ltd. (K%
= R ERZE S ABR 2 7). He resigned as the general manager of the
Company in July 2023. Currently, he serves as the Secretary of the
Party General Branch, Chairman of the Company and the chairman
of Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd., Tianjin Teda Alps Logistics Co.,
Ltd. and Dalian Alps Teda Logistics Co., Ltd. (all being subsidiaries of
the Group).
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EX EEREREEE

Ms. Ma Xin (5/iX), aged 41, joined the Company in July 2023 and
was appointed as the deputy general manager of the Company
(presiding work), and then as the executive Director and general
manager of the Company on 25 January 2024 (which is equivalent to
the position of chief executive). She graduated from Nankai University
majoring in logistics with a master’s degree in economics. She was
a senior auditor of Deloitte Huayong Accounting Firm Limited in
Tianjin, the minister of finance and assistant to general manager of
Tianjin Jinran Public Utilities Company Limited (stock code: 01265,
Hong Kong Stock Exchange), the manager of financial management
department of the Finance Center of Southern Entrepreneurship
(Tianjin) Technology Development Co., Ltd., the assistant to the
minister of the asset management department of Tianjin Tsinlien
Investment Holding Co., Ltd. and the chief financial officer of Tianjin
Teda Asset Operation Management Co., Ltd. She is currently the
deputy secretary of Party Branch, executive Director, and general
manager of the Company and the directors of Tianjin Teda Alps
Logistics Co., Ltd. and Dalian Alps Teda Logistics Co., Ltd. (all being
subsidiaries of the Group).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Jian (Z{#), aged 45, joined the Company in May 2019. He
graduated from Beijing University of Chemical Technology in 2001
with a bachelor’s degree in management engineering. He served as
the Accounting Manager of the Enterprise Management Department
of Beijing Capital Agribusiness Group, the Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
of the Finance Department of Hulunbeier Sanyuan Dairy Co., Ltd.,
the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Finance Department of Beijing
Taiyang Pharmaceutical Industry Co., Ltd., the Senior Manager of the
Finance Department of Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Group and the Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) of CPTP Capital. He is currently the Deputy
General Manager of New Business Cluster of Chia Tai Pharmaceutical
Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Meng Jun (&%), aged 45, joined the Company in June 2023.
Member of China Zhigong Party, member of Beijing Youth Working
Committee of China Zhigong Party, member of Beijing Tongzhou
Youth Federation, fund practitioner of Asset Management Association
of China, Certified Management Accountant of the United States
(CMA). She graduated from Jilin University with a bachelor’s degree
in international trade in 2001 and graduated from University of Bath
in the United Kingdom with a Master’s degree in corporate finance in
2002. She has worked as the investment manager of the international
business department of Delong International Strategic Investment
Co., Ltd., and the assistant to the president of Chia Tai Land Co., Ltd.
She is currently the senior vice president of Chia Tai Bright Investment
Co., Ltd. and also holds key positions in the Edge Fund established
by Chia Tai and a Japanese investment organization, as well as the
Vietnam Development Investment Fund established by Chia Tai and a
Vietnamese investment organization.

Ms. Sun Jing (&), aged 44, joined the Company in May 2023,
holding the title of economist. In 2008, she graduated from St. Mary’s
University in Canada, majoring in finance, and obtained a master’s
degree. She served as an office deputy director of Tianjin Teda
Gas Company Limited* (KEZREMRERE LA F]), a member
of the asset management department of Tianjin TEDA Investment
Holdings Company Limited and a director of Tianjin Binhai Energy
& Development Co., Ltd* (KE&EEFLRZERKRMHDERAR]) (stock
code: 000695, Shenzhen Stock Exchange). She is currently the
deputy general manager of the asset management department of
Tianjin TEDA Investment Holdings Co., Ltd., a director of Tianjin TEDA
Industrial Group Co., Ltd.* (RKEFEE X LB BRRAF]), Tanjn Teda
Assets Operation Management Co., Ltd.* (K2R EZEEEESEIEAR
/A a]) and Tianjin Teda Construction Group Co., Ltd..
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EX EEREREEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Prof. Cheng Xinsheng (f2%74), aged 62, joined the Company in
June 2014. He is a Doctor and Postdoc of Management. From 2004
to 2005, he was the visiting scholar of University of Alberta in Canada
and the editor of Nankai Business Review and was honored with the
awards of outstanding result in social science for several times. In
1994, he became a fellow member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He was in charge of four research projects in
management funded by National Natural Science Foundation and
four projects funded by the Foundation of the Ministry of Education.
He also participated in over ten key topic projects funded by National
Natural Science Foundation, National Philosophy and Social Science
Foundation and the Humanities and Social Sciences Foundation of
the Ministry of Education. He has published five books and over 50
articles and has a translated work. He was an independent director
of Offshore QOil Engineering Co., Ltd (Stock Code: 600583, Shanghai
Stock Exchange). He is currently a Professor and doctoral supervisor
of Accounting Department of Business School of Nankai University.
He is also an independent director of CSSC (Handan) Pairui Special
Gas Co., Ltd. (s (HED) EKinERERMKDBRAF) and an
external supervisor of Hua Xia Bank Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600015,
Shanghai Stock Exchange), and a member of the Chinese Academy of
Management.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. He Yongjun ({18 &), aged 46, joined the Company in June 2022.
He graduated in Technical Economics and Management from Tianjin
University (&2 KX 2) with a master’'s degree and a doctorate degree.
He served as the deputy general manager of Tianjin Haitai Advantage
Venture Capital Management Company Limited* (K)&/8Z= B 258l %
EEEARAT). He is currently the chairman of Tianjin Ruiyi Jinrong
Enterprise Management Consulting Company Limited* (K2 Z £
AP EERFE AR AR, the general manager of Tianjin Beiyang
Haitang Venture Capital Management Company Limited* (FXZ1bL)F&
HAIFEREEIBHRAF), the partner of Beiyang Haitang Fund* (1t
JGEE L), the general manager of Tianjin University Science Park* (<
R ARBEHE) (Nankai Park, Jinnan Park , Tiankai Park), the director
of Tianjin Science and Technology and Finance Center* (K2R %4
B A L), and the chairman and the executive director of the Tianjin
Zhongzheng Logistics Company Limited* (K2 [E¥i7 A R A 7).
He is also an independent director of Tianjin Rianlon New Materials
Company Limited*(KZ % B+ %5 BBR A 7)) (stock code:
300596, Shenzhen Stock Exchange ChiNext) and Tianjin King-meter
Technology Company Limited* (K2 KIFEHEIRMH B R A F]) (stock
code: 872249, National Equities Exchange and Quotations).
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EX EEREREEE

Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law (% 3 #E), aged 73, joined the Company
in August 2012. He obtained his Doctorate degree of Philosophy
in mechanical/industrial engineering from the University of Texas at
Austin in 1976. He was a professor of the Department of Decision
Sciences and Managerial Economics of the Chinese University of
Hong Kong from 1986 to 2012. Mr. Law was the Associate Dean
and subsequently the Dean of the Faculty of Business Administration
of the Chinese University of Hong Kong from 1993 to 2002. Prior to
returning to Hong Kong, he was the director of Operations Research
at the Cullen College of Engineering and director of Graduate Studies
in Industrial Engineering at the University of Houston, and was also
involved with the U.S. Space Program in his career with McDonnell
Douglas and Ford Aerospace in the United States. He was the
consultant of various corporations in Hong Kong and overseas.
He is also active in public services, having served as a member of
the Provisional Regional Council of The Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region and various other committees,
and is also active on the boards of profit, non-profit and charitable
organisations in Hong Kong and overseas.

From August 2003 to January 2006 and September 2008 to 24 May
2024, he was an independent non-executive director of Global Digital
Creations Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 08271). From September
2013 to 30 May 2024, he acted as independent non-executive director
of Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited (Stock Code: 00639).

He currently serves as an independent non-executive director of
Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 03382),
Regal Hotels International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00078),
Binhai Investment Company Limited (Stock Code: 02886) and Gome
Finance Technology Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 00628, renamed as Tong
Tong Al Social Group Limited), all being companies listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. He also serves as an independent supervisor
of Beijing Capital International Airport Company Limited (Stock Code:
00694).
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Peng Zuowen (Z1EX), aged 47, joined the Company in
November 2018, graduated in Information Management from Beijing
Forestry University (At RARZ K E2) in July 2000. He had worked as
the Deputy Director of the Information Center of China Flower and
Gardening News ( {(FREITEFF ) {527 1Y), a newspaper affiiated to
the Economic Daily Newspaper Group (4% A i 2 5 ®). He is now
the General Manager of Zhongke Dianji (Beijing) Technology Company
Limited (PRIZHE (AL ) EHE B R A R]) and the Chairman of China
Urban Economics Research Institute. He was the author of “Big Data
Analysis by Industry” ( {XEUE D 1T AKEAT) ) and the business
definer of “big data”. He is dedicated to three key areas including
the management and the practical application of big data in various
industries, the research and practice and application of big data
empowerment in urban industrial development, and the construction
and operation of smart cities by new-generation information
technologies. As a result of his contribution to the aforesaid three key
areas, he was interviewed in the CCTV program “Beyond” (CCTV (i
#) #E) and awarded with the title “China Outstanding Innovative
Entrepreneur of the Year 2017”. He was invited to deliver a lecture in
the topic “Digital Economy Empowers Urban Industrial Development
and Accelerates the Formation of New Quality Productive Forces”
at the Study Session (Expanded) of the Theoretical Learning Center
Group of the Party Committee in over 30 cities across the country,
including Ezhou, Zhoukou, Yunfu, Fengtai District of Beijing, and
Ninghe District of Tianjin, promoting the implementation of the “Special
Initiative on Digital Intelligence Empowering High-Quality Urban
Industrial Development “ at the municipal and district/county levels.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EX EEREREEE

SUPERVISORS

Shareholder Representative Supervisors

Mr. Wang Guanghua (£ Y #), aged 40, joined the Company in May
2021 and was appointed as the Chairman of the Supervisory Board.
He is an accountant. He graduated from Jilin College of Construction
and Engineering with a bachelor’s degree in business administration
in 2007 and graduated from Jilin University with a master’s degree
in accounting in 2009. He has worked in Tianjin TEDA Investment
Holdings Co., Ltd. as a staff member of the Audit Department, a staff
member of the Office Secretary Section, a staff member of the Board
Office, a Deputy Director of the Board Office and a Director of the
Board Office. He is currently the Director of the Integrity Party Office,
the Director of the Party Committee Inspection Work Office, the direct
secretary of the Discipline Inspection Committee and the Director
of the Audit Centre of TEDA Holding, as well as a director of Tianjin
Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (K2 E # £ B HR /A 7)), a chairman
of the Supervisory Committee of Tianjin TEDA City Comprehensive
Development Investment Co., Ltd. (K ERER T AFHEREEE
B R A7), the chairman of the Supervisory Committee of Tianjin Teda
Company* (KEZEMH B R F]), and the supervisor of Tianjin
HONGDA Enterprises Management Company Limited (& &sAZE (b2
EEBRAA).

Mr. Han Wanijin (82& %), aged 59, joined the Company in June
2024. He is a postgraduate and a senior economist. He was the office
secretary and deputy director of Tianjin Harbour Second Stevedoring
Company Limited, head of office department of Tianjin Port (Group)
Company Limited, deputy director of the chairman’s office of Tianjin
Port Holdings Company Limited (Stock code: 600717, Shanghai
Stock Exchange), director at the Tianjin representative office of Tianjin
Port Development Holdings Limited (Stock code: 3382, HKEX),
deputy secretary of the party committee and secretary of the discipline
inspection committee of Tianjin Port Union Eurasia Container Terminal
Co., Ltd. He also served as the Supervisor of the Company from 12
November 2018 to 11 August 2021. He is currently the second level
full-time director supervisor of Tianjin Port Co., Ltd.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yan Jun (B ), aged 50, joined the Company in June 2020. He
graduated from Jilin University of Finance and Economics (formerly
Changchun Tax College), with a bachelor’s degree in economics,
and is an international Certified Internal Auditor (“CIA”). He previously
served as the head of the audit department of Ninetowns Internet
Technology Group Co., Ltd. (NASDAQ: Nine), the head of the audit
department of CAR Inc. and the senior audit director of Lashou
Network Technology Co., Ltd. (R FHEF T B R A Rl). He currently
serves as the deputy general manager of New Business Cluster of
Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Staff Representative Supervisors

Mr. Huang Fei (&%), aged 38, joined the Company in April 2019
and became a staff representative supervisor of the Company in June
2020. He graduated from Tianjin University of Finance and Economics
in 2009 majoring in accounting (international accounting) with a
bachelor’s degree in management. He is an assistant accountant and
human resources professional (second-level). He was a staff member
of the human resources department and the organization department
of the Party Committee of Tianjin TEDA Investment Holdings Co.,
Ltd. from 2009 to 2019. He served as the assistant of the asset
management department and deputy head of audit department
of the Company. He currently serves as the director of corporate
management department and the League branch secretary of the
Company, as well as a director of TEDA General Bonded Warehouse
Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Ms. Lan Lingyan (B8 #E), aged 43, joined the Company in August
2006 and became a staff representative supervisor of the Company in
June 2020. She graduated from Sichuan University in 2006 majoring
in engineering and technology with a bachelor’s degree in engineering.
She served as an administrative secretary, business manager of the
Party and mass work department, deputy secretary of the corporate
joint Party branch of the Company, the party-building and discipline
inspector and the deputy head of the department of Party-masses
work. She is currently the discipline officer of the Company’s labor
union and the head of the department of Party-masses work.

Ms. Wang Linlin (E##), aged 41, joined the Company in February
2010 and became a staff representative supervisor in June 2017.
She graduated from the Zhongnan University of Economics and Law
in 2007 with a bachelor’'s degree (major in law); she also obtained
a bachelor’s degree (major in psychology) from the Central China
Normal University. Ms. Wang passed the National Judicial Exams of
the People’s Republic of China in 2009. She served as a specialist of
the risk management department, legal supervisor of the President’s
Office, the legal supervisor of the legal and risk control department and
the legal supervisor of the general office of the Company. She currently
serves as legal risk controller of legal internal audit department of the
Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yang Weihong (%18 4L), aged 56, the secretary of general
Party and Chairman of the Company. He holds the overall operation
of the Company. His biography is set out in the sub-section headed
“Executive Directors” above.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Ma Xin (5/iX), aged 41, the deputy secretary of general Party,
executive Director and general manager of the Company. She holds
overall operation of the Company. Her biography is set out in the sub-
section headed “Executive Directors” above.

Ms. Zhao Chunyan (&), aged 51, joined the Company in
November 2023 and was appointed as the vice general manager
of the Company. She is an accountant. She graduated from Tianjin
University of Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s degree,
majoring in accounting. She previously served at Tianjin Teda
Company* (K:ZZ=ERHBRAF]), gaining experience in financial
management and related fields. She is currently the vice general
manager of the Company and the Chairlady of the Supervisory Board
of Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group.

Mr. Zheng Yuying (#8558), aged 46, joined the Company in July
2022 and was appointed as the assistant to general manager of the
Company. He was appointed as the vice general manager of the
Company in July 2024. He holds a Ph.D. in Economics, is a Senior
Economist, and a Financial Risk Manager. He graduated from the
International Finance Department of the School of Economics at Fudan
University, majoring in Finance. He has held positions at Tianjin Teda
Investment Holding Co., Ltd. (RKEZFEHREZER AR AF]) and its
subsidiaries, gaining extensive experience in investment management
and various related fields. He also served as a director of the Company
from 11 May 2018 to 15 September 2022. He is currently the vice
general manager of the Company, the Party Branch Secretary and
Chairman of TEDA General Bonded Warehouse Co., Ltd., and a
director of Tianjin Yuan Da Xian Dai Logistics Co., Ltd., all being wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company.

* For identification purposes only
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B M B BAT R

\\CL Part
) artners

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

TIANJIN BINHAI TEDA LOGISTICS (GROUP) CORPORATION
LIMITED

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tianjin Binhai
Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
122 to 282, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view, of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B RBET R &

RSB SR

FRREAFRERERMANEXZHE - &
BAHAREHUBRENBARA/EE
MEIR - ZFINBASHYBHREUER
BEE)RBNHERERREEZESEHE -
MAERZETREBELER -

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of trade, bills and other receivables

Refer to note 4.1(b) and note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had net trade,
bills and other receivables of RMB563,435,000 (2023:
RMB482,087,000) and aggregated provision for
impairment of approximately RMB295,702,000 (2023:
RMB298,993,000).

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group
to the customers ranged between 30 to 180 days.
Management applied judgement in assessing the
expected credit losses (“ECL”). Receivables with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection
are assessed individually for provision for impairment
allowance. ECL are also estimated by grouping the
remaining trade, bills and other receivables based
on shared credit risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking into account
the nature of the customer, its business and its ageing
category, and applying expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of the trade, bills and
other receivables. The ECL rates are determined based
on historical credit losses experienced and are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking information
such as macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the trade, bills and other
receivables.

We focused on this area due to the impairment
assessment of trade, bills and other receivables under
the expected credit losses model involved the use of
significant management judgements and estimates.

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of

trade, bills and other receivables included:

e Understanding the key controls that the Group has
implemented to manage and monitor its credit risk;

e Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile
of the trade, bills and other receivables as at 31
December 2024 to the underlying financial records
and post year-end settlements to bank receipts;

* Inquiring of management for the status of each of
the material trade, bills and other receivables past
due as at year end and corroborating explanations
from management, understanding on-going
business relationship with the customers based on
trade records, checking historical and subsequent
settlement records of and other correspondence
with the customers; and

e Assessing the appropriateness of the ECL
provisioning methodology, examining the key
data inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine the
expected credit losses.

We found that the management judgments and
estimates used to assess the recoverability of the trade,
bills and other receivables and determine the impairment
provision to be supportable by available evidence.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation on the investment properties

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2024, management has estimated
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties of
approximately RMB407,000,000 (2023: approximately
RMB412,200,000) with a net loss on fair value changes
of approximately RMB5,200,000 (2023: approximately
RMB2,183,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The valuations are dependent on certain key
assumptions that require significant management
judgement, including reversionary yield and rental
income from future reversion leases in light of current
market condition.

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation
on the investment properties included:

® assessing the competence, capability, experience,
independence and objectivity of the external
property valuer;

®  evaluating the valuation methodology used by the
external property valuer based on our knowledge
of the property industry;

e checking, on a sample basis, the tenancy
information included in the valuation models,
which included committed rents and occupancy
rates, with underlying contracts and related
documentation; and

e  discussing the valuations with the external property
valuer and challenging key estimates adopted in
the valuations, including those relating to market
rents and reversionary yield, by comparing them
with historical rates and available market data,
taking into consideration comparability and other
local market factors.

We found the valuation on the investment properties
were supported by the available evidence.
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023 were audited by another auditor who expressed
an unmodified opinion on those statements on 18 March 2024.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are for the preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the IASB and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

* Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an
opinion on the Group consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performed for purpose of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, action taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

CL Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ruan Qianting
Practising Certificate Number: P08288

Hong Kong, 21 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
eftEEREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #{ % 2024 % 12 A 31 H 1 F/Z

2024 2023

2024 F 20234

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARBTRT ARETT

Revenue A 6 3,710,357 3,649,930
Cost of sales SHEM A (3,681,769)  (3,588,864)
Gross profit EF 28,588 61,066
Administrative expenses THAX (43,973) (52,436)
Other income, other gains and losses - net ~ EAizs « EbFI15 K
B8 — 35 7 12,878 24,070

Reversal of impairment loss of trade, bills B o REWGIE - EINEE

and other receivables, net N E A FE Y SR IE

VERIEN SR isbqEIDEEE] 3,291 5,209

Loss on change in fair values REMERABEZSH

of investment properties &8 15 (5,200) (2,183)
Operating (loss) profit & (BB 58 (4,416) 35,726
Finance costs A 10 (19,610) (21,339)
Share of profit of investments accounted for FRFAEZAARRR)

using the equity method JE(RIEE & T 11b 5,557 26,592
Gain on disposal of joint venture HEEGE QRN 11b 24,124 —
Profit before income tax BRPAT S B AR F 8 5,655 40,979
Income tax credit (expenses) FrietiEe (FAx) 12 406 (4,633)
Profit for the year FE A 6,061 36,346
Other comprehensive loss Hih2HEEE
ltem that will not be reclassified subsequently E& T~ &EH DA A

to profit or loss: BmrIER -
Equity instruments at fair value through other B E b % E K EHIZ AT

comprehensive income EESIERNERTA (993) (5,984)
Total comprehensive income FEZHKRZERE

for the year 5,068 30,362
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e EERHEMEZERER
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

2024 2023

2024 F 20234

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARSTRT ARETR

Profit for the year attributable to: THRFGEIEFERR
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZZ =N 5,898 29,778
Non-controlling interests FEIERR B = 163 6,568
6,061 36,346
Total comprehensive income THRGEERE
attributable to: WrsR 4858 -
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZ SN 4,905 23,794
Non-controlling interests FEVERR B = 163 6,568
5,068 30,362
Earnings per share (RMB cents) BREFMARES)
- Basic and diluted —EARR#EE 13 1.66 8.40
Dividends =N 29 10,629 7,086

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated & Ff i s # AR 3% 5 & 0 B 7S R 2k #9 — &1

N o

financial statements. 7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSTITION

B OF B B iR R

As at 31 December 2024 R 20244 12 A 31 H

As at 31 December

MW12H831H
2024 2023
2024 F 2023
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR® T AR®ET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - WEREE 14 134,118 148,922
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 66,363 48,940
Investment properties B 15 407,000 412,200
Amount due from joint venture U A &R E)FRIE 18 71,353 85,076
Investments accounted for using the RAEREARRD
equity method - joint venture g = W] 11 185,591 256,344
Investments accounted for using the AR PE)\EEE’J
equity method - associate wE—BERT 11 6,955 15,348
Equity instruments at fair value through iﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂiﬁ% 1%
other comprehensive income RNABET R
EmTE 11c 27,350 28,343
Deferred tax assets EREIEE E 28 333 652
899,063 995,825
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 3,158 31,636
Trade, bills and other receivables Z 5 WA
FEW B &
H b UL FRIR 18 492,082 397,011
Pledged bank deposits BERIRITFN 19 84,673 56,015
Cash and cash equivalents BeNBREEEYD 19 313,965 340,301
893,878 824,963
Total assets WEE 1,792,941 1,820,788
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERREE
Equity attributable to owners AAREEAEEER
of the Company
Share capital & 7 20 354,312 354,312
Other reserves E G 21 98,791 98,187
Retained earnings RE&EF 22 431,995 434,780
885,098 887,279
Non-controlling interests FERER 97,343 103,997
Total equity 4R35 982,441 991,276
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSTITION
BH MR E
As at 31 December 2024 R 2024 4 12 A 31 H

As at 31 December

Mm12HA31H
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
M ARETT ARETIT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Deferred income PRIEK A 26 3,768 3,979
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 315 11,797
Borrowings (EEN 25 24 38,179
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFRIBEE 28 55,575 55,352
59,682 109,307
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMERFRIE 23 383,219 341,319
Contract liabilities AHaE 24 54,051 39,971
Current income tax liabilities EHFGHasE 1,826 1,697
Borrowings & 25 260,095 313,730
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 51,627 23,488
750,818 720,205
Total liabilities wmeRE 810,500 829,512
Total equity and liabilities HEZKREE 1,792,941 1,820,788
Net current assets RBEEFE 143,060 104,758
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABERS 1,042,123 1,100,583

These consolidated financial statements were approved and #ZEAHPERREKEHEETE R 2025
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2025 and  F3 A21 B#ERTZETIZE - WHMNAT

were signed on its behalf by: ATHRERFEE
Yang Weihong Ma Xin
Director Director

BEF EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — B& M fif sE X 2 £ & BB I R 6y — 56
financial statements. 77 e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EHEZED X

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #{ % 2024 % 12 A 31 H 1 F/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

LUNGIE 2PN

Share Other  Retained Non-
capital reserves earnings controlling Total
(Note 20)  (Note21)  (Note22)  Sub-total interests equity

BRE  HitRE  RERA
(MEE20)  (PffEE21)  (BfEE22) Nt FERER wER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETFR
Balance at 31 December 7220224 12 A 31 A

2022 e 354,312 100,756 418,816 873,884 125,384 999,268
Effect of adoption of RRBR &R

amendments to IAS 12 F125H(BFIE)

LB - - 389 389 348 737
Balance at P2023%1 A 1HH

1 January 2023 (restated) — #E# (& E7) 354,312 100,756 419,205 874,273 125,732 1,000,005
Profit for the year FEHEF - - 29,778 29,778 6,568 36,346
Other comprehensive loss ~ FEE 2 EEE

for the year - (5,984) - (5,984) - (5,984)
Total comprehensive FE2E(BR)/

(loss)/income for the year Yt A#2%8 - (5,984) 29,778 23,794 6,568 30,362
Transfer to other reserves  EEE HinfE - 3,415 (3,415) - - -
Dividends paid to B RFFE R R

non-controlling interests A% S - - - - (28,303) (28,303)
Dividends recognised BRAED KRS

as distribution (Note 29) (P7E29) - - (10,788) (10,788) - (10,788)
Balance at 31 December 7220234 12 A 31 BHY

2023 e 354,312 98,187 434,780 887,279 103,997 991,276
Balance at 1 January 2024 1720241 A1 BH)

e 354,312 98,187 434,780 887,279 103,997 991,276
Profit for the year FERF - - 5,898 5,898 163 6,061
Other comprehensive loss ~ FE E (2 HEEE

for the year - (993) - (993) - (993)
Total comprehensive FE2E(BR)/

(loss)/income for the year Yt A#2%8 - (993) 5,898 4,905 163 5,068
Transfer to other reserves  EEZH - 1,597 (1,597) - - -
Dividends paid to ERIEERERIRT

non-controlling interests RIS - - - - (6,817) (6,817)
Dividends recognised HRRD KRS

as distribution (Note 29) (BzE29) - - (7,086) (7,086) - (7,086)
Balance at 31 December #2024% 12531 B

2024 R 354,312 98,791 431,995 885,098 97,343 982,441

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

4 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #({Z 2024 4 12 4 31 A IF F /&

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B aE ARSTR AR%®TR
Cash flows generated from/(used in) ReETERME, (FFA)
operating activities HERE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations SEME/ (AR e 31 47,490 (136,041)
Interest received BB 7,263 11,749
Interest paid ERFLE - (21,339)
Income tax paid ERFTEE 1,078 (5,546)
Net cash generated from/(used in) wESEE TS, (FTH)
operating activities IREFEE 55,831 (151,177)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHHRERE
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits 2 & $#$8 1777 7K
(#m),/m (28,658) 57,972
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEE ¥ - = M & & (2,328) (3,423)
Addition of investment properties NEREME - (5,8893)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BEK
plant and equipment RAEFTIS IR 116 399
Proceeds on disposal of joint venture HEAERRFEHIEAE 93,120 -
Dividends income from equity instruments R B#E @£t 2 mE Uk
at fair value through other BARBEYERNER
comprehensive income TEMRKREKA 68 80
Dividends received from investments HAEREARNKRE
accounted for using the equity method 2 BB 15,950 22,900
Net cash generated from investing activites &% &/EE 1SR4 F58 78,268 72,045
Cash flows from financing activities METBHRSRE
Interest paid ERFE (19,610) -
Proceeds from borrowings BB TS TR 378,119 375,843
Repayments of borrowings BIEEN (469,909) (309,109)
Repayments of lease liabilities HEBEBEZEERIE (35,132) (22,839)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company B [A4~A &)
A NKHRE (7,086) (10,788)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2 [A] FF3% A% 4 %5 R 1+
KRR B, (6,817) (28,303)
Net cash (used in)/generated from mEES(FTA), AT
financing activities IR & FEE (160,435) 4,804
Net decrease in cash and RERREEEY
cash equivalents WA R (26,336) (74,328)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R1A1EMNRER
HeEEY 340,301 414,629
Cash and cash equivalents R12A31BWNEREER
at 31 December HEEEY 313,965 340,301

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #{ % 2024 % 12 A 31 H 1 F/Z

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively refer to as, “the
Group”) are principally engaged in provision of logistics and
supply chain solutions services and trading and related logistics
services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company was established as an investment holding
company in the PRC by its promoters, Tianjin Teda Investment
Holding Co., Ltd. (RKIEZREREZER AR A F) (‘“TEDA Holding”)
and Tianjin Economic and Technological Development Area
State Asset Operation Company (KE&L B TFHEER A E
Ef&Z A7) (“TEDA Asset Company”) as a joint stock limited
company on 26 June 2006. Both TEDA Holding and TEDA Asset
Company are controlled by Tianjin Economic and Technological
Development Area Administrative Commission (“TEDA
Administrative Commission”).

Pursuant to the Group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”)
in preparation for the listing of the Company’s overseas listed
foreign shares (“H shares”) on the Growth Enterprises Market (the
“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), the Company became the holding company of the
Group in June 2006. The Company’s H shares were listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange on 30 April 2008.

On 18 November 2011, TEDA Holding entered into a share
transfer agreement with Chia Tai Land Company Limited (“Chia
Tai Company”), while TEDA Asset Company entered into a share
transfer agreement with Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Investment
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Company”).
Accordingly, TEDA Holding and TEDA Asset Company agreed
to transfer 28,344,960 (8% of ordinary shares) and 77,303,789
(21.82% of ordinary shares) domestic shares of the Company
to Chia Tai Company and Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Company
respectively. In 2012, the two aforementioned domestic share
transfers were approved by the relevant state-owned assets
supervision and administration authorities of the PRC. The
registration procedures of the related transfers have been
completed on 7 June 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Directors of the Company consider
TEDA Holding as the immediate holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company.

The address of the registered office are principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in “Corporate
Information” section to the annual report.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 21 March 2025.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and issued
by International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”).
For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decision
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The IASB has issued certain new and amendments to IFRS
accounting standards that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 2 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for equity instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive income and
investment properties that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the material
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS 16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS
36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of measurement (Continuead)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The Group’s principal operations
are conducted in the PRC. The consolidated financial
statements have been presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.

(d) Application of new and amendments to IFRS
Accounting Standard

Amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to IFRSs Accounting Standards
issued by the IASB for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2024 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

REERE )

(d) FERFTR] R AEIEET B 5 5R

HEASTHER

[= R Pk

TG 3 /A R A 18 5T B
BRI SR ER @ A ER

RAFEE  NEEREEHR
BHREASHEAEAOBEERES
EHEEERMI Q2024 F 1
A1BgZ AR NEEF
J& HAE] o8 Il A2 S ) 3T AT AR B
Rl BB B S R G At
Al :

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

RS ERE AR ZE 16 5% (IR A) ERELDZHEERE

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

BUPR & 5t 2 8IS 1 58 (1B 5T A8) BESEARBIIENE REEZREE 55 (20204F)

CCHEN,

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

BIPR & 5T RIS 1 5% (185 A) MR IERB B E

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements

Rt R 7 R KBRS SRS HER R E 25k

HERIEE 7 58 (BRI A)

The application of all the new and amendments to IFRS
Accounting Standards in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in those consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

REERE2)

F& PR 7 BT R AR A& 5T B0 R Bt 75 3%

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.
(d) Application of new and amendments to IFRS (d)

Accounting Standard (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards that have been

HEASTERE)

B A 2 B AT R A
(5 2T B R R 2 SR B 3 B
gy

a

AEBEY EIRATEAATER
B R A R #T ] MR B R

issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

BB B 75 T AR B 2R O 5 SR PR B S s
HRNE 7R (EFTA)

Amendment to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

SR RS R AR 3 O 5 M BIRR B TS
HERIE 75 (BFTA)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

BIPR B S S 2RI 10 9% R EIBR & 51
HRIE 285 (BFTA)
Amendments to IFRS
Accounting Standards
BIPR B S i S R gt R (B R AR)
Amendments to IAS 21
SEHERIZE 21 5 ((EFTA)

BRI R E RIS E £

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement
of Financial Instruments®
TR ITADHERFTE(EFIA)S

Contracts Referencing Nature — dependent Electricity
B REKRBEREREERTNNER

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture'
HEEREBENRNEERRZHAZEERENRTE"

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume 112

BRI GRS ER S ER . FERE -F 1158

Lack of Exchangeability?

Tz Bt

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements*
B B B T 5 2RI 2R 18 5% MEmE 25 KRR
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a T O REFEAHMNCERENFE

date to be determined. BAR AR o

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 R2025F1 A1 Bk z&FAR
January 2025. B E AR A K -

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 8 R2026F1 A1 Bk z&FAE
January 2026. RFEHAR AR -

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ¢ R2027F1 A1 B ZERA
January 2027. RFEHARI AR o

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other amendments to IFRS Accounting Standard
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated
financial statements, and have been applied consistently by
Group entities.

® has power over the investee;

® s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

* has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

rere 250

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. SEASIHRER %)

(Continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (a) EHIEEE)
* rights arising from other contractual arrangements; s HMEANRHELNRE
and Mo R

* any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary. Profit or loss and each
component of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

e RBBFEHRE(BEL
AR AE LR EE
B RPAREEE AT
BRUEEBIEEERRE
BB NN EE
KNIBS o

AEBNESHB R EESE
R BARAHAR XX
REMBRAREHERLZILS
AR - BBBME RAFE
YUK B S Y B 8 R Y IR
ARRX » BAKBEEGES
BEAEEAEEIENBEAR
AIEHIEE B FTARGHE
@R AEMEERERA

BASEESEHNEEBLEE
REBREMBRARIZESIEE
BIEmEBE Rt ER S -
BEMEMEERENSEX
MO BEBRARBEEG AR
FFiEHED - B ARNER
W RENARBEES A
KIFEHEs - A Eae8H
FEIEHIE s LR AL SR -

MEBARNPHRENLER
MATEELAE  UEEEF
BRERAEEEABR - -

EEEARRREEENRE
& = WA XHERARE
MEAREEKE RFHEBHR
28BN EHFARE T A

2024 ANNUAL REPORT & E %

135 I
1



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

3.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(b)

Investment in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except
when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 5. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b)

Investment in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or joint venture may be
impaired. When an objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment
in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset
that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

3.

lI 138  Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X =& 8 FE Wik & A B R A F)

EAZHRER (2)

(b)

REBERNARSE LA (H)
REERBREERTNKRE
BREHBRKSBEQRHA
LRRZ BREEREAR -
WEREBEARIHAE QAN
RER  RERANBENEHE
BEREHRAIHNEELA
BRAREEFENTM D HE
RBEE  FARENE@
B> ARERERBEAIEE N
BEANEBEFEBLIRERK
A ED - REHFFEER
BB IR B 1R B HIR i 1R e

27
e

AEBFEEEERBEER
TREERRHEERRNEK
Bl lrER(E - ERBER
FHEE  RENZIKEES
RIBBIFR &5 ER% 36 5IER
BE-EEETRENR  TE
A5 B R] W al & RE (B2 PR (8
B RS EER &R A
mE)EAREEELR -
A EERHRERBERKIEE
BREEN D - HERKE
B AT W Bl 2 FEIE N - RIAR IR ED
RE At AE RIS 36 S RER AL RUE
EER D -



3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(b)

Investment in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate
or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of IFRS 9, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or
joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Investment in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to
fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Group’s senior management that
makes strategic decisions.

3.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(d)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for
exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur, which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s
interests in associates/joint ventures.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

(Continued)
(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress) are stated at in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when

the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis. The depreciation rate per annum is as

follows:

Buildings

Machinery

Furniture and office equipment
Motor vehicles

Jf N
B i

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is

greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2024 F 12 431 A 1 F/&

(Continued)

(e)

(M

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents the direct costs of
construction incurred of property, plant and equipment
less any impairment losses. No provision for depreciation
is made on construction in progress until such time
the relevant assets are completed and put into use.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including properties under
construction for such purposes). Investment properties
include land held for undetermined future use, which is
regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at fair value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued
operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Investment property (Continued)

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount
of the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. A leased property which is recognised
as a right-of-use asset is derecognised if the Group as
intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as a finance
lease. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs.

3.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(9)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. SEASHRER %)

(Continued)

(g) Impairment on property, plant and equipment and (9)

right-of-use assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount
of a group of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of
the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

(Continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the
financial assets and shareholders’ rights are presented as
“other income, other gains and losses — net”.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

* the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instrument that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), except that at the
date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

* on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

® it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the other
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or
loss on disposal of the equity investments.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income, other gains
and losses — net” line item in profit or loss.

3.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2024 F 12 431 A 1 F/&

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the other
income, other gains and losses — net line item in profit or
loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment assessment under
IFRS 9 (including trade, bills and other receivables, amount
due from joint venture, pledged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents). The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting period. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting period as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting period with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

3.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

* significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

* existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

* an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

* an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 1 year
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties; or

() the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL
on trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience and forward
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

3.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables, other receivables
and prepayments are considered on a collective basis
taking into consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward looking macroeconomic
information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when formulating
the grouping:

e Past-due status;

*  Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e  External credit ratings (where available).

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

A moaodification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.

3.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are
modified, the Group assesses whether the revised terms
result in a substantial modification from original terms
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances
including qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not
conclusive, the Group considers the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees
received, and discounted using the original effective interest
rate, is at least 10 percent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial asset, after reducing gross carrying amount that
has been written off.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial assets will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted
at the financial assets’ original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the
carrying amount of the modified financial assets and are
amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial asset is recognised in profit
or loss at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual
obligation for the Group to deliver cash or other financial
assets or the Group has the sole discretion to defer
payment of distribution and redemption of principal amount
indefinitely are classified as equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities
are measured initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

e the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with IFRS 9; and

* the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.

3.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including borrowings, lease liabilities, and
trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the profit or loss.

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(i)

)

Provision (Continued)
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to be
met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability and it
is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no
reliable estimate can be made.

Inventories

Inventories which consist of cargos are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories
is determined using on a first-in-first-out method. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to
make the sale include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which the Group
must incur to make the sale.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. SEASIHRER %)

(Continued)

(k) Cash and cash equivalents k) BERBELSEEY

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

RAe kR EEBYRAHTB
MRz EF - B

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand (a) Re HPREFHERESR
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to EHER  TREXEE
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no REIMERAEERTE
longer meeting the definition of cash; and ReBeEEMNRITHE

g &
(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term b) BHeZFEY HeERH

(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management. Such
overdrafts are presented as short-term borrowings in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

0

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

3.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(m) Borrowing costs

(n)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

()  Aperson, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(@ has control or joint control over the Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. &EASSHHRER #)
(Continued)
(n) Related parties (Continued) (n) BEEAZL(EZ)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (i) fEFFE TEEM GG - AP
conditions applies: ERENARBHEE

(a) the entity and the Group are members of the (a) ZEBHEAEEB
same group (which means that each parent, A—%5B2KER
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the (A & & 2 A
others); o= NS DS S|

YNGR A R
)

(o) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the by —EHERAS—E
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a RBIEEQNRHE
member of the group of which the other entity is ERR(E S — &
a member); BAEKEBERRIZE

BETHRKERAZ
R /NS A= N /N
al)

(c) both entities are joint ventures of the same third (c) MEEEHAR—
party; F=ZF2EaER

al

(d) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and d —EERgRE=7
the other entity is an associate of the third entity; ERZEE QA

mME—BBRLS
ZHEBZBER
al

(e) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for e “%EBBRAEEZ
the benefit of employees of either the Group or EAEBEEHE
an entity related to the Group; BHEEN=RMRK

N7 BB 1R AR A AT
2l
() the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a H ZEBHOFERE

person identified in (i);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. SEASIHRER %)

(Continued)
(n) Related parties (Continued) (n) BEEAZL(E)
(@ A person identified in (i) (a) has significant (9) (i)(a)FﬁE%ZJ\i
influence over the entity or is a member of the HZERBEE
key management personnel of the entity (or of a BHhIRZE ""“(‘JZ
parent of the entity); and ZEBZERRDZ
FEEEENE
K
(n)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it (h ZERBIEBES
is a part, provides key management personnel —HoMEEET
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent. (S CINDA=E/N N =N
EEIAKEER
AR EFEER
B8 RT °
Close family members of an individual are those family — & E R A+ 8 IE TR HA
members who may be expected to influence, or he influence EHHBERER KA E
by, that person in their dealing with the and include: ZATHXEZE2RE - I
BIE
(@ that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (@ HmBALTZFRREMB
A& HEAE
(o) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; b) #ZBALZEBHEEMH
and mBZFX: &k
() dependants of the person or that person’s spouse or (c) “mHAALTHZAALES
domestic partner. FZREHEZIZEA -
A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction BEAT2HERERAED
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between WX SERIEMEALRS o

related parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(o) Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the time
of the transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

3. BEASHHRER (&)

(o)

lI 168  Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X =& 8 FE Wik & BN BR A7)

BIA

P15 15 5 < $8 BN HA SR ST AT 15
75 5 32 RO AN o

B IR IR IR F AR &
AR MIET B o FERR TS A 82
B A5 A A B 2 BE A 70 A
FEAERB KA K %2 WA
32 A R SR B R AR B ke
KAFERZER - AEEH
BIEIR IR B E VIR AN RS 1

AREERHER E2EMAH
jvl‘_—u 7%—0

BT IRRE R EmRAE
ENBEMEAEETEER
A5t ) BRF R A A AR R 75 2 T
MERZRER  BEXEHIES
%—&%%Ef%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ
MR - M Al S AT B A Al
?Dfﬂgﬁvﬁﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁ'ﬂﬂﬁm/ﬁﬁ
A - BEREEIEE E — ML A]
MAREREZEER BN —I18
R5H - AREBE G AN
REVTHREERBEES
Z%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁf%ﬁ,ﬁﬁ
wAMAZEGEN  BR
SEERTEEREHRERT
RABEREsE - AT g
RLERLERBEEERAE -
o - BEEVISEREEESE
ZERMERE  ATZRAE
ERIBEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. &EASIHRER (&)
(Continued)

(o) Taxation (Continued) (o) BLE(E)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. SEASHRER %)

(Continued)
BB (&)

(o) Taxation (Continued) (o)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale, except for freehold land,
which is always presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset
related to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised and a deferred tax
liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
are dealt with as payment to defined contribution plan which
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to contribution.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(q) Government grants (Continued)

(1)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred
to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred
income and are credited to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets. Such grants are presented under other gain and
loss - net.

Revenue and other income
Revenue from contracts with customers

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

3.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

()

Revenue and other income (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. A contract asset
and a contract liability relating to a contract are accounted
for an presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(r) Revenue and other income (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

(i) Material procurement services

Revenue from the sale of raw materials is recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being at
the point the products are delivered to the customer
and the customer has accepted the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract, net of discounts,
returns and value added taxes.

A receivable is recognised when the products are
delivered and the customers accept the products,
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. SEASIHRER %)

(Continued)
(N Revenue and other income (Continued) (n WARHMWKZRE)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (Continued) ZIREAIZTEAE ()

(i) Supply chain and logistics service (ii) HESERYRRE
Revenue from rendering of logistics services for REBBYIRERS - AE
finished vehicles, supply chain management for TEHHREHHEEEE
automobile components and parts, warehousing B - BERS & ZAHE
services and services for multimodal transport are BR7 EE A MU A PR R T 5
recognised upon the completion of services. PR T DARERR o
For sales of services, revenue is recognised at point HRRBHIEE - WAL
over time in accounting period in which the services RIS IR R St BN —
rendered, by reference to completion of the specific REBRER - WRERTE
transaction and assessed on the basis of actual RGHTEXFIZEIREE
services provided. BRARFS AT A o
The Group recognises revenue of delivery services HREYMBIRENERH
over a period of time as the customer also receives the BIHRE - BRI EIF AR
benefits provided by the Group’s services when the FEREAAIEHAOTE -
goods are transported from the place of origin to the REERE —BRFEHERNER
destination. RAITARIBFTFUA o

(iii) Interest income (iii) FEUWA

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. SEASHRER %)

(Continued)

(N Revenue and other income (Continued) (n WARHMWKZRE)
Contracts with multiple performance obligations (Continued) ZIREAIZTEAE K (E)
(ivy Government grants (iv) BUN#BE

(v)

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions

1ief 7] &5 22 e FE BE S UK AN IR
fIwBhE - A SR E AT
B BURT i Bh & P BT 75 B9 5
- AIBRFmpERES

attaching to them. Grants that compensate the OF BF 18 K 0 = 40 06 1
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as R o FERNEEEER
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the X H) i Bh & O EE A B S Y

same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are initially recognised as deferred income and
subsequently recognised in profit or loss upon on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation expense.

Dividends income from equity instruments

Dividend income from unlisted equity investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Dividend income from listed equity investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(s)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if it conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception of
the contract. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand- alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components, including contract
for acquisition of ownership interests of a property which
includes both leasehold land and non-lease building
components, unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(s)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of motor vehicles and properties
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight- line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

* any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

® any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.

3.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(s)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Except for those that are classified as investment
properties and measured under fair value model, right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant
and equipment”, the same line them within which the
corresponding underlying asset would be presented if they
were owned.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(s)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise:

e fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

® variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

e the amount expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

* payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to
terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market
rental rates are initially measured using the market rental
rates as at the commencement date. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are not
included in the measurement of lease liabilities and right-
of- use assets, and are recognised as expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
OCCuUrs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

3.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(s)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

* the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

* alease contract is modified and the lease modification
is not accounted for as a separate lease (see below for
the accounting policy for “lease modifications”).

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(s)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

* the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the standalone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that standalone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease incentives from lessor by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of- use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

3.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(s)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform

For changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform,
the Group applies the practical expedient to remeasure
the lease liabilities by discounting the revised lease
payments using the unchanged discount rate and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets.
A lease modification is required by interest rate benchmark
reform if, and only if, both of these conditions are met:

e the modification is necessary as a direct consequence

of interest rate benchmark reform; and

* the new basis for determining the lease payments is
economically equivalent to the previous basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(s)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the commencement date at
amounts equal to the Group’s net investment in the leases,
measured using the interest rate implicit in the respective
lease. Initial direct costs (other than those incurred by
manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included in the initial
measurement of the net investments in the leases. Interest
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under fair value
model. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income when they arise.

3.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(s)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)

Interest and rental income which are derived from the
Group’s ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease
components, the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate the
consideration under the contract to each component. Non-
lease components are separated from lease component on
the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(s)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a seller — lessee
Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group applies the requirements of IFRS 15 to assess
whether sale and leaseback transaction constitutes a sale
by the Group.

For a transfer that satisfies the requirements as a sale, the
Group as a seller-lessee measures the right-of-use asset
arising from the leaseback at the proportion of the previous
carrying amount of the asset and recognises any gain or
loss that relates to the rights transferred to the buyer-lessor
only.

Right-of-use asset and lease liability with fixed payments
are subsequently measured in accordance with the general
requirements under IFRS 16. In measuring the lease liability,
the Group determines “lease payments” or “revised lease
payments” (including both lease payments that are fixed or
variable) in a way that the Group would not recognise any
amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right-of-use
assets retained by the Group.

If the fair value of the consideration for the sale does not
equal the fair value of the asset, or if the payments for
the lease are not at market rates, the Group makes the
following adjustments to measure the sale proceeds at fair
value:

(@) any below-market terms is accounted for as a
prepayment of lease payments; and

(b) any above-market terms is accounted for as additional
financing provided by the buyer-lessor to the seller-
lessee.

3.

lI 186  Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X =& 8 FE Wik & BN BR A F)

EAZHRER (2)

(s)

HE (&)
PEEERED —AHA
EREEXS

7N 55 T B R B A R s R R
F15RAREFEEREELR
SEBBRARERHE

AT AERHENZRMNER
mE - AKEERET —%H
ARREERTEERD - &
EEREMEMMEKNERESE
E-YERERERES - B
AR BRI S K
8K e

EREEENBENKZEHE
BEDBRIRERRM GRS
ERIFE165RE N2 — MR EA
B -NAEHERER K&
BAEETEIHEENR]SEEE
AIHENZI(BEEERA
MENRK I EEAEARE
BRENEAEEEEH T
AR E IR R o

HEERENAARBELTF
REENAREE HHEE
MRABILHESE - BIARE
BREELATRHBRIZAR
EBETELEMENA

(@) EMMERTISHERRAR
FIEE N R Z BRI
B &

(b) ERARRTEMERRARR
IHEE T —HEEARE
77— A AR HBEINE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial assets and liabilities include
trade, bills and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables,
borrowings and lease liabilities. The risks associated with
these financial assets and liabilities include market risk
(interest rate risk and foreign currency risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Market risks
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Japanese Yen (“Yen”) and USD
Dollars (“USD”). Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations. The management do not
expect the net foreign currency risk from these
activities to be significant and hence, the Group
do not presently hedge the foreign exchange
risks. The Group periodically review liquid
assets and liabilities held in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the respective
subsidiaries to evaluate its foreign exchange risk
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4.

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risks (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2024, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 10% against the USD
with all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB30,000 (2023: approximately
RMB1,212,000) higher/lower.

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk through the impact of rate changes on
interest bearing financial assets and liabilities,
mainly bank balances and cash and bank
borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at fixed rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The
Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, management will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risks (Continued)

(i1)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been prepared
based on the exposure to interest rates for
interest bearing bank balances and variable rate
bank borrowings at the end of the reporting
period and on the assumption that the amount of
assets and liabilities outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year.

If interest rates on bank balances and variable-
rate bank borrowings had been 100 basis
points (2023: 100 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, post-
tax profit for the year will increase/decrease by
approximately RMB859,000 (2023: approximately
RMB1,821,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HIHERSEZ)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 41 BIRREBEZEE)
(b)  Credit risk (b) 1EEERE

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received from
individual customers in relation to logistics and supply
chain and logistics service for finished automobiles
and components and materials procurement services
and warehousing and multimodal transport business
in cash or credit. The Group’s trade receivables
arise from logistics and supply chain and logistics
service for finished automobiles and components and
materials procurement services and warehousing
and multimodal transport business. The Group has
concentration of credit risk as 28% (2023: 18%)
and 36% (2023: 43%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and five
largest customers, respectively. The management
of the Group makes periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables based
on historical payment records, the length of overdue
period, the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with the debtors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HEEBERZ)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BIRREBEZEE)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1FEEEE)
Credit risk refer to the risk that the Group’'s EERREAEENR S
counterparties default in their contractual obligations ATBITHEARBEME

resulting in financial losses to the Group.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets is the carrying amounts
of trade, bills and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.
Other monitoring procedures are in place to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of
IFRS 9 on trade balances individually or based on
provision matrix. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
Group's different customer bases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

©)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on bill receivables are limited because
the counter parties have no historical default
record and the ECL on these items are considered
insignificant.

Besides, the Group monitors financial position of
debtors of other receivables closely and follow-up
action will be taken to recover overdue debts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Deposit and other receivables as well as amount due
from joint venture are measured as either 12-month
ECL or lifetime expected credit loss, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. The Group
established ECL model based on historical settlement
records, past experience and available forward-
looking information which include GDP and other
macro-economic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables. The Group’s other
receivables are deposits or receivables arose from
normal operations, which based on management’s
assessment, the credit risk is not significant. In this
regard, the directors are satisfied that the risks of
impairment are monitored and adequate provision,
if any, has been made in the consolidated financial
statements. On that basis, the expected loss rate as at
31 December 2024 was 2.76% (2023: 3.47%). Further
quantitative disclosures in respect of trade, bills and
other receivables are set out in Note 18.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

©)

Credit risk (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30 to 180 days from the
date of billing.

As at 31 December 2024, all of the Group’s pledged
bank deposits and bank deposits were deposited
with financial institutions which are reputable banks
with high credit rating incorporated in Mainland China.
Management believes that these financial institutions
are of high credit quality and does not have significant
credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4.

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Provision of trade receivables

The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
which are assessed on a collective basis by using
provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit-
impaired). On that basis, the ECL loss allowance
of trade receivables as at 31 December 2024 are:
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Trade receivables

2 SRR
More than More than
1 day 1 year
but less but less
than 1 than 2
No past year past years past
due due due Total
1XED B1FEE
31 December 2024 202412 A31H REHA W1 EF PR2F A&t
Expected credit loss rate T2 EEBX 0.41% 0.41% 75.18%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREF T AREF T ARETT
Gross carrying amount 8 EE
— Trade receivables - B 5 REWE 150,025 - 3,941 153,966
Provision g 2,175 - 2,088 4,263

lI 194 Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X =& 8 ZE Wik & BN B R A F)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HEEBERZ)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BIRREBEZEE)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1EEEE)
() Provision of trade receivables (Continued) (i) EZEKZRERE
(#%&)
Other
Internal Trade financial assets/
credit rating Description receivables other items
HithemEE

RS B FTAR i S REIHRIE HiE A

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
default and does not have any past- credit-impaired credit-impaired
due amounts.

{lEWEEN RGEFENRRE  WEAMEBAR ZAEREEESE 2R BREEESR
H e —EERE —EERE

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL - not 12m ECL
dates but usually settle in full. credit-impaired

BRAE BEEAEERIHEEAERERETRR 2HEREEER 1218 ATEEME SRR
4B o —BIEERE

Doubtful Amounts is > 1 day past due or there Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
have been significant increases in credit-impaired credit-impaired
credit risk since initial recognition
through information developed
internally or externally resources.

it BEHARUEARE® 1R - BERNEK HEREEER FHFRBREEER
HNBEIRFAE R ERM &R ERIENE —EERE —EERE
ERBREERS -

Loss Amounts is > 1 year past due or Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
there is evidence indicating the asset credit-impaired credit-impaired
is credit-impaired.

i BHFIEPREE1F  ABEBEFR 2EEBAEEEE 2 EE A E B IS
EEHNBREERE - —EERE —EERE

Write-off Amounts is > 2 year past due or Amountis Amount is
there is evidence indicating that the written-off written-off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic
prospect or recovery.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HIHERSEZ)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 41 BIRREBEZEE)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1FEEEE)

() Provision of trade receivables (Continued) (i) EZEKZRERE
(%)

Trade receivables
B SEMFIR

More than More than

1 day 1 year

but less but less

than 1 than 2

No past year past years past
due due due Total

1XED B1FRE

31 December 2023 202312 A31H AEH M1EF D2 Ch
Expected credit loss rate BEEEERER 2.13% 6.53% 21.41%

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETE AR®TR

Gross carrying amount  28EEIE
— Trade receivables —-E S REIGE 247,679 12,397 411 260,487

Provision B 5,266 809 88 6,163
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Provision of trade receivables (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Group provided RMB4,263,000 (2023:
RMB6,163,000) impairment allowance for trade
receivables based on the provision matrix within
lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).

During the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Group conducted a comprehensive
assessment on the trade receivables and made
a comprehensive consideration on the debtor’s
past repayment status, ageing and financial
status of the debtor. The Group performed
individual ECL assessment on those receivables
with known financial difficulties with are significant
and overdue for a long period. During the
year, the Group mainly considered the rapid
deterioration of credit status of several debtors,
which is expected to render the Company not
being able to collect some of its trade receivables
as scheduled. Therefore, debtors with credit-
impaired with gross carrying amounts of
RMB197,207,000 (2023: RMB197,170,000)
were assessed individually, and the impairment
allowance of RMB197,207,000 (2023:
RMB197,170,000) were provided against
those gross amounts of trade receivables. The
Group processed recovery action against these
credited-impaired debtors.

4. HIFERSEZ)
41 HERERRERZEE)
(b) 1EEEE(E)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HEEBER#)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 41 BIRREBEZEE)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1FEEEE)
() Provision of trade receivables (Continued) (i) EZEKZRERE
(#%&)

The following tables show reconciliation of ECL
loss allowances of trade receivables as at 31

TR KK 2024 F
12A31EBE W E 5

December 2024: EWRIBEEEE
BRENEBEREY
B -
RMB’000
AR® T
As at 1 January 2023 7M20234F1A1H 205,068
Reversal of impairment loss for the year FNRERERD (1,735)
As at 31 December 2023 and R2023F 12 A31 HX
1 January 2024 202441 HA1H 203,333
Reversal of impairment loss for the year FNRERERD (1,863)
As at 31 December 2024 72024512 831 H 201,470

lI 198  Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited K=& 8ZE Wik & B H B R A F)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HIFERSEZ)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BIRREBEZEE)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1FEEEE)
(i) Provision of bills receivables (i) EWEERE
Bills receivables JEWE 15
The following tables show reconciliation of ECL TRINRR 2024 F
loss allowances for bills receivables as at 31 12 A31 B EWRE
December 2024: BEHEEBEY
E R R R -
RMB’000
AR®T
As at 1 January 2024 R2024%F1H1H 12
Provision for the year FARE 41
As at 31 December 2024 "®2024F12A31H 53
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& Ot BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

4. HIHERSEZ)
41 HEREBREZEE)

©)

(iii) Provision of deposit and other receivables

Deposit and other receivables

The following tables show reconciliation of ECL
loss allowances for deposit and other receivables

FREE (&)
(iii) & R H B UK

EEE

# KA W
B

TRARKR 2024 F
12 A31 HAZ S &

(including amount due from joint venture) as at 31 Hh e KB (B
December 2024: i R NCIE D)
BHEEBENES
BREHEK
RMB’000
AR T
As at 1 January 2023 ©K2023%F1A1H 7,428
Reversal of impairment loss for the year FNRERERD (2,461)
As at 31 December 2023 R20283F 12 A31 B R
and 1 January 2024 20241 H1H 4,967
Reversal of impairment loss for the year FRREBERD (1,469)
As at 31 December 2024 A 20245F12H31H 3,498
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HFEBERZ)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BIRREBEZEE)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1FEEEE)
(iv) Provision of prepayment (iv) FENRERE
Prepayment to suppliers [a] £ JE 7 5% 1 B 7E
115H
The reconciliation of ECL loss allowance of K 2024 %12 A 31
prepayment as at 31 December 2024 are: H &) 78 1< 5K 18 78 HA
FEEEBBENEER
HHERR -
RMB’000
AR®T T
As at 1 January 2024 R20249F1A1H 90,681
Reversal of impairment loss for the year FRRAEBERD -
As at 31 December 2024 2024512 431 H 90,681
The individually impaired prepayments related BEBEMNTERMNK
to suppliers that were in financial difficulties. T8 B R R B B R R
The directors of the Company estimated the WEHEEAER - A
amounts of impairment is after taking into NAEEFREFR
consideration when events came to the attention BE2BER  ZE3
of management that there were media reports EEEIRINAHE
about the liquidity problem of suppliers and their EREHERNN
performance on subsequent settlements of the BMHRENRKESE
Group's prepayments. HARE B AN B

BEFENRR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HEEBERZ)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continueqd) 4.1 BEEEZZ)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

During the year, the following impairment loss was

(b) 1EEREE)
FR - BRBEANFERIA

recognised in profit or loss: TREEE
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTET
Reversal for e ME M FE W RIER
ECL on deposit and BEEEEERE
other receivables 1,469 2,461
Reversal for ECL on prepayment TN RIEEBEER
BB EE - 1,025
Provision for ECL on EREERBEER
bills receivables iR RS (41) (12)
Reversal for B o REKWFIBESREER
ECL on trade receivables EsiEE E 1,863 1,735
3,291 5,209
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HFEBERZ)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BIRREBEZEE)
(c)  Liquidity risk © EEELERE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group EEBRBERRERS
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash H AEBEERRERFH
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to RekBReEENEER
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects EBRRBEHBNAEEE
of fluctuations in cash flow. The management monitors EATHREKTE - WRER
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures ERERPINTE - B
compliance with loan covenants. ERIRITERNEAE
A BRETEREE -
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRFAINAEEERBE
contractual maturities for its financial liabilities. The BRTERNEIEER - B
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted HRTERAAEEREA
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest BEZATMBERER
date on which the Group is required to pay. The tables MEREEE - JIREHE
include both interest and principal cash flows. FMERKSHEERE °
Over3 Over 6
months months
Weighted but not but not Total
average  Lessthan  morethan  more than undiscounted Carrying
interestrate 3 months 6 months 1year Overiyear  cashflows amount
BB=fAA FHR
il DR BFEE  #BAER RenE
F5RIE =féR AMER  BTRA-% BE-E a5 HEA
% RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
% ARMTz ARMTn ARETr ARMTR  ARETz  ARETn
As at 31 December 2024 RNA4F12A31A
Non-derivative FEeRAE
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables ECLET R - 227,326 151,600 - - 378,926 378,926
Borrowings &5 5.06 70,191 85,250 111,599 24 267,064 260,119
Lease liabilties HERE 4.58 17,631 16,735 18,178 323 52,867 51,942
315,148 253,585 129,777 347 698,857 690,987
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HIEEREE#)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continueqd) 4.1 BEEEZZ)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) © REELERE)
QOver3 Over 6
months months
Weighted but not but not Total
average lessthan  morethan  more than undiscounted Camying
interest rate 3months 6 months fyear  Overiyear  cashfiows amount
HEB=A REH
g E28 ATds  BEsEA Réng
T =R ~ER  ETEEE BE-E g BEE

%  RMBOOO  RWMB'OO0  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB'0OD
% ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR ARETR

As at 31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

Non-dlerivative financial labiites ~ FEfi4 ¢ REE
Trade and other payables BARENERRE - 339,776 - - - 330,776 339,776
Borrowings &3 6.13 159,856 119,916 43,484 34,311 357,967 351,909
Lease liabilties HEafE 502 6,188 6,188 12,245 11,924 36,545 36,285

505,820 126,104 55,729 46,235 733,888 726970
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as bank
borrowings.

The Group monitors it capital structure on the basis of
gearing ratio. The Group’s gearing ratio (ratio of borrowings
(including borrowings and lease liabilities) to total equity) is
approximately 31% (2023: 39%). There were no changes
in the Group’s approach to capital management during the
year.

4. BIEEBER @)

4.2

EXRERER
AEBERHER  UHBARR
SESEREEERBELE
BEELE RARBERSEBRR
RAETBIE BERSHRE
- AEEREREE LF
[EOARMEFFTE o

ARRESTEHRITENSE
BoERBRFAEP R EZR
ZEERKA N EEIERE R
BREZER - RIEBEEFZHE
ER  AEEKEBKMNK
S BITHBRARBERITE
ROTRA  FEEBRBERE
e

REBERERNBEL RET
HERER AEENELRE
B R(ER(BREERLEE
BE)EESAFNLER)R
#931% (20234 : 39%) ° 4
W NREBHEREIRRIEL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

@

Fair value of financial instrument

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

(i)  the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market prices; and

(i) the fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The carrying amount of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost, approximate their
respective fair values due to the relatively short-term
nature of these financial instruments.

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.
In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. For
instruments with significant unobservable inputs under
Level 3, the Group engages independent professional
valuer to perform the valuation.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HIRERESE2Z)
4.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments 43 SsMIENAARBEEE)
(Continued)

(a)  Fair value of financial instrument (Continued)

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the assets or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

@)

A ILRANTIBEE)

TREHRENTHERIRIZ
AABEAEZEBTIA
DN WIRBEREER
2024 % [ 20234 12 A 31
BeABRREERERS

—E=F:

K

. E-E:OAAMEME
SHE T EmE R
B LEREERR
{8 2 S OECRAEAE (T
BE)BEZARE
B & -

e E_E:RAAEHE
HAENEBRFEE
Wz BRELASN - AT
BEEENMERL)HHE
BEAIHERLSFL)
B < AR
BHZARBHE

=
g2-°

e E-E:AAEHE
FFENERBEREL
FEERABRMS
BECEELARE
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R ABIE) 2 GE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HIHERSEZ)
4.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments 43 TRMIAENAREEFEE)
(Continued)
(@)  Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) @ ZETAINTEEGE)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are REBRKEEARARE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis: B ENERmEENAR
BE :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—fE - ped - B=E CEil

RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTR AR¥TR AR®BTR

31 December 2024  2024F12A31H
Equity instruments at BB E M2 EKES

fair value through BAREEBEYIRY
other comprehensive ~ #25 T A
income - 20,590 6,760 27,350

31 December 2023 2023F12H31H
Equity instruments at BB EMEE K

fair value through BAREETRN
other comprehensive ~ #Ez T A
income - 20,992 7,351 28,343
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HEEBERZ)
4.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments 43 ERMIANAAREBEETFEE)
(Continued)
(@) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) @ ZHTANTIEEGE)
Fair value Significant
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy  Valuation technique(s) unobservable input(s)
KT DhEE BA
TREE DBE B fhERHE FBEBARE
2024 2023

2024 2023 &
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR

Private equity investments 20,590 20,992 Level 2 Net asset value N/A
at FVTOCI
BRAM2AKERALEE F-E ZE: TEm
JIRMLERERE
Private equity investments 4,160 4,551 Level 3 Market approach Discount for lack of marketability
at FVTOCI (Note 1 and 2) of 14.72% (2022: 17.48%)
2,600 2,800 Level 3 Net asset value Discount for lack of control
of 18.03%
BREMZERERALER £-E WhHt HRZ maRENNRNA
SIREALERERE (1 14.72% (2022 F
&2) 17.48%)
£-E EER BB 54T /5 18.03%
Included in other comprehensive income is an amount He2mHmka B ENR
of RMB993,000 loss (2023: RMB5,984,000 loss) H A R %993,0007T
relating to unlisted private equity investment at FVTOCI B 18(20234F : AR
held at the end of the current reporting period and is 5,984,000t B 18 )+ Th
reported as changes of FVTOCI reserve. HRN AR EBRFENE

BEMPEKEIRAE
B5IfR 2 3F E AL A2
BREABLIIRSEBE
ﬁiﬁﬂﬁ@ﬁh‘z SfEES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4.

4.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

(a)  Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Note 1: A slight increase in the discount for lack of
marketability used in isolation would result in a
decrease in the fair value measurement of the
private equity investments at FVTOCI, and vice
versa. A 5% increase in the discount for lack of
marketability holding all other variables constant
would decrease the carrying amount of private
equity investments at FVTOCI to the other
comprehensive income by RMB254,000 (2023:
RMB267,000).

Note 2: A slight increase in the discount for lack of control
used in isolation would result in a decrease in
the fair value measurement of the private equity
investments at FVTOCI, and vice versa. A 5%
increase in the discount for lack of control holding
all other variables constant would decrease the
carrying amount of private equity investments at
FVTOCI to the other comprehensive income by
RMB162,000 (2023: RMB170,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea) 4. HIFERSEZ)
4.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments 43 TMIAENAREEFEE)

(Continued)

(@) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) @ ZETAITEEGE)
Reconciliation of financial instruments measured at fair EREBZEBHFARNAEE
value base on level 3: FEND R T ERHER

Financial
asset of
FVTOCI
2H KR IZ
AREETIER
HEmEE
RMB’000
ARETT
At 1 January 2023 R2023%F1H1H 5,286
Total loss recognised in REMEEKEERNEEBE
other comprehensive income (735)
Transfer into Level 3 (Note (1)) BABZ=BH(H:EM)) 2,800
At 31 December 2023 and R2023F 12 A31 H X 2024F1 A1 H
1 January 2024 7,351
Total loss recognised in REMEZERBEEIANEERAEE
other comprehensive income (591)
At 31 December 2024 202412 H31H 6,760
Note 1:  Transfer into level 3 in 2023 were due to change MizE1: 20283F E 8@ AE =
of valuation input observability. [& 4% Ty B B 8 A 2K

B R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(@)  Provision of ECL for trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and other receivables with significant balances and
credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2024 F 12 431 A 1 F/&

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5.

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(@) Provision of ECL for trade, bills and other receivables
(Continued)

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on internal
credit ratings as groupings of various debtors that have
similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on the
Group’s historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information
are considered. In addition, trade and bills receivables with
significant balances and credit impaired are assessed for
ECL individually.

For bills and other receivables, the management makes
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates.

The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade, bills
and other receivables are disclosed in Note 4.1(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5.

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(b)  Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. The determination of the fair value involves certain
assumptions of market conditions which are set out in Note
15.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the
Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of
the fair value include those related to estimated rental
values with reference to the current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, appropriate
reversionary yield and expected profit margin.

As at 31 December 2024, the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties is approximately RMB407,000,000
(20283: approximately RMB412,200,000).

lI 214 Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X338 /82 Yin E @R M AR A 7

<]

L B5HHIER MNIARAR R E

SRR ()
CEEESE -2 A=)

©)

REYFaA1E
REMEIREBLEEEE
Bz fhERAREERZS - &
ERARBEIRETHHRR
(HRMIFE15)HIRER ©

KEAERS ARAESRD
TEHH B RIERBENTER
B A5 A0 B S AR o

AEBEGARAREBEZIER
RERBESEZHER R & &
THEUMENRETNSES
EE @R W R M FRHIE N R
BT BEABZAAE
18 e

R2024F 12 A31H + & &
EMEEMENAABERD
A R # 407,000,000 75(2023
F: 4 AR % 412,200,000
TT) e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported the Group’s senior management, being
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the purpose
resources allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods or service delivered or provided.

The Group reports four operating segments; these are managed
independently by the responsible segment management bodies
in line with the products and services offered, the distribution
channels and customer profiles involved and warehouse,
supervision, agency and other services. Components of entity
are defined as segments on the basis of the existence of
segment managers with revenue and segment results (profit
earned by/loss from) each segment before income tax, certain
other income, other gains and losses - net, finance costs,
share of results of investments accounted for using the equity
method, gain on disposal of joint venture, the fair value charge of
investment properties and corporate expenses responsibility who
report directly to the CODM who make strategic decisions.

In the current year, the Group reorganised its internal reporting
structure which resulted in changes to the composition of its
reportable segments. The Group separates the warehousing and
multimodal transport business as a reportable segment. Prior
year segment disclosures have been represented to conform with
the current year’s presentation.

Principal activities of the Group’s four reportable segments are as
follows:

a.  Supply chain and logistics services for finished automobiles
and components — Provide customers with storage,
transportation and import agency services for complete
vehicles.

b. Materials procurement services — Procurement of raw
materials from manufacturers and sales to customers.

c.  Warehousing and multimodal transport business — Provide
customers with warehousing, storage, supervision, agency
and transportation business.

d.  Other services — Provision of management services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. &Gl #)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results REBHWARIZA 28D E0EI D
by reportable segments: HEEDSTAT

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BENUENANALEE
Supply
chain and
logistics services Warehousing
for finished and
automobiles Materials multimodal Reportable All
and  procurement transport segments other
components serices business subtotal segments Total
HEBER
S E £ERSA
WhkE  DERERR BERR TRl FERAAY it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRFR ARRFR ARRTR ARRFR AE¥TR AE¥TR

Revenue A 1,126,897 2,529,806 48,434 3,105,227 14,304 3,719,531
Iner-segment revenue AIEHEA - (844 (6,746) (7,560) (1,614 9,174
Revenue from external customers RENGERNMA 1,126,807 2,529,052 4,18 3,697,667 12,690 3,710,357
Segment resuls PEE 618 an 1,553 2,548 (7,009 (4,455)
Share ofresults of investments accounted REESEAENERESE

for using the equity method 9,357
Gain on disposal of a jint verture LEREL TN U1
Unallocated other income FAREMNE 12,394
Unalocated corporate expenses FARLARS (7,155)
Finance costs BEE (19,610
Loss on change nfair values of RENELLEERIEE

investment propertes (5,200)
Proft before income fax BRAERATAR 565
Income tax crecit i 406
Profi for the year EREH 6,061
Other information: EHEH

Reversalof impaiment loss of rade, BRRYGE  BHZE

bils and other receivables REMEREENHESRRE 301 (120) 3%9 3,201 - 3,201
Depreciation and amortisafion HERES 44,039 14 6,455 50,508 751 51,259
Income tax credit ks (368) 3,252 (2.459) 406 - 406

lI 216 Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X382 i £ @R H BRA 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuea)

6. SEER @)

Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

HEABFRANALER
Supply
chain and
logistis senices Werehousing
for finished and
automobles Materials mulimod Reportable Al
and  procurement fransport segments other
components Services business subtotal segments Totd
REEER
S BERAS
mRkE  WERERE BERE m2EAMNT  MEAMSY a3
RVB1000 RVB1000 RMB1000 RVB1000 RVB1000 RVB1000
NRETT NRETT NRETT NRETT ARETT ARETT
Revenue A 1220058 2,350,686 72,393 3,645,137 18429 3,663,566
Iner-sagment revenue eSO - (607) (9408 (10,215 (3421) (13,636)
Revenue from external customers REABEFHUA 120,058 2349879 6298 3634922 15,008 3649930
Segment resuls B 18,430 350 678 20633 652) 21,981
Shere ofresults of investments accounted FRERE\RNERRERE
for using the equity method 26592
Unallocated other income FOREMNE 2,063
Unallocated corporate expenses FARDFRR 7139
Finance costs BERK (21,359
Loss on change n far values of RENFLAEREDEE
investment properties (2183
Proft before income tax AR 40979
Income tax expense HERAS (£633)
Proft for the year Emigd 36,346
Other information; EhER
Reversal of impaiment loss o frade, EORMGE RYRE:
bils and ofher recevlles REpENENREERED (762) 6,574 (603) 5,209 - 5,209
Depreciation and amortisafion fEREH (3362 - (£.440) (38,082) (3062 (41,144
Income tax (expense) credit FERF) 4% (5,052 1,009 (680) (£633) - (£633)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuea)

Segment result represents the profit/(loss) from each segment
without allocation of certain corporate administrative costs
such as directors’ emoluments, share of results of investments
accounted for using the equity method and corporate finance
costs. To arrive at reportable segment result, the management
additionally provides segment information concerning major
non-cash items such as depreciation and amortisation, loss
on change in fair value of investment properties, reversal
of impairment loss or trade, bills and other receivables and
income tax (credit) expenses derived from reportable segments.
Unallocated corporate income mainly comprises interest income
and government subsidy income and non-operating income
and expense. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

All revenue contracts are for a period of one year or less, as
permitted by practical expedient under IFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contacts is not disclosed.

Sales between segments are carried out based on mutually
agreed price. The revenue from external parties reported to the
senior management is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Total segment assets and liabilities are not disclosed as they are
not regularly provided to and reviewed by the Group’s senior
management.

Geographical information

All the Group’s operations and non-current assets are located in
the PRC, and all the Group’s revenue of the external customers
is attributed to the PRC. Therefore, no analyses of geographical
segment is presented for the years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuec) NERER #)
Information about major customer FERFER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing RERFEFREERNEBRREAETE10%
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as follows: N EMEFAMALT
2024 2023
2024 £ 2023 F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETRT

Customer A ERA 773,546 627,143

Customer B2 P B 711,285 =

Customer C? B C? 413,698 106,701

Customer D? BPFD? 374,591 -

Customer E? BEPE? - 466,116

Notes: k3

1 Revenue are generated from supply chain and logistics services ! BB R T EEYIR R
for finished automobiles and components segment. TE D EBEERUA ©

2 Revenue are generated from materials procurement services and 2 MERE R B ERZAEERE
warehousing and multimodal transport business segment. DEPEERUA o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

7. OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES - NET 7.

Hithi# « HthiiSRE1E —
e

2024 2023

2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETET

Government grant (Note 1) B R RE (FYsE1) 157 692
Interest income from bank KB RITHFE WA 7,263 11,749
Net foreign exchange gain P H s 5 R 520 452
Net loss on disposal of property, HEYE - BE REED

plant and equipment F 1R (124) (279)
Dividends income from equity instrument KEBEBEMEEK R

at fair value through other comprehensive NABEIERENERLEA

income R B A 68 80
Loss of disposal of property, HEME - BE K

plant and equipment HERERE (20) —
Waiver of other payable (Note 2) N E A EA RIBE(MEE2) - 11,314
Written-off of other payable (Note 3) 88 oAb FE AT B (BEES) 5,136 -
Others HAh (122) 62

12,878 24,070

Note 1: P

Government grant represents subsidies and awards from local
government authorities for the Group’s contribution to the development
of the local economies.

Note 2:

The payments are indeed unable to be paid, the Group carry out the
corresponding accounting treatment in accordance with accounting
standards. According to the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), such payable should be included in the non-operating income of
the Group.

Note 3:

Accounts payable that the business cannot afford to pay or cannot
pay should be recorded as non-operating income. The Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises and its interpretation stipulate that
the inflow of economic benefits arising from non-routine activities of
an enterprise should be treated as “profits”, and such gains should be
collected and accounted for by non-operating income accounts. The
written off amount is abnormal operation of the other party unit and has
been revoked, the legal counsel shall issue a legal opinion and write off
the write-off after approval by the company’s decision-making level.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

8.

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging:

B PR 1S % R

BRETSTADE M EHER AT BRI ¢

2024 2023
2024 2023 %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTRT ARETR
Material procurement services, warehousing MERERE - BFER

and multimodal transport business % B B SR 2,530,141 2,387,027

Supply chain and logistics services for finished 3B &8 & T 2B {41 g
automobiles and Components Wi AR 7% 952,709 1,043,971
Business tax ¥BHe 9,345 8,933
Employee benefits expenses (Note 9) EERAMAZ(FHEE) 156,327 130,561
Auditors’ remuneration ZH BN B & 1,200 1,747
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - HE & RENITE 16,893 18,115
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENTTE 34,366 23,029
Transportation & Fuel B AR 21,452 22,329
Others Eih 3,309 5,588
Total cost of sales and administrative expenses  $5& AR & 17 B 5 2 4858 3,725,742 3,641,300
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9. ESiEnIB=
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
Wages and salaries TERH® 106,885 90,261
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RKE AT IR 30,919 33,985
Others Hb 18,523 6,315
Total employee benefit expenses EERA ML A%E 156,327 130,561
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERESTHRAEMS
2024 2023
2024 F 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Directors’ fee Rk 758 800
Other emoluments: EmEl -
— Salaries and allowances —Fre MR, 516 264
— Performance related incentives and bonus  —iZ&RIFE M ES
KAE4T 570 273
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions ~ — R K@ FIET 2450 410 206
2,254 1,543
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 9. (EEMEHIZ#)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERRETHAEME(ZE)
(Continued)
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive BEERESTHRAERER
for the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out below: 2024 F 12 A31 HILFEMH
Bz T -

Performance  Retirement

Salaries related benefit
Directors’ and incentives scheme
Fees allowances and bonus contributions Total

ERABRN RIEN
EZNE  HEREM RERRA TR L
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARET:R

The Chief executive: RR{THAS :

Yang Weihong B - 240 429 205 874

The executive director: HITES:

Ma Xin (Note vii) SR (B vii) - 276 141 205 622

Non-executive directors: FNTES:

Li Jian £ 50 - - - 50

Sun Jing (Note v) #e () 50 - - - 50

Meng Jun (Note vi) EEAGE)) 50 - - - 50

Zhang Yan (Note iv) Kk (FrsEv) 8 - - - 8

Independent non-executive directors: B FFH{TES :

Cheng Xinsheng Bk 150 - - - 150

Japhet Sebastian Law &E 150 - - - 150

Peng Zuowen ZIEX 150 - - - 150

HeYongjun CEE 150 - - - 150
758 516 570 410 2,254
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 9. ESfEnlbsz &)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERRETHAEMS(ZE)
(Continued)
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive EEERBERTBRABREZR
for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out below: 2023F 12 A1 HILFEMH
BT

Performance  Retirement

Salaries related benefit
Directors' and incentives scheme
Fees  allowances  andbonus contributions Total
BREBEHD RINER]
EE0E  HeREM  ReRiA HE TS ast

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTTE  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

The Chief executive and RRTHABRBIES:
executive director:

Yang Weihong B - 264 273 206 743
Non-executive directors: FNTES

Li Jian TR 50 - - - 50
Jo Shibin (Note i) etz A (iR 24 - - - 24
Zhou Zhiyuan (Note i A%E (i) 18 - - - 18
Zhang Yan (Note iv) Kk (FrsEv) 50 - - - 50
Sun Jing (Note v) B (Mity) 32 - - - 32
Meng Jun (Note vi) EEAGE)) 26 - - - 26

Independent non-executive directors:  BUIFHITES -

Cheng Xinsheng Bt 150 - - - 150
Japhet Sebastian Law #E 150 - - - 150
Peng Zuowen ZIEX 150 - - - 150
HeYongjun CEE 150 - - - 150

800 264 273 206 1,543
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:

)

(i)

(i)

(V)

(vii)

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there
was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the current year.

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors or any
of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group as compensation for loss of office.

Jo Shibin was resigned from the position of non-executive
director on 21 June 2023.

Zhou Zhiyuan was appointed as an non-executive director
on 15 September 2022 and resigned from the position of
non-executive director on 12 May 2023.

Zhang Yan was appointed as an non-executive director on
15 September 2022 and resigned from the position of non-
executive director on 25 January 2024.

Sun Jing was appointed as an non-executive director on 12
May 2023.

Meng Jun was appointed as an non-executive director on 21
June 2023.

Ma Xin was appointed as an executive director on 25
January 2024.

2F

BS@mlbs< =)
(a) EERBSTBRAEMS(E)

Wi

U

(i

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

B = 2024 F }x2023F 12 A
STALLFE  WEEEN&
BITRABRERRAEHE
R FE R AT A S
ZHE

B 22024 F 2 2023%F 12 A
STRLLFE  AEETER
IHEELREESTSA
TEM—BIZARM - ER
INAREE 7 EE) SR A
AEBRRAESN B
BEREAS(E o

BESBN 2023F 6 A21 HE:
TIEITES ©

B & &' R2022F9 A15H
BZAEARENTEE TR
202345 A 12 A BHEIEHTT
BEo

RA2022F 9 15 HEZR
EARIEHITTEE - WHKH2024
F1 A2 BEHIIENITES ©

AR 20235 A 12 HESE
TEIENTES -

HENR2023F 6 A21 HEZ
ERIENTES -

B 20244%1 A25 HEZ
EERITES

2024 ANNUAL REPORT 4 E#f% 225 '



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 9.

(b) The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 include
one (2023: one) director whose emoluments is reflected in
the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to
the remaining four (2023: four) individuals, including four
(2023: four) senior management during the year ended 31
December 2024 are as follows:

BSi@nlbs<2)

(b)

B 22024128318 It F
EXRSEESFTMORARAL
ZH o Hf—HZ(2023F © —
FZ)REF Efe R L
DT E o RELE2024F 12
A31BEILEFERMNT# TEA
(20234 : W& )AL - BFEME
#(2023F M%) R BRERAR
HIEF BN -

2024 2023

2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T

Employees ==
— salaries and allowances — %<& Kok 2,881 2,904
- performance related incentives and bonus  — X R IR 3 A ES
RAEAT 365 327
— retirement benefit scheme contributions —RIKEFIFT B 295 131
3,541 3,362

(c) The emoluments of the individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following bands:

Number of individuals

(c)

rEZRSMEeNEANTME
AT&ERBIA

A

2024 2023
2024 2023 F
Emolument bands B < 4% 5
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ 2% 1,000,000/& 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 &L E
1,500,000 7% T 1 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 9. [EEENIBR#)
(d) The emoluments of the Group’s senior management fell (d TEESREEEMSRHN
within the followings bands: N
Number of individuals A
2024 2023
2024 £ 2023 F
Emolument bands B 4% 5
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 % 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 BT E
1,500,000 77T 1 1
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. REERR
2024 2023
2024 F 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTIT

Interest on borrowings fE R F) B 18,037 19,067
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 1,573 2,272
19,610 21,339
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& Ot BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

11a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(@) Subsidiaries

11a. RMIBELTINIRE

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

(a) MIEBATE
AR A&R2024%F12HA31B =

December 2024: EWNBRAIMNRE
Proportion of
ordinary
shares
Place of Registered held by
Incorporation capital/ Proportion of non-controlling
Name of and kind of paid up issued ordinary shares interests
Subsidiary legal entity Principal activities  ordinary shares held by the Group (%) (%)
L FERERE
R EE ERRLA
DRER ERER TEEH aRER FEBSEEERILA (%) (%)
Directly Indirectly
Hi B
2024 2023 2024 2023
2024F 2023F 2024F 2023F
% % % %
Tianjin Fengtian China, limited Transportation of USD8,645,600  52%  52% - - 48%
Logistics Co., liability company finished vehicles
Ltd. (“TFL") and supply chain
management services
RELEMRERAR  HE - AREALF  EEEGREER 8,645,600% 7T
(TRzgHEMR)) EERG
TEDA General Bonded  China, limited Warehouse operations  RMB80,000,000  100%  100% - - -
Warehouse Co., Ltd. liability company and logistic services
RERERRENL e AREAERT  GRRERMRRE NEE
RERERAT 80,000,0007C
Tianjin Yuan Da Xian Dai- China, limited Logistic services RMB20,000,000  100%  100% - - -
Logistics Co., Ltd. liability company
RETAERDR HE - BREALAT MRS NEE
BRAT] 20,000,0007T
Tianjin TEDA International China, limited International RMB5,000,000  51%  51% - - 49%
Freight Forwarding liability company transportation
Co., Ltd. agency services
REZERRGERE  PE AREELA  ERERRERS ARE
BRAR 5,000,0007C
Tianjin TEDA Supply China, limited Technical service RMB10,000,000  100%  100% - - -
Chain Technology liability company
Co., Ltd.
REFEHEERE HE - BREARE KRS AR
BRAF 10,000,000

lI 228  Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X882 E @R M AR A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

11a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 11a. RMBASINIRE (2)
(b) Material non-controlling interests (b) EARFERER
The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December 2024 R2024%F 12 A 31 H3EE
is approximately RMB97,343,000 (2023: approximately BREZBRESEHORBRARK
RMB103,997,000) of which approximately RMB114,681,000 97,343,000 (20234 : 4
(2023: approximately RMB107,701,000) is for TFL. The non- A K ®103,997,0007T ) -
controlling interests in respect of Tianjin TEDA International H &4 AR®114,681,000
Freight Forwarding Co., Ltd. is not material. JL(20283F : #H A R ¥

107,701,000 ) kB K 2L
BYR - BEERERERRE
BERIEAR QG IR ER

TBERKX -
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries HFEHAEEBEAWHEZER
with non-controlling interests that are material to the BRI E 2 ] BRI E
Group
Set out below are the summarised financial information for T SCEBI R RS B YR B S
TFL. BERE -
Summarised statement of financial position RN R E
2024 2023
2024 &£ 2023 4%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARETFT
Current TRED
Assets BE 355,757 375,442
Liabilities aE (246,279) (233,777)
Net current assets RBEEFE 109,478 141,665
Net non-current assets ERBEEFE 129,440 82,712
Net assets FEE 238,918 224,377
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

11a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 11a. RMBASINBRE 2)

(b) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (b) EXRFEERERE)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries BEHAEEBBEAWHIEZER
with non-controlling interests that are material to the ERHIE LA BEERBE
Group (Continued) (#&)

Summarised statement of profit or loss and other BEkHEMEZERERBE

comprehensive income

2024 2023

2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREKTRT

Revenue PN 1,126,897 1,222,058
Profit before income tax BR P45 2% Bl i A 731 18,741
Income tax expenses TSR (391) (5,052)
Profit and total comprehensive FERARZE

income for the year LNt 340 13,689
Total comprehensive income PAN/NSIE PPN 3

attributable to owners of the Company B 2wz 177 7,118
Total comprehensive income DBLT IR R A

allocated to non-controlling interests FHENREBRE 163 6,571
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B < 3E3E A HE 25 % B 6,817 28,303
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11a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continuea)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

11a. RMtBERSINIRE (47)

Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (b) EXRFEERERE)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries HFEHAEFBEALHZR
with non-controlling interests that are material to the BRI E L A BEERBE
Group (Continued) (&)
Summarised statement of cash flows HEREBRUE
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETET

Net cash generated from RETHRBRELFH

operating activities 19,652 78,428
Net cash used in ® & SEE T A

investing activities H& 38 (466) (1,667)
Net cash used in financing activities RMETEHFARES TR (48,224) (81,777)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents R4 NIESZEY

R RR (29,038) (5,016)

Cash and cash equivalents at FReMRESEEY

beginning of year 232,544 237,560
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRESEEY

at end of year 203,506 232,544

The information above is the amount before inter-companies

eliminations.

ERERAARFEEBERNE
B e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

ae 2L\

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. KA EZNARNIRE

METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

REFMBIRARERN SR

financial position are as follows:

T

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
The Group AEE AR®BTR ARETT
Associates AN 6,955 15,348
Joint ventures & ENA] 185,591 256,344
At 31 December ®12 A31H 192,546 271,692
The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit REfBERREMEE K RER
or loss and other comprehensive income are as follows: MESREAT -
2024 2023
2024 F 2023
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T ARET T
Associates A/ (6,893) (7,481)
Joint ventures WS 12,450 34,073
Gain on disposal of joint venture HEAE R KE 24,124 -
For the year ended 31 December HE12A31BIEFE 29,681 26,592
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. FEABIEEEARNIRE &)

METHOD (Continueq)
(a) Investment in associates (a) REZELATNRE
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%®TR
At 1 January ®n1HA1H 15,348 22,829
Share of results of associates i AN E (6,893) (7,481)
Dividends received 2 AR E (1,500) -
At 31 December n12 A31H 6,955 15,348
Set out below are associates of the Group as at 31 T X H 5 A& B 2024 F 12 A 31
December 2024, which, in the opinion of the directors, are BEERREAEEERNBER
material to the Group. The associates as listed below have Al e TXPYIEE AR RRAE L
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are MARBEEEFRAENSBRAN
held directly by the Group; the country of incorporation or AL ERNBERTIAETE
registration is also their principal place of business. EEEME o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

ae 2L\

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. FEABIEEEARNIRE &)

METHOD (Continueq)

(a) Investment in associates (Continued) (a) MEZQATNBREE)
Nature of investment in associates as at 31 December R2024F 12 531 HRBE 2
2024 AHREME

Proportion
of ordinary
Place of shares
business/ directly held
Registered  country of by the Group  Nature of Measurement
Name of company capital incorporation (%) the relationship method
r5E
g% EERE
w2/ EER
ARER TMEEX  KUMEIR Bhl(%) BEEE GEREE
Directly held:
BERE
Gangwan Automobile RMB150,000,000  China 40%  Carrying out the Equity
Group’s automobile
storage and related
services
BERE AK#150,000,0007C 40% REEELLE  #x
FHRABRS
Tianxin Inspection RMB5,000,000  China 30%  Carrying out the Equity
Group’s vehicle
inspection services
RERA AR®5,0000007C 30% RAKELEERE #a
R
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11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

11b. IRAIBRAARNIRE (2)

METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investment in associates (Continued) (a) MEZQATNBREE)
Nature of investment in associates as at 31 December R2023F 12 A 31 HRBE &
2023 AHREME

Proportion
of ordinary
Place of shares
business/ directly held
Registered  country of by the Group  Nature of Measurement
Name of company capital incorporation (%) the relationship method
r5E
g% EERE
w2/ EER
ARER TMEEX  KUMEIR Bhl(%) BEEE GEREE
Directly held:
BERE
Gangwan Automobile RMB150,000,000  China 40%  Carrying out the Equity
Group’s automobile
storage and related
services
BERE AR®150,0000000c 40% REEELLE  #x
FHRABRS
Tianxin Inspection RMB5,000,000  China 30%  Carrying out the Equity
Group’s vehicle
inspection services
RERA ARE5,000,000T  F 30% RAKELEERE #a

The associates of the Group are private companies and
there are no quoted market prices available.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interest in the associates.

BR#%

AEBENBERRBLARR I

EHETE -

o £ 7 82 0 B 2 0 ) A 25 4R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. FEABIEEEARNIRE &)

METHOD (Continueq)
(a) Investment in associates (Continued) (a) MEZQATNBREE)
Summarised financial information for associates BELAHBEERBE
Set out below are the summarised financial information for TXIE AR EEFEAERIAEA
the associates of the Group which are accounted for using RABGBNEAEEMS B
the equity method and the share of the profits are material BARREE SR F IS E R
to the Group. 2o
Summarised statement of financial position B SRR RBEE
Gangwan Automobile Tianxin Inspection
BEaE REWRA
2024 2023 2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F 2024 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTIT AR¥TR ARETT
Current E
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 10,216 26,137 601 264
Other current assets Hip e &= 5,359 8,212 7,231 9,290
Total current assets TEEERE 15,575 34,349 7,832 9,554
Current liabilities mEEE (8,972) (9,127) (334) (976)
Total net current assets BRBEETFE 6,603 25,222 7,498 8,578
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,168 1,442 5,323 7,030
Net assets BEEFRE 7,771 26,664 12,821 15,608
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11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

METHOD (Continued)

(a)

Investment in associates (Continuead)

Summarised financial information for associates

(Continued)

Summarised statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income

11b. IRAIBRAARNIRE (2)

(a) REBEQTNREE)
BREATMBENBRE)

BakAEMEZEREREE

Gangwan Automobile

Tianxin Inspection

BERE RERA
2024 2023 2024 2023
2024 2023 %F 2024 & 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARNTT ARBFRE ARETR
Revenue KA 763 16,692 13,686 15,587
Depreciation and amortisation e R H (272) (336) (1,534) (1,061)
Interest income FEUA - 631 60 4
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRFTEH A
(BR|), /&7 (18,891) (20,492) 2,329 2,530
Income tax (expenses)/credit FER(AX) #He (2) 2 (116) (146)
(Loss)/profit and total FE(BFBR)HBAR
comprehensive 2E(EE) WA
(loss)/income for the year M (18,893) (20,490) 2,213 2,384
Dividends received BEE D T UE
from associates KRB - - 1,500 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. FEABIEEEARNIRE &)

METHOD (Continueq)
(@) Investment in associates (Continued) (a)
Reconciliation of summarised financial information

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amount of its interest in

REBEQRNREE)
R BERBER HE

BT 2 500 A R B S
D AR A 2 R 8 -

gh =

associates:
Summarised financial information BRERSE
Gangwan Automobile Tianxin Inspection
BEAE RERA
2024 2023 2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F 2024 F 2023 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE ARETT ARBTRT AR®T:T

Opening net assets at 1 January M1 A1 H#

FHEEFE 26,664 47,154 15,608 13,224
(Loss)/profit and total FE(BHR) /&R
comprehensive (expense)/income 2@ (Fsz),/
for the year Wk ia s (18,893) (20,490) 2,213 2,384
Dividend BRE = - (5,000) -
Closing net assets at K12 A31HH
31 December FREETFE 7,771 26,664 12,821 15,608
Interest in associates i NETL: o) 3,108 10,666 3,847 4,682
(b) Investment in joint ventures (b) REEQATNRE
2024 2023
2024 2023 F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT

At 1 January ®»1A1H 256,344 245171
Share of results of joint ventures BIEEERNRIEE 12,450 34,073
Carrying amount of the joint EHEAEARIMEAE

venture disposed (68,996) -
Dividends received 2 U B (14,450) (22,900)
Gain on deemed disposal RV & Wz 243 —
At 31 December ®12 A31H 185,591 256,344
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. FiAigZENARNIRE &)

METHOD (Continued)
(b) Investment in joint ventures (Continued) (b)

REERARANREE)

Nature of investment in joint ventures as at 31 R2024F12 531 HREE L

December 2024 AHREME
Place of
business/ % of
country of ownership  Nature of the Measurement
Name of company Registered capital incorporation interest relationship method
BEhE M FrEkRR
ARER aftER  HYMER ARl EEEE SRR
Tedahang Cold Chain RMB200,000,000  China - Carrying out the Equity
Logistics Co., Ltd. cold warehouse
(“Tedahang’) (note) operating and
logistic services
FET(RR)REDR ARH200,000,000C FE - RAKELE s
BRAR(FRET]) REZER
(B3 W AR
Tianjin Alps Teda USD6,367,000  China 49%  Supply Chain and Equity
Logistics Co., Ltd. Logistics Services
(“Tianjin Alps”) (note) for Electronic
Components
REREMRLHNREN 6,367,000€r HE 49% EFTHMHEE s
ﬂ(f%ﬁﬂﬁiiﬁ,ﬂﬂ) iR
G
Dalian Alps Teda USD2,400,000  China 49%  Supply Chain and Equity
Logistics Co., Ltd. Logistics Services
(‘Dalian Alps”) for Electronic
Components
AEREMBLENREN 2,400,000€7 HE 49% BFTHMHER Ea
ﬂ(fkﬁmﬂi’ﬂﬁﬁj) iR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. FEAiEZENARNRE &)

METHOD (Continueq)
(b) Investment in joint ventures (Continued) (b)

REERRANREHE)

Nature of investment in joint ventures as at 31 R2023F 12531 HREE L

December 2023 AHREME
Place of
business/ % of
country of ownership  Nature of the Measurement
Name of company Registered capital incorporation interest  relationship method
BEhE M FrEkRR
ARER aftER  HYMER ARl EEEE SRR
Tedahang Cold Chain RMB200,000,000  China 60%  Carrying out the Equity
Logistics Co., Ltd. cold warehouse
(“Tedahang’) (note) operating and
logistic services
FET(RR)REDR AR200,000,0007c  FE 60% RAFESLZ s
BRAR(FRET]) REZER
(B3 W AR
Tianjin Alps Teda USD6,367,000  China 49%  Supply Chain and Equity
Logistics Co., Ltd. Logistics Services
(“Tianjin Alps”) (note) for Electronic
Components
REREMRLHNREN 6,367,000 HE 49% EFTHMHEE B
ﬂ(f%éﬂﬁiiﬁ,ﬁﬂ) iR
G
Dalian Alps Teda USD2,400,000  China 50%  Supply Chain and Equity
Logistics Co., Ltd. Logistics Services
(‘Dalian Alps”) for Electronic
Components
AEREMBLENREN 2,400,000%7 HE 50% EFTHAMER Ea
ﬂ(fkﬁmﬂi’ﬂﬁﬂ) iR

The joint ventures of the Group are private companies and

there is no quoted market price available.

BEEETHIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY
METHOD (Continued)

(b)

Investment in joint ventures (Continued)

note:

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the investment income
of Dalian Alps was enlarged and the Group’s effective equity
interest in Dalian Alps was diluted to 49% as a result of new capital
contribution being injected in form of reinvestment of profits by
other joint venturer (the “Deemed Disposal”). Before the Deemed
Disposal, the Group owned 50% interest in Dalian Alps and the
investment was previously accounted for as an investment in a
joint venture using the equity method of accounting. Upon the
completion of the Deemed Disposal, the Dalian Alps continued to
be classified a joint venture. This transaction has resulted in the
Group recognising a gain of deemed disposal of approximately
RMB243,000 in profit or loss.

The Group holds 49% of the registered capital of Tianjin Alps.
However, under the articles of association, the major financing
and operational decision of Tianjin Alps should be unanimously
approved by the Group and other venture. Therefore, Tianjin Alps
is regarded as joint venture of the Group.

On 5 November 2024, the Group disposed of 60% of the equity
interest in Tedahang, a joint venture of the Group, through a public
listing, and obtained a gain of $24,124,000. Prior to the disposal,
the Group owned 60% of the equity interest in Tedahang, which
had previously been invested in the joint venture using the equity
accounting method.

11b. IRAIBRAARNIRE (2)

(b)

RAEARANRE ()
it

H E2024F12A31B It F &
KEHMEE R AF BB ENT
RNETHF—HIE(RIEHLES
B BEIKENREHNEE
sk AEERRKEMHEHRNE
B S A 58 = 40% A 1EH
EFHEA AEEHESXNEMNES
BHIS0% Mg - BRI RA
BRZREEIRE ARIEREGE
ARARIEE - RIBEDEFETTK
% REMBEMDBEEAGER
Al e ZERSEBAEBENIBEF
BREIELESTENREHNARE
243,000 7T °

A= B4 5 R IE R BB B AT 49% R
BN o R RIBEARER - XE
PR HTEARE RACEIRR A
REEREMTEEH— Bt o
Rt - KM RIS ARk E
SEeX NS

R2024F11 A58  AEBEBE B
ARABEFREERAEEZEE R
AIRETO% M E R - BEUE K&
24,124,000t ° HE&EBHEA - A%
E% B ZRETT60% ML - B R
TR Az B AR E ARYIE

YREREINRE -

2024 ANNUAL REPORT 4 E3f% 241 !



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. ¥AilE#S

ANRBIRE (40)

METHOD (Continued)
(b) Investment in joint ventures (Continueqd) (b) REEQATMNREE)
Summarised financial information for joint ventures BENFGHEEREE
Set out below are the summarised financial information for UTAHAEFRNS LN T
joint ventures of the Group which is accounted for using the BiEZREAENB B E R #
equity method: G
Summarised statement of financial position B & AR R R E
Tedahang Tianjin Alps Dalian Alps
RET REFER REFARE
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
2024 2023 F 2024 2023 F 2024 F 2023 F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETT AR®TR ARETT ARETR AR®ETR
Current ok
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY - 76,099 245643 238,656 37,402 35,317
Other current assets HitRE & - 23,067 116,783 117,541 49,687 67,835
Total current assets RBEELEA - 99,166 362,426 356,197 87,080 103,152
Borrowings fa - (10,258) - - (2,588) (4,250)
Other current liabilities HtRE A E - (101,749) (109,800) (111954) (32,448  (41,310)
Total current liabilities B A ERE - (112,007)  (109,800) (111,954) (35,036) (45,560)
Net current (liabilities)/assets ~ HE(&1E) EEFE - (12,841) 252,626 244,243 52,053 57 592
Non-current FERa
Total non-current assets FRBEERE - 239,732 78,369 93,244 4,014 4,537
Total non-current liabilities FnBEEER - (95,408) (8,305)  (16,061) - -
Net non-current assets FRBEETFE - 144,324 70,064 77,183 4,014 4,537
Net assets EEFE - 131483 322,690 321,426 56,067 62,129
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. FiAigZENARNIRE &)

METHOD (Continued)

(b) Investment in joint ventures (Continued) (b) REEQTWREE)
Summarised financial information for joint ventures BERTHBEERBEE)
(Continueqd)

Summarised statement of profit or loss and other BEkHEMEZEHKRERBE

comprehensive income

Tedahang Tianjin Alps Dalian Alps
REF P=-{o) k] RE R

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
20245 2023 F 2024 F 2023 F 20245 20235
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AR®TR ARETT ARETT ARBTR

Revenue KA 257,731 455,826 545644 205545 215499

Depreciation and amortisation TERERE

(12532 (6,153) (3955  (1,617)  (1.617)

Interest income FIEMA - 174 - 259 137 -
Interest expense FIEXH - (6,958) - 1) (237) (283)
Profit before income tax F?Fﬁ EHAER - 17,897 34,161 58,948 3,594 5,845

Income tax expense NEHES - - (8,507)  (15,703) (981) (1,555)

Profit and total comprehensive FE&F R Z2HEME

income for the year k) - 17,897 25,654 43,245 2,613 4,290
Dividends received from BAEARKERN

joint ventures BE - - 11,500 22,500 2,950 400
The information above reflects the amount presented in LT ERR®EE QAN EEREKA
the financial statements of the joint ventures adjusted for 2L YERAEEHEGE
differences in accounting policies between the Group and NRIZEGEBERMNZERNEL T -

the joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. FEAiEZENARNRE &)

METHOD (Continueq)

(b) Investment in joint ventures (Continued) (b) REELQTWREE)
Summarised financial information for joint ventures EENAHBEERBEE)
(Continued)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information FI25| M BERMERERE
presented to the carrying amount of its interests in the joint ERAINERNREE FH
ventures are as follows: FEILAT -
Summarised financial information MEERBE
Tedahang Tianjin Alps Dalian Alps
RET PN=dnlE k] KEMARH
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
2024 % 2023%F 2024 5 20234 2024 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARE®ETT AR¥TR ARETT AR¥TR ARTR
At 1 January M1A1H - 113,586 321,426 323,181 62,129 58,639
Profit for the year FRRA - 17,897 25,654 43,245 2,613 4,290
Dividends R - - (23469)  (45000)  (6,020) (800)
Unallocated Profit AOEEF - - (921) - (2,655) -
At 31 December W12A31H - 131,483 322,690 321,426 56,067 62,129
Interest in joint ventures RAEEDEINERS - 78,890 158,118 157,048 27,473 31,065
Fair value adjustments on T REARDE -
land use rights and property, Bz R EN
plant and equipment AhBEEHE - (10,659 - - - -
Carrying value RHEE - 68,231 158,118 157,048 27,473 31,065
At the end of reporting period, the jointly controlled entities REEHR - HAEHEEY &T
do not have any outstanding contingent liabilities. AREEIARAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

11c. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 11c. iBiRHh P MRS AREE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME PIBRMIER T B

Year ended 31 December
HZ12H31BLEEE

2024 2023

2024 F 2023 fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETRT

Non- current assets FRBEE
Unlisted equity investments (Note (a)) JELEMHERERE (M) 27,350 28,343
27,350 28,343

Note: BT

(@) As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the fair value of (@ F2024F 12 A31H &20234F 12
the unlisted equity investment is arrived on the basis of a valuation AB1H - ELmEREENAR
carried out by an independent professional valuers. BENDERBLEZEGHEMETH

HEMmMSEE -

(o) These investments are not held for trading, instead, they are held b)) ZERETEZEARZMFER M2
for long-term strategic purposes. The directors of the Company REASEENMITE - NAFE
have elected to designate these investments in equity instruments EEREBEZERETANKREE
at FVTOCI as they believe the investments are held for long-term. ERBEEMPEEERADEE

PR - AARERAZSIRERY
A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

12. PSR (%) Fs=2
afEEREMEEKERATIE

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSES

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as below: U N
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTET
Deferred tax (Note 28) EIERTE (M 5E28) 542 (460)
Current tax: BVEARR IR
PRC Enterprise Income Tax e iR E )
Provision for the year FREE (948) 5,093
(406) 4,633

Under the prevailing tax law in the PRC, the Enterprise Income BBERITHEBE - NAF) REMH

Tax rate of the Company and the subsidiaries is 25%.

No provision for the Hong Kong Profit Tax has been made for the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 as the Group has no

BRAZBEMERMER25%

HE2024 FE [ 2023F 12 A 31 H b
FE AR AEBTEREBEE

FERBLUEH - B ERTBNEG
PiEt e -

assessable profit arising in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSES (Continued) 12. PG (%) Mz (#)
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the NS B BR AT AS 5 A A B9 T 78 B ER
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average REHEENEERNMEFH
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as EGBEEEACERMENEZEN
follows: I
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT

(Restated)
(&&&E7))
Profit before income tax Br PT1S BE R & F 5,655 40,979
Tax at the official income tax rate of REAMERBEE25%
25% (2023: 25%) (20234 : 25%)
FTERIE 1,414 10,245
Tax effect of: WTEEORBEZE
— Tax effect of share of results of associate ~ — JE(REE & A A 2E4E
BB 2 1,723 1,870
— Tax effect of share of results —EIhEEARIER
of joint venture B8 (3,112 (8,518)
- Tax effect of expenses not deductible —NA AT OB G E
for tax purpose (507) (134)
— Tax effect of income not taxable — PR BRSO E
for tax purpose (1,285) (4,102)
— Tax effect of tax losses not recognised — KRR IBEEN
MG E 1,361 5,272
Income tax (credit) expenses FTiSfi (e )X (406) 4,633
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. SR
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit ERERBRIIEFARNARES
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average A FEAG 5 M B DA B 3217 sm A hn 4
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. FHEETE o
2024 2023
2024 2023 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETRT

(Restated)
(E5)
Earnings EZF
Profit attributable to owners of the Company AR &% A AL
i ) 5,898 29,778
Number of shares (thousands) REE (FR)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares — statE SR EA N 58
for calculating basic and diluted R NON=:0)
earnings per share B INHE T IT R 354,312 354,312
For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, diluted R AR E R E E 2024 F %2023
earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings per share F12A31BILFEN &I M EE
as the Company did not have any potential dilutive ordinary Ba T mREITEIN  MEE 2024
shares outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2024 FR2023F 12 A31 AL FE K
and 2023. BERMNEGRERNZFER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. % - MERRE
Land Motor
Furniture use rights Building vehicles
and office Motor  Construction  (Right-of-use  (Right-of-use  (Right-of-use
Buildings ~ Machinery  equipment vehicles  inprogress assets) assets) assets) Total
EEV 1ihERE B k-]
B BE  BAERE hE EEIR (RREEE) (RREEE) (ERELE) &5t

RMBOO0  RMB'000 RMBOOO  RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT  ARBTT  ARETR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR

The Group 550
Cost A
At1 January 2028 RBE1A1E 262,285 19,792 34,846 52,407 2913 26,321 69,063 4,994 472,621
Addtions HE 7,261 199 2202 1,260 6,601 - - 3127 20,660
Lease termination &AL - - - - - - - (2,906) 2,906)
Disposels %2 B9 (11 B0 52 - - - - 8,007
At 31 December 2023 R2023E12R317
and 1 January 2024 RAAE1A1H 268,721 18,875 36,218 48,435 9514 26,321 69,063 5215 482,368
Addtions hE - 254 94 - 1,133 - 50,773 1,016 54,117
Disposals %E @ (%) (614 (199 - - - - 174
At31December 2024 R2024E12A318 268,495 17,999 36,545 48,281 10,647 26,321 119,836 6,231 534,311
Accumulated depreciation Z3tiT& 1443 - - 1,731 - 7404 - - 10578
At1 January 2023 R03F1A18 153,036 15,290 21715 32,020 - 9,528 20,044 1,964 263,597
Charge for the year Emgi 9,754 560 2648 5153 - 531 19,608 2890 41,144
Leass termination REAL - - - - - - - (2.906) (2.906)
Disposels k2 o (00 8 09 - - - - )
At 31 December 2023 R2023E12/31H
and 1 January 2024 R204E1A1A 162,006 14,846 23,531 32,464 - 10,059 30,652 1,048 284,506
Charge for the year ERgH 10,706 139 1,326 4,722 - 531 31,246 2,589 51,259
Disposals RE (184) (1,021) (552) (178) - - - - (1,935)
At31December 2024  R2024512R318 172,528 13,964 24305 37,008 - 10,590 70,898 4,537 333,830
Net hook values RETE
At31December 2024  R2024E12731H 95,967 4,035 12,240 11,229 10,647 15,781 48,938 1,694 200,481
At 31 December 2023 Ro023F 12 /31 H 106,721 4029 12,687 16,971 9514 16,262 29411 3,267 197,862
Note: FiEE
During the year ended 31 December 2024, depreciation expense of REE2024F12A31HIEFE - TE
RMB47,835,000 (2023: RMB34,332,000) has been charged in ‘Cost M A AR 47,835,000 7T(2023 F :
of sales’ and RMB3,424,000 (2023: RMB6,812,000) in ‘Administrative AR #34,332,0007T) 2 Bl $5E R A |
expenses’. Nk - ARBE3,424,0007T(20234F = A

R#6,812,0007T) 2 B[ 1T s |40k -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. Y% - ERREE)

The Group as lessee

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and
equipment)

During the current year, the Group leases properties for self-
own use and motor vehicles for its operations. Lease contracts
are entered into for fixed term of one to three years (2023: one
to three years), but may have termination option to terminate the
leasing agreement of motor vehicle after one year. In addition,
the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise
an extension option, or not to exercise a termination option, upon
the occurrence of either a significant event or a significant change
in circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During
the year, there is no such triggering event (2023: Nil). Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.
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15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2024 F 12 431 A 1 F/&

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REM%
2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T AR®ET T
At the beginning of the year RENEEER 412,200 408,500
Additions RE - 5,883

Net loss arising from change in fair values BEARBEESHES

o t=Ve (5,200) (2,183)
Balance at the end of the year GRS =S 407,000 412,200

The direct operating expense from investment properties
is approximately RMB846,000 (2023: approximately
RMB1,412,000) and the rental income generated from
investment properties is approximately RMB19,955,000 (2023:
approximately RMB27,974,000).

Fair value

All investment properties of the Group are warehouse, freight
yard and commercial premises located in the PRC.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 has been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out by an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected to the Group.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties was
determined based on the income capitalisation approach, which
involves estimating the rental incomes of the properties and
capitalising them all on appropriate rate to produce a capital
value.

REVENEREERINAAR
846,000 7C(20234F : H AR
1,412,0007T) - BREVEEER
el AL A ARM19,955,000
TL(20234F = #) A R % 27,974,000
JT) °

P

|

BE

AEBENMEREME/LRF
MERE B NERSM -

A

\
.

REERR 2024 F K 2023 F 12 A 31
HRREMENAABEDENE
VEBRBEGEM(ERNEBSE
B3 ) FTEf TR IS E MER -

REBREMEN R EETRA
WABRETAEE - EF 5 kb
AMENHEES WA RKHEZFK
ARBEHLERERMABGHEARE
18 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. REWMFE &)

Fair value (Continued)

In estimating the fair values of the properties, their current use
equates to the highest and best use of the properties.

At each financial year end, the management of the Group will
(i) verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report; (ii)
assess property valuations movements when compared to the
prior year valuation report; and (iii) holds discussion with the
independent valuer.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfer out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
investment properties were classified as level 3 under the fair
value hierarchy (2023: level 3). Changes in level 3 fair values
are analysed at each reporting date by the management of the
Group. There were no transfers into or out of level 3 during the
year.

At 31 December 2024, the Group’s investment properties
with fair values of approximately RMB298,400,000 (2023:
approximately RMB315,000,000) have been pledged to secure
the borrowings to the Group.
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HE2024F K 2023F 12 A31 H
LtFE REMERBAAEBE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value (Continued)

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2024 and 2023

15. IREM%¥E %)

IREEAE)

REB R 2024 F % 2023 F 12 A 31
BEBREYWERAABEERE

are as follows: B FENT -

Fair value of Valuation technique(s) Relationship
investment Fair value  and significant of unobservable
properties hierarchy  unobservable inputs inputs to fair value

AREE HERWREEREE BLBRE BB
RENEXDAEBE E& BEpAHE MAEENEE
2024 2023
2024 2023 F
RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARETR
Investment 407,000 412,200 Level 3 Market unit rent, using the direct Assuming that the
properties market comparables and taking market yield stand,
in PRC into account of location and other the increase in the
individual factors, of range from market unit rent would
RMBO0.19 sg. m. to result in an increase
RMB3.59 sg. m. per day in fair value.
(2023: RMB0.15 sg. m. to
RMB?7.00 sg. m. per day).
A E &) E-FE m5ENHE KAEETSAE RETHRREERTE
REME AR ARG ISEE AmsEnHesES
HtERER - §REENT AREEES -
BYHARARB019LE
BYHARAR®359TT
(2023%F : §AHEENT
BYHARARK0.16LE
BYAAKARE7.007T) ©
Market yield, taking into account Assuming that the

of yield generated from
comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the certainty
of term income secured
and to be received of 7.2%-7.6%
(2023: 7.5%-9.1%).

miglaEE - it RAALRDER
7 A i R R S R DA SR R

FERIS RS AR BRI A RO RETE 1 -

HEWEEART.2% - 7.6%
(20234 : 7.5%-9.1%) °

market unit rent stand,
the increase in the
reversionary yield would
result in a decrease

in fair value.

BRASERLEHTE
ARSI S
DA BEBIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. IREWM*E#)
Fair value (Continued) AREEE)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorise within level PBERAARBEERZE=ZEAZ
3 of the fair value hierarchy: AABEFEHE
Total
et
RMB’000
AR® TR
Carrying amount at 1 January 2023 720231 A1 BHREE 408,500
Additions ?FE 5,883
Fair value changes NRABEEY (2,183
Carrying amount at 31 December 2023 and 12023512 H31H
1 January 2024 &2024&1 A1 B/EEE 412,200
Fair value changes NREEEE) (5,200)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2024 72024 12 A 31 HWEREE 407,000
The Group believes that any possible changes in the input values REEEE  GABBRMGEERRE
would not cause significant change in fair value of investment RAMEZHBEISERIREME
properties. AABELIRERNED -
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16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

16. ERTH

By Category g bl
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 %
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR AR®ET
Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets measured at amortised cost: IR KA EN D FEE
— Trade, bills and other receivables, — B ZEUFIE
excluding prepayment to suppliers A ES Y e i)
FEWGRIE (B IE
[A) £ i P TR A 5RIE) 158,516 264,185
— Amount due from joint venture — WA & NFIFIA 128,191 131,343
- Pledged bank deposits —BEHIRITHER 84,673 56,015
— Cash and cash equivalents -RBeMkBEEEY 313,965 340,301
Total et 685,345 791,844
Equity Instruments at fair value through FREMEEBEZAR
other comprehensive Income BEYENERTE 27,350 28,343
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 16. EMTH#)
By Category (Continueqd) RERI(E)
2024 2023
2024 & 2023 F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREFTT

Financial liabilities A h=R
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: (&SRR EN S REE -
— Borrowings — & 260,119 351,909
— Lease liabilities —fHEaE 51,942 35,285
— Trade and other payables —B 5 REMENKIE 378,926 339,776
Total st 690,987 726,970
17. INVENTORIES 17. 78
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET ARET T
Goods for sale HEEY 3,158 31,636
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value MR2024F K 202312 A31H » 17
as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. B AN ERFE L BIEETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2024 F 12 431 A 1 F/&

days (2023: 30 to 180 days) to its trade customers.

18. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES SAMKRGRIE « BIRRIERHE
ﬂil[;llﬁz?klﬁ
2024 2023
2024 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETET
Trade receivables B S EWFIE 351,173 457,657
Less: Allowance for impairment B RER (201,470) (203,333)
149,703 254,324
Bills receivables (note b) e EE (MiEb) 4,813 3,031
Less: Allowance for impairment B R E R (53) (12)
154,463 257,343
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments — Efh U FRIE - 124 &
TET IR 4,762 7,637
Amount due from joint venture (note d) e & & A El R IE (MR d) 130,980 135,515
Less: Allowance for impairment N ﬁfﬁ%ﬂ% (3,498) (4,967)
286,707 395,528
Prepayment to suppliers A4k FE B TR AN SR I8 367,409 177,240
Less: Allowance for impairment B RERE (90,681) (90,681)
276,728 86,559
563,435 482,087
Less: non-current portion B IEmENER D
—Amount due from joint venture (note d) — A& R RFRIE
(BEd) (71,353) (85,076)
492,082 397,011
Notes: BT
(@  The balance of the Group’s trade, bills and other receivables are @ AEENZESEKFUE - BRERE
denominated in RMB. T EAth FEWGRIB 5 8239 A AR BB 51|
g -
(o) As at 31 December 2024, the bills are non-interest bearing bank (o) 2024512 A31H @ ZEFRET
acceptance bills with a maximum maturity period of 180 days. TEERITALESR - JHARER
A180H -
(c)  The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 30 to 180 ) AEEHRTHESFRFPHTHEER

9 1 F30ZF 180 B (20234 : 30
Z=180H) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

18. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d) Included in the amount due from joint venture was approximately
RMB85,220,000 (2023: approximately RMB93,739,000) was
unsecured, charged with interest at 4.3% per annum and it can
be recovered before June 30 2025, and Tedahang Cold Chain
Logistics provides collateral for the bond with its movable property
rights. The remaining balances were unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable on demand.

The following is an aging analysis of trade and bills receivables
(before allowance of impairment) based on invoice date at the
end of reporting period:

18.

S2RNRRIA « [BUICRIERE
fth FEUFRIA (&)

BRE - ()

d EREERRINTEFRBEHAR
85,220,000 7L(2023 4 : AR
93,739,000 7T ) K IF + %2 4.3%
B R K58 AR 202546 B
30 BRTIRE - FETT(RZ) R HEY
MR — e ERAZEEERE
IR - HROBTEREER -
& B MR ERIgE o

RREHKRE SRR RE M EWE
BOREBEREHN)EREZHEMNE
RO ¢

EEF

2024 2023

2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T

0 - 90 days 0%Z90H 152,467 251,178
91 - 180 days 91 £ 180H 621 7,714
181- 365 days 1812365 H 1,259 4,626
Over 365 days 365 HMA E 201,639 197,170

355,986 460,688

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer.

Details of assessment on expected credit loss are set out in Note
4.1(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS

. HERAESEMREEPIR

TEFR

2024 2023

2024 F 2023 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥STRT ARETR

Cash at bank and on hand RITMFHERE 313,965 340,301
Pledged bank deposits (note (c)) EERRITFER(HEE () 84,673 56,015

(@)

The Group’s bank balances and cash denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the

(@ AEBNEHSEERYES
AN EEFHEMRITER R

relevant group entities were as follows: WeWT :
2024 2023
2024 F 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETRT

Currency: B
- US Dollars —3%7T
— Japanese Yen —HIT

402 2,833
44 2

Bank balances carry interest at market rate, the effective
interest rates of the bank balances during the year are as
follows:

(b) WITHEBKIRTISANEG L
RNEFRITHERN BRI ZE 0
T

2024 2023

2024 F 2023 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AREKTRT

Effective interest rate (per annum) ERME(FLR)

0.80%-1.75%  0.2%-2.1%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 19. HERREFBIMRESPIR

BANK DEPOSITS (Continued) fIEFRE)

() Pledged bank deposits represents pledge to banks to ) BEERRITEREMRITE
secure bills payables of approximately RMB151,600,000 HZEA UERAEED
(2023: approximately RMB 112,150,000) issued by the BHENEBHOARK
Group. 151,600,000 7T (2023 F : 49

AR # 112,150,000 7T) °
As at 31 December 2024, the pledged bank deposits carry R2024F 12 A31H  E&#
fixed interest rate of ranged from 0.15% to 1.75% (2023: RITFEZRIZ0.15% £ 1.75%
fixed interest rate of 0.25% to 2.25%) per annum. The (20234 : [& E F 10.25%;.;
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the settlement 2.25%) 2 [ETE FFEFHE ©
of relevant bills payables. ERIRITIE AR5 E M F%JE
NEIBBERRRIER

(d) RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the remittance d) ARETTBEHRLKR B9
of funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange PE & & 78 & <7 BTN
restriction imposed by the PRC government. Cash at banks EEFIHER - RITHESBES
earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits BiRITERAEAERFEH
rate. KEREF S o

20. SHARE CAPITAL 20. Bx7K
2024 2023
2024 & 2023 F
Domestic Domestic
Shares  H-shares Total shares H-shares Total
RER H & #et WE R H & st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR¥ETR ARETR ARETR AREBTRT ARETR
At the beginning of the year R F ) - 354,312 354,312 256,069 98,243 354,312
Conversion from domestic A& ik E#
shares to H-shares BHRRR
(note (a)) (PizE(a) - - - (256,009 256,069 -

At the end of the year RER - 354,312 354,312 - 354,312 354,312

Note: FEE

(@) In 2023, in accordance with the relevant approval from the China (@ FE2023%F - HEEH I FEw L
Securities Regulatory Commission and the Stock Exchange, RETRIAEREALE - D RIBRXER

150,420,051, 77,303,789 and 28,344,960 Domestic shares
held by Tianjin TEDA Investment Holding Co., Ltd., Chia Tai
Pharmaceutical Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and Chia Tai Land
Company Limited respectively were converted into equal number
of H shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

(@) Statutory reserves

Reserve fund and Enterprise expansion find

According to the relevant PRC rules and their articles of
association, appropriations from net profit should be made
to the Reserve Fund and the Enterprise Expansion Fund. The
percentages to be appropriated to the Reserve Fund and
Enterprise Expansion Fund are determined by the respective board
of directors. Upon approval, the Reserve Fund can be used to
offset accumulated losses or be converted into capital.

21. OTHER RESERVES 21. HfthE S
Statutory Other
Share reserves reserves
premium (Note a) (Note b) Total
EEAES Hih e
% 105 8 (Mizka) (MizEb) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR%®Tr AR¥®TR AR®T:R
At 1 January 2023 R 202341 A 18 55,244 110,403 (64,891) 100,756
Transfer to statutory BEBEETAES
reserves - 3,415 - 3,415
Other comprehensive FEHEMEAEEBE
loss for the year - - (5,984) (5,984)
At 31 December 2023 and 72023412 A 31 H
1 January 2024 % 2024F1HA1H 55,244 113,818 (70,875) 98,187
Transfer to statutory reserves EBEZ AT ANES - 1,597 - 1,597
Other comprehensive loss ~ FEH b2 HEE B
for the year - - (993) (993)
At 31 December 2024 R2024F12H831H 55,244 115,415 (71,868) 98,791
Notes: FE -

(@) EEQAEE
RELTREFRREL

RIBPEABER MRENERA
8 ARSI ERES R
RET - BBERESLEERR
HEeWANTHHEEEFTSETE
"R - RE2 R RIEEE R
IR ERAENR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

21. OTHER RESERVES (Continueq) 21.

Notes: (Continued)
(@) Statutory reserves (Continued)
Reserve fund and Enterprise expansion find (Continued)

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are domestic
limited liability companies established under the PRC Company
Law. According to the relevant PRC rules and their articles of
association, statutory surplus reserve should be appropriated
from net profit of management account under China Accounting
Standard before distribution. The amount of appropriation should
be 10% of profit after taxation, calculated in accordance with the
PRC accounting rules and regulations, applicable to enterprises in
the PRC, of the Company and its subsidiaries. The appropriation
may cease to apply if the balance of the statutory surplus reserve
has reached 50% of the entity’s registered capital. Statutory
surplus reserve can be used to make up prior year losses, to
expand operation or to increase share capital. The Company or
its subsidiaries may capitalise the statutory surplus reserve by way
of bonus issues provided that the amount of the statutory surplus
reserve remaining after such appropriation shall not be less than
25% of the registered capital of the Company or its subsidiaries.

(b) Other reserves

(i) Merger reserves represent the difference between the
paid up capital of the subsidiaries and the nominal value of
Company’s shares issued in exchange for the equity interest
in the subsidiaries upon the reorganisation of the Group prior
to listing.

(i) The FVTOCI reserve represents cumulative gains and losses
arising on the revaluation of equity instruments at FVTOCI
that have been recognised in other comprehensive income,
net of amounts reclassified to retained earnings when
those equity instruments at FVTOCI are disposed of or are
determined to be impaired.
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EEAEE(E)
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RABREETHEB A RIREFRE
RERVEKMBREBR AT © BRI
PERRER R SR ERMA -
ETERBAESEDEHBREE
FEEERIRRAEIRR S TN
AOF BB - BRERBEAN R EH
ENTFESRE RO EN
ANATE R EHE A BRI F 8
10% E| 8 - AT BB ATES %
HEEIEEIMELANS0% -
AA R ILEIB S AT BB ATES -
EERBAESRERETEE
1B EAREBSILIEA - KA 7]
REMB AT AT ABTARS R
ERTERBABESENL - ERIG
WEATRBABSEEABERET
BERM AR B R EM B AR FERE
K 25% °

Hitbf &

) AHREEENBLREMRK
REARRBREWAETSE
| & AE R BN B R R Ak
BTN EERNEEE -

(i) BEEMEAWERALE
EIIRZ HEEEEE LS
E R A BRI R
aTACEREML2EKE
R EMMES 2 Rt
LEE EREEBEME
Y s iR A e BRI R
s TADHEXEERRE
o BB EH D RERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

22. RETAINED EARNINGS

22. {RERMI

RMB’000
AR® TR
Balance at 31 December 2022 R 20224 12 A 31 HW & 418,816
Effect of adoption of amendments to IAS 12 KABRR g EE 125K (BFIR) 2 & 389
Balance at 1 January 2023 (restated) R 20234F 1 A1 BH&E#H(EET) 419,205
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEEWEERE 29,778
Transfer to other reserves RS (3,415)
Dividends recognised as distribution HWRAED KA E (10,788)
Balance at 31 December 2023 R2023F 12 A31 HX
and 1 January 2024 20241 A1 HH&E & 434,780
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZEKRATE 5,898
Transfer to other reserves R EEH MR (1,597)
Dividends recognised as distribution ERAD KA E (7,086)
Balance at 31 December 2024 A 2024 F12 A 31 H &6k 431,995

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. BARHIhENFRIA

2024 2023

2024 2023

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTRT ARBTT

Trade payables Z S e IR 189,548 206,305

Bills payables (note a) e E&R (M5 a) 151,600 112,150

341,148 318,455

Other tax payables Hith fE 1118 55 1,543

Other payables and accruals e BOE R B R RUR 42,016 21,321

383,219 341,319

Notes: BEE -

(@ The bills are non-interest bearing and have a maximum maturity @ ZEZEBEARERIBHRREA12

@A - HERR FAEENEER
NFI0EWH - AEEERES
EESRETA BT IEME R - LR
BN REREEAI -

period of 12 months. The credit period granted by the suppliers to
the Group ranged from 30 to 90 days. Management of the Group
monitors the repayment of all payables and ensures compliance
with credit time frame.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)  The aging analysis of the trade payables and bills payables based
on invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

23. BARHMENFRIA &)
s ()

b EBZENFERENEERREH
RERHZBHNREONAT

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREETTT

0 - 90 days 0ZEQ90H 188,191 317,028
91 - 180 days 91E180H 151,651 1,028
181 - 365 days 1812365 H 605 331
Over 365 days 365 HLA 701 68
341,148 318,455
24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 24. BHI&E

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2024 2023

2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%®TET

Materials procurement and VB R E R R ET

related logistics business

54,051 39,971

Note: Contract liabilities in relation to sales of goods and procurement
services in advance from customer are expected to be settled
within one year.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, revenue recognised
from performance obligation during current year that was
included in the contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the
year was approximately RMB33,967,000 (2023: approximately
RMB260,949,000).

Wit AEVHERRBRERNZTFE
WRIEEEN A OB EEFTN—
FREE °

REE2024F12 A31 B IEFE -
HAGHEBEFVESRNAFERY
BHEHTFEIAHKEABHARKE
33,967,000 7 (20234 : #) A R #&
260,949,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

25. BORROWINGS 25. 87k
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETRT
Bank borrowings, secured (note (d)) RITIENR - BEREEQ)) 260,119 304,054
Other borrowings, secured (note (€)) HaER - BEEREEE) - 47,855
Total borrowings B 260,119 351,909
Carrying amount repayable: AEEREE
Within one year —F R 260,095 313,730
Within a period of more than one year —F A EBTBAMTHA
but not exceeding two years - 9,676
Within a period of more than two years MELA LB ER A FEHRN
but not exceeding five years - 28,503
After a period of more than five years 838 1 F &Y B 24 -
260,119 351,909
Less: DA
Amounts due within one year shown under RRBBETZ2I A
current liabilities with repayment RIBIR Z SKE B G
on demand clause —FREIERFRTE (260,095) (313,730)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities EMBEFEE T 2HMFIE 24 38,179
Notes: FEE -
(@) The effective annual interest rates of the borrowings at the @ MRmEBBERNERFEANEN
reporting date were as follows: K
2024 2023
2024 £ 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARMEET T
Effective rate RS 3.85%-5.66%  3.00%-9.39%
(o) The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair (o) 20244 K&2023F12A31H -
values as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 either due to their short- EBRHEmMEREEAAEEE
term maturity or because they bear interest at prevailing market E - DREAMEFREAAR
rates throughout their maturity period. BRMEFAABREARITT

IR

2024 ANNUAL REPORT 4 E#f% 265 '



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

25. BORROWINGS (continueq)
Notes: (Continued)

(c) The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates.

(d) As at 31 December 2024, the bank borrowings with
carrying amount of approximately RMB260,119,000 (2023:
RMB304,054,000) are secured by the Group’s investment
properties guaranteed by the Company and TEDA Holding
(2023: Group’s investment properties, pledge bank deposits and
guaranteed by the Company and TEDA Holding).

(e) To better manage the Group’s capital structure and financing
needs, the Group sometimes enters into sale and leaseback
arrangements in relation to property, plant and equipment leases.
These legal transfers do not satisfy the requirements of IFRS 15 to
be accounted for as a sale of the property, plant and equipment.
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group not have
(2023: RMB47,855,000) other borrowings in respect of such sale
and leaseback arrangements.

26. DEFERRED INCOME

25. f&FR (&)
BiRE : (&)

(€ BIEIBEDNREFEEE R HE
= o

d) M2024F12A31H | & %
#4 A A R % 260,119,000 7T(2023
F : AR¥ 304,054,000 70 ) HERTT
BRAREERIEEME AT
W AR T RFREERER2023
F:UREEIREYE - R
TERBER - WHARFRRE
PERRHEIR) ©

€ ABTEFHEEAERNERNERE
LFREFRR  AXEEEREILE
HmE - BEMIHEHENSRD
HZH - WEESZERETTFEH
BREI TSR LRI E 155 HE Y
¥ BMEREBEAKRHNBETE R
H E2024F12A31H It F E -
AEELREREEERBALTH
BB E B (2023F : AR
47,855,000 7T) °

26. IRIEUIA

2024 2023

2024 F 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT

Government grants received BT B &

3,768 3,979

The government grants from TEDA Administrative Commission
were received in respect of its acquisition of land use rights and
the project of inspection and storage centre. The government
grants are recognised as deferred income and are released
to income over the periods necessary to match them with the
related costs. During the year, of approximately RMB211,000
(2023: RMB212,000) was recognised under other income, other
gain and losses - net.

RREMEREEZE SRR
JiF 8 B & AR U £ o 8 P A M e
BAHALDIRE - BB 2R ERS
AU - 3 7E B2 AR B A AN AR U AT
b EREERARA - REEL
B AR ®%211,0007T(20234F : A
Eﬂ%mz 0007T ) #% i &8 /% H b 1
- BAD RS e B IR — A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. iHE&fE
As at 31 December 2024, the Group acquired motor vehicle M2024%F12H31H ' &N & B @&
by means of lease agreement with a total capital value at the AHEHEEBAE REER
inception date of the lease of approximately RMB1,016,000 WMERNBEAEBESINAAR
(2023: RMB3,127,000). The lease terms are ranged from 2 to ¥ 1,016,000 70(2023F : A R #&
3 years (2023: 2 to 3 years). Interest rates underlying the lease 3,127,0007t ) - HH EH B2E3F
liabilities are ranged from 3.87% to 5.77% (2023: 3.87% to (20234 : 2E3%F ) - HEAEW
3.92%). & B387T%ES5.77% (20234 :

3.87% % 3.92%) °

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group'’s lease liabilities R 2024F &2023%F 12 A31H + X
were repayable as follows: SEESREMNERBANT

Present value of
Minimum lease payment minimum lease payment

REHENR REHENRRE
2024 2023 2024 2023
2024 & 2023 £ 2024 F 2023 £

RMB’'000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBETT AR¥TR AR®TR

Amounts payable under HEAEFEET
lease liabilities: fERT SR -
Within one year —FR 52,521 24,621 51,627 23,488
Over one year but within two years ~ —%F LA HEERER 284 11,924 277 11,797
Over two years but within five years ~ FIEIA FERFR 39 - 38 -
52,844 36,545 51,942 35,285
Less: Future finance charges B BB (902) (1,260) - -
51,942 35,285 51,942 35,285
Less: Amount due within one year WoonBaEAET
shown under current liabilities IR —FR
B e (51,627)  (23,488)
Amount due after one year shown — FERBBEE T
under non-current liabilities PR —F LA TR
HHHEER 315 11,797
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 28. REMIBEEE &f&
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement HEIEHTBMRAKRNE BT
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities BB IEEERABEE THIE - 5t
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax MBS B P ER R LT I fR 5
balances for financial reporting purposes: ST
2024 2023
2024 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETET

Deferred tax assets RIETHIBE E 333 652
Deferred tax liabilities BEXEMIEAE (55,575) (55,352)
(55,242) (54,700)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (Continued) 28. RETIAEE, &fE#)
The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RAFERBAFERRANEZR
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior ERBEBEE(AB)REZFHN
years: T ¢
Revaluation
of
investment Right-of- Lease
properties use assets liabilities Total
REMXER EHAREE HEAE st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥TR AR®TR AR®TR

As at 31 December 2022 7220224 12 A31 H (55,897) - - (565,897)
Effect of adoption of KA 48
amendments to IAS 12 ERPEACCHEN)
-7 - (13,012 13,749 737
As at 1 January 2023 M 2023F1 H1H
(restated) (&8 &E5) (565,897) (13,012 13,749 (55,160)

Credited/(charged) tothe 5t A (FNE )& H
consolidated statement of 1#Ez5 % (FiiE12)
profit or loss (Note 12) 545 4,843 (4,928) 460

As at 31 December 2023 72023412 A31 H
and 1 January 2024 20241 A1H (565,352) (8,169) 8,821 (54,700)

Credited/(charged) to the £t A/ (18)A& 6
consolidated statement of 857 (Misr 12)
profit or loss (Note 12) (223) (4,489) 4,170 (542)

As at 31 December 2024 7220244 12 831 B (55,575) (12,658) 12,991 (55,242)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& Ot BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (Continued) 28. REBIAEE &iE#)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately RMB130,106,000 (2023: approximately
RMB133,125,000) which expired after 5 years available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

RIBEBR  NEBERFERNB
B EE# B AR 130,106,0007T
(20234 : #49 A K ¥133,125,000
JL)  R5FEREE - JAREHEAR
H s Fl o FRFA R A s A A R AT TR

RAINE - WERERIEERIAEE

29. DIVIDENDS 29. X8
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TT
Dividends for Owners of the Company FRERAD KB ARA A
recognised as distribution during the year: HmBEARRE
Final dividend in respect of the previous FRHERIRERBBEA
financial year, approved and paid during —BEENRARE
the year, of RMBO0.02 per share (2023: 0.03) &K AR 0.02 7T
(20234 : 0.03) 7,086 10,788

On 21 March 2025, the Directors proposed the payment of final
dividend of RMBO0.03 per share for the year ended 31 December
2024 (2023: RMBO0.02 per share). These consolidated financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable. The proposed
final dividend is subject to the approval at the Company’s annual

general meeting of 2025.

PR2025F3A21H EFEE#F K
BHE2024F1231HIEFE
REAR B E R AR 0.0370(2023
F:ERARB0R2T) ZEA
OF B 75 i 2% 30 M I MR 5% IE FE N AR
B o ZEARHERES

FRARE

2025 F R R AF Ke FERE -

30. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 30. BEEEH
2024 2023
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%®TET
Pledged bank deposits BEERIRITHER 84,673 56,015
Investment properties wEME 298,400 315,000
Property, plant and equipment W - WEREE - 6,308
383,073 377,323
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

31. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31. RETIMRISGIHE
2024 2023
2024 2023 F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt aE AR%STR ARE®TR
Profit before income tax B P15 550 A& A 5,655 40,979
Adjustments for: MATIEEELRAE
Interest income FEMA 7 (7,263) (11,749)
Finance costs & KA 10 19,610 21,339
Depreciation of property, M WE KR
plant and equipment RETE 14 16,893 18,115
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FREEETE 14 34,366 23,029
Loss on change in fair values REWMELABEEHN
of investment properties &8 15 5,200 2,183
Net loss on disposal of property, HEYE - BE
plant and equipment KR FEE 7 124 279
Reversal of/impairment loss of B 5 RWHIE - EERE
trade, bills and other receivables, K2 B A JlE W Rk IR
net RERE,RE
B8 55 4.1b (3,291) (5,209)
Deferred income amortisation R RE WA 8 26 (211) (212)
Dividends income from REESIZEHREBRA
equity investments 7 (68) (80)
Waiver of other payable Ao HoAth FE < R IE 7 (5,136) (11,314)
Share of profit of investments KAREREARNEN
accounted for using & %= A
the equity method 11(b) (5,557) (26,592)
Gain on disposal of joint venture PEEE QTR E (24,124) -
Gain on deemed disposal of RIELE S E QAR
joint venture (243) -
Operating cash flow before changes &84 & & ERTH) &8
in working capital: REME 35,955 50,768
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TFERDL,/(38m) 28,478 (31,630)

Decrease/(increase) in trade,

B 5 RWHUR - BREE

bills and other receivables R H Ath e U sk I8
A, (E ) (78,057) 285,939

(Decrease)/increase in trade B 5 MEAMERTRIA

and other payables CRA) /1 m 47,034 (216,125)
(Decrease) /increase in contract BHEBECRD),

liabilities 14,080 (224,993)
Cash generated from/(used in) EEFE,(FTR)BES

operations 47,490 (136,041)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

32. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flow were, or future cash flows will be classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows from financing
activities.

32. MEENEEZEEHIR

TRHALXREEREZTHEENE
BEEHFT ERASkFEREE
HomEIDELINRELSERS
MEGRIEBRASREBNA
SEAHRERERDBRBRER
BEReRENEE -

Lease
liabilities Borrowings Total
HEaE EEN et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%®TR AR%®Tx
(note 27) (note 25)
(MiEE27) (Mi5E25)
At 1 January 2023 R2023F1 A1H 54,997 285,175 340,172
Accrued interest FEEHFIE 2,272 19,067 21,339
Less: Interest paid B BERFE (2,272) (19,067) (21,339)
New lease entered (Note 14) BRI R HEE (M 14) 3,127 - 3,127
Proceeds from financing REBMEBRSRAD
cash inflows FriS I8 - 375,843 375,843
Financing cash outflows BMER SR (22,839) (309,109) (331,948)
At 31 December 2023 R2023%F12 A31H X
and 1 January 2024 20241 A1H 35,285 351,909 387,194
Accrued interest JEETFI B 1,573 18,037 19,610
Less: Interest paid B BERHE (1,573) (18,037) (19,610)
New lease entered (Note 14) BRI HFHEE(MFE14) 51,789 - 51,789
Proceeds from financing KERERSRAN
cash inflows FT{S k18 - 378,119 378,119
Financing cash outflows BER M (35,132) (469,909) (505,041)
At 31 December 2024 A 202412831 H 51,942 260,119 312,061
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33.

34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

COMMITMENTS 33. R

The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non- RIFEKEYER BT A BEL
cancellable operating leases in respect of investment properties EHEMARREEEEWARTER
are as follows: T

2024 2023
2024 £ 2023 £
RMB’000 RB’000

AR®TRT ARETRT

Within one year —FR 7,866 21,892
In the second year F= 6,402 7,866
In the third year E=F 5,143 6,402
In the fourth year FNF 5,143 5,143
In the fifth year FERF 5,143 5,143
After five years AFAE 71,576 76,719
101,273 123,165
MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. BEARERRSZ
(a) Transactions/balances with other state owned (a) BEEMTERELENRS
enterprises in the PRC e
The Group operates in an economic environment currently AN G B A A ) OB IR 35 3R B
predominated by enterprises directly or indirectly owned or TR EZ S EEEA T
controlled by the PRC government (hereinafter collectively SN EATHRBAIEA D
referred to as “state-controlled entities”). The directors of XEDEEXZE - XRQFIESER
the Company consider those state-controlled entities are RMAEEEEEETHE
independent third parties so far as the Group’s business BRPME  ZEEBLEES
transactions with them are concerned. BIE=T -
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34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. BARERXRA(#Z)

(@) Transactions/balances with other state owned (a)
enterprises in the PRC (Continuead)

During the year, the Group’s significant transactions with
these state controlled entities include purchases of raw
materials for trading purposes and fuel for transportation
vehicles used in the logistics business. As at year end,
majority of the Group’s cash and bank balances and
borrowings are with state controlled banks.

(b) Key management compensation (b)

The details of remuneration of key management personnel
are set out in Note 9.

(c) For the transactions constitute connected transactions under (c)
GEM Listing Rules, please refer to “Connected Transactions
and Continuing Connected Transactions” under “Directors’
Report”.

The followings are the details of continuing connected
transaction of the Group during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023:

HEMTHEECENRS,
EER(E)

FA AEERLEEERALEE
MERRSBREARZENE
E\Ejﬁﬂ'b{&%m%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ £
BREWMONE - RFE - K
SEAREHE & MRITAESRIA
REFAREREFRITHM
BARITREE -

FEEE ASHM
FEEBRABHFMOFHEEHRL
BFEQ ©

BEHBKGEM EHARRIIET
MEXFINR S F2HE
FEWmE HETNBERS RF
BRAERS | —f -

N B E 2024 F 2023 F
12A31BIEFEMNZERZ
RGHBHHNWMOT -

2024 2023

2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT

Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd. RELEHMRBR AR
will provide logistics services 1 1A 2 R 388 R AR =X
and supply chain solutions for gHREAERAE
automobiles and car components to YR RS R A

the Toyota Tsusho Corporation (note 1) §#f#3R 77 22 AR 7% ( W 1)

4,996 5,673
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34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. BARIERR A (£)

(c) (Continued) (c) (#&)
Notes: BT -

1. Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd (K;ZZLAMWRAERA 1. RELHYRERAA - —

Al), a sino-foreign equity joint venture incorporated in the RN 1996 F 7 A 19 HEHE

PRC on 19 July 1996, which is owned as to 52% by the FMAZAFINEGERE

Company, 36.2% by Toyota Tsusho Corporation, 7.3% by AARAR - Z2HEBEKAE

Kamigumi Company Limited (B ZA&#k= &1 F4H) and 4.5% - BAMAgH FERA

by Toyota Transportation Corporation (H A& M@ EkE AL W& GRS LD B

%), and Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd. is a subsidiary of B52% - 36.2%  7.3% &

the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. 4.5% % & o BIEGEM £

R REEAMRERA
AIAARRRIMMB AR -

(d) In addition to the transactions and balance disclosed (d BREHIBHRRSEEENHR
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statement, the SREHIN  REBFTBHNLT
Group entered into below related party transaction. MERRS o

2024 2023

2024 & 2023 fF

Name of related party Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000

BEFER REME ARET ARBET T

Tedahang Interest income 5,778 6,104
ZRELT FEKA
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

35. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

35. BRI RZNER

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4%
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
AR® T ARET T
(E5)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WEREE 3,602 4,347
Investment properties B 213,900 226,900
Amount due from joint venture JEW & &N EIFIA 71,353 85,076
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ARIMIKE 190,241 196,221
Investments in joint ventures RAEERRIKRE 69,585 170,941
Investments in associates REERNRIRRE 13,500 13,500
Equity instruments at fair value FREMEEBEZAR
through other comprehensive income BEYENERZTA 27,350 28,343
Deferred tax assets EERIEE = - 5
589,531 725,333
Current assets RBEE
Inventories TE 3,156 25,901
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E At e W IE 332,531 231,246
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note a) fEU KB AR E (Mt a) 59,075 10,359
Pledged bank deposits BERIRITEN 45,236 36,015
Cash and cash equivalents He kIR EEY 90,117 8,686
530,115 312,207
Total assets HEE 1,119,646 1,037,540
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35. BRI RZNER

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (&)
As at 31 December
Mm12H31H
2024 2023
2024 &£ 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
AR%T T AREEFIT
(EE5)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EzkaE
Equity R
Share capital fi& 7% 354,312 354,312
Other reserves (note c) H s (MisEc) 67,068 67,930
Retained earnings (note c) REBEF (KI:Ec) 158,657 182,842
Total equity ARER 580,037 605,084
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REBEaE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMER IR 241,797 125,718
Contract liabilities EH8E 53,449 22,484
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note b) FERFY B AR sk IE (kD) - 13,211
Current income tax liabilities EHFGHAasE - 256
Lease liabilities HEBE - 18
Borrowings (=N 232,400 251,099
Financial guarantee liabilities MBS EREL - 5,980
527,646 418,766
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFRIBAE 11,963 13,690
11,963 13,690
Total liabilities e E 539,609 432,456
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35. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 35. BN SIMIKIRRZNEGIR
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (#)
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
AR® T ARET T
(&E7))
Total equity and liabilities wWEZREE 1,119,646 1,037,540
Net current asset (liabilities) RBEE(AE)FHE 2,469 (106,559)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABERE 592,000 618,774
These financial statements were approved and authorised for ZEMBREELBHEFTERN 2025
issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2025 and were FIH21 B ERIERE - W H
signed on its behalf by: INTATREEE

Yang Weihong Ma Xin
BEAL B
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continuea)

Notes:

(@)

Amounts due from subsidiaries are non-trade nature, unsecured,

interest free and recoverable on demand.

Amounts due to subsidiaries are non-trade nature, unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

Reserves of the Company:

35. BRI RZNER
(&)
BEE

ﬁﬂ/

(@ EUEMBARIFEBIESILE -
AEER  TEFERIZERAW
8] -

b ENHBARFEBIEZNE -
REEE . B RARERE

&

©  ARFHE :

Share Other Statutory Retained
premium reserves reserves earnings Total
R RE Hitfifs AELES REBEF &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR%TT ARETn ARETx
Balance at 31 December 2022 R2022F 12 431 BE & 55,244 (24,277) 42,947 141,118 215,032
Effect of adoption of amendmentsto  FFAEE &5 E8IE 1295
IAS 12 (BRIR) & & - - - 11 11
Balance at 1 January 2023 (restated) 7202341 A1 B4
(=E7) 55,244 (24,277) 42,947 141,129 215,043
Profit and total comprehensive FERNREEAKESSE
income for the year - (5,984) - 52,501 46,517
Dividends paid BHRE - - - (10,788) (10,788)
Balance at 31 December 2023 A 2023F 12 A 31 HW&EH 55,244 (30,261) 42,947 182,842 250,772
Transfer from retained eamings BERERT - - 131 (131) -
Profit and total comprehensive FERNREAKESE
income for the year - (993) - (16,968) (17,961)
Dividends paid BARE = - - (7,086) (7,086)

Balance at 31 December 2024 12024 F12 B 31 B 55,244 (31,254) 43,078 158,657 225,725

For details of the statutory reserves and other reserves, please EHZEZE L B REMBEBN
refer to the Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements. & - B2HE I BHmEMTE21 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z 2024 4 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

36.

37.

38.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into new lease agreements
for motor vehicles for 2 to 3 years. On the lease commencement,
the Group recognised approximately RMB51,789,000 of right-of-
use assets and approximately RMB51,789,000 of lease liabilities.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

No significant subsequent event took place after the year ended
31 December 2024.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2024, the Group was involved in litigation or
arbitration of material importance. Details are as follows:

(@) On 30 December 2024, after the final trial at the Shanghai
Maritime Court and Tianjin Court, the lease contract litigation
between the Group and Tianjin VATS Logistics Service Co.,
Ltd was ruled in favour of the Group for termination of the
lease, payment of rent, cancellation of the port operation
license, and the request for joint and several liability of the
guarantor of Tianjin VATS Logistics Service Co., Ltd and the
court ruled to support the site occupation expenses after
the termination of the contract. As of the date of the Report,
the Port and Shipping Bureau completed the cancellation
of Tianjin VATS Logistics Service Co., Ltd’ port operation
license. Recently, the court has recently transferred the
seized cash of RMB170,000 to the Group, and expelled the
Tianjin VATS Logistics Service Co., Ltd.

36.

37.

38.
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FAFBRERS

FA AEERABITLLSH2E
BFEMHMBEEW & - HEFRGKE
AEECHRAERAREENARYE
51,789,000 TR HERBENHARK
51,789,000t °

IREHESIA

REE2024F12 A1 BILEE %
WARBLEEAAERSEE -

ahan
M2024F12A31H » KREEW &
ERFIASE - BT ¢

(@) M2024%12 8308 @ & L&
BEER - RIFER W&
FBABRASBEXZEERY
MREBERAFNHEESRF
A AT FBAREE KA
g e aEBng®
TR B A R B BRIEEZYN
RIS B R A AR ERARIEE
HREMESR - WHEERET
TREERKIEZBEISHNA
BR -HEARRELRR - BEMm
RBETRREEZYRREE
PR A B8 O 48 & 7 Al 3B B 5T 85
THE o EBTm AR i E A
Be& AREE170,000 L& 82
REBE - WRKEREEZRY
MRBBERARIMEHIERT
{E °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; % 2024 4 12 531 HIFF/Z

38. LITIGATION (continueq)

(b)

The Group’s previous legal representative acted ultra vires
and signed the “Special Guarantee Agreement”, resulting
in the Group being liable to pay RMB38,632,171.20
as compensation for the guarantee obligation and the
enforcement fee. The Group filed a lawsuit against the
defendant for damage to the Group’s interests, and on 17
April 2024, the defendant was ordered to pay compensation
of RMB23,250,000 to the Group. The Group seized the
defendant’s bank account and a set of immovable property,
and after compulsory enforcement, RMB457,000 in cash
has been recovered.

On 12 December 2024, Guoben Xiamen Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd. commenced legal proceedings
against the Company at Tianjin No. 3 Intermediate People’s
Court, requesting to terminate the factoring contract with
Tianjin Huaxinda Investment Co., Ltd and return the transfer
price of RMB81,240,000. The case has undergone two pre-
trial conferences and is still in progress.

38. &Rsl (#)

(b)

REBFREERERABESRET
CHErRIRE Hhak ) - BEA A&
EERETEEBURMITE
A R #38,632,171.207T ° &
AEBEMEEREBEZEAEE
F 25 B AF A 0 2024 F 4 A
17 BHAB S RIA LB E A
R % 23,250,0007C > AN &
EHEERITRP R T EE—
E - KARFIET ERFRES
AR 457,000 7T °

R2024%F 12 128 » BIAE
FIftIER BB AR AR MKE
ME=ZFRAREREFAR
Al FBRIEHRENESRE
HEARAFNRES R IR
EEEERAR 81,240,000
TLe AREITT2REME
& MEEER
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39.

40.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Company and its PRC subsidiaries participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities whereby the Company and its PRC subsidiaries are
required to make contributions at the rate of 14% to 16% of
the eligible employees’ salaries to the Schemes. The Group has
accrued for the required contributions which are remitted to the
respective local government authorities when the contributions
become due. The local government authorities are responsible for
the pension obligations payable to the retired employees covered
under the Schemes.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits beyond the contributions described above.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, there were no forfeited
contributions available to reduce future obligations. The total
contribution made by the Group to the Schemes for the
year ended 31 December 2024 are RMB30,919,000 (2023:
RMB33,985,000).

AUTHORISATION OF ISSUE OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2025.

39.

40.
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ARAREPEKMERRSMNEF
B & T AR R A 1 A A ) E BR R
BB EI(TFTE)) - RIBEZET
g ARmRES BB RAR
EEREEHEMNI4%E16%M
ZETEIHR - AEBECFIEAFHR
TR S A R B B B 45 & 10 T K
FER - WHBRAERARAE
NHRINEB TR ARE ©

B Bt RSN - AR B H 5T
HERARSRBANERER

R 2024 F K 2023F12 A31H » I
W HRATAREIR AR R
o AEBEHZE2024F12 A31H
IFFEHHEELE 2 RERBAR
#30,919,000 70 (2023 4F : A R #&
33,985,0007T) °
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